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Chapter 3
The Commission

Organisational Structure

Management Team

Securities and Exchange Policy Board - ——




Chaitman Mr. Razi-nr-Rahman Ekan (second from left} with Commissioner
M, Salman Ali Shaikh (second from right), Mr. Rashid I Malik (extreme left) and Mr. 8, Tarig Asaf Husain {extreme right)

Chairman Mr. Razi-ur-Rahman Khan
with Senior Martegement of the Commission

{From front left): Mr. Mansur Ahsan (Executive Director, HR&TRG), Mr. Rashid I. Malik (Commissioner,
SMD&CLD), Mr. Razi-n-Rahman Khan (Chairman, SECP), Mr. Salman A Shaikh (Commissioner, SCIY), Mr.
Tariq Asaf Husain (Commissioner Law), Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi (Advisor to the Commission) and Dr.
Mumtaz A. Hashmi (Advisor Insurance}. (From back left) Mr. Akif Saced (Executive Director, SCD}, 8. Gulrez
Yazdani (Executive Director CS), Mr. Nazir Ahmad Shaheen (Executive Director, RD), Mr. Arshad Javed Minhas
{Executive Director, IS&T), Mr. Javed K Siddiqui (Executive Director, SSD), Mr. Tahir Mahmood (Executive
Director, EMD)
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The Commission

3.10rganisational Structure

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {the C ission) was established to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 (SECP Act) for the beneficial regulam)n of the capital markets,
superintendence and control of the corporate entities in Pakistan and for matters connected therewith. The
regulation of the Non-banking Finance Company {(NBFC) sector, the insurance sector and the Voluntary Pension
Schemes (VPS) was entrusted to the Commission over a period of time to provide for a holistic and consolidated
regulation of those sectors. The Cx ission plays a fund | rele in maintaining theintegrity and vitality of the
capital markets, corporate, NEFC and insurancesectors and protecting the interests of investors.

The Commission is organized into five main divisions: Company Law Division; Securities Market Division;

jalized C ies Division; I Division; and Support Services Division. The Cemmission's head-

oﬂice is in Islamabad. The Securities Market Division, Specialized Companies Division and Insurance Division

each have two regional offices - the southern regional office and the northern regional office - to administer the

secuntles and corporate laws in their respective Junsd]cuoml region. Company Law Division has eight company
i i A

offices at di inthe country. O ional structure is atA
Alistoflaws administered by the Commission is provided in A B.
3.2Management Team
The C issien is a collegiate body with coll ibility. It is headed by a Commission, comprised of the

‘Chairman and Commissieners, whoare nppumtedbyl.he Federal Government, Operational and executive authority
is vested in the Chairman who is the Commission's Chief Executive Officer (CEO}. He is assisted by
Commissioners in overseeing the working of various operational units.

Mr. Razi-ur-Rahman Khan is the fourth Chairman of the Commission. He was
appoimted by the Federal Government on January 12, 2006, Mr. Khan is a Fellow of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and possesses extensive
experience in corporate and capital market operations during his career spanning over
thirty-three years in multinationalsand internaticnal financial institutions.

Inaddition to the Chairman, the Commission presently has three Commissioners.

. Mr. Salman Ali Shaikh, who is ing the Specialised Companies Division (SCD), is

a senior emerging markets banker havmg over thu'ty ~two years experience with various
leading banks in the country including Citibank. He was also the Managing Director of
an investinent bank and part of the senior management team that led the turnareund of
Habib Bank Limited.

Mr. Rashid I Malik oversees the Company Law Division
{CLD) and the Securities Market Division (SMD). A
Chartered Accountant by profession, Mr. Malik possesses
over thirty years cxperience in business eperation,
fi d ing in Pakistan and UK.

Subsequenttothe close of the year, Mr. 8. Tariq Asaf Husain joined the Commission as
Commissioner {Law). A lawyer by profession, he brings with him over 35 years of
experience. Mr. Husain practiced in the High Courts and Supreme Court of Pakistan.
and also lectured at the Sindh Muslim Law College, Karachi. Additicnally, he worked
abroad as a senior counsel with major corporatiens, managing their legal risks.

Mr. Abdul Rebman Qureshi is an Advisor to the C ission. A lawyer by p
hehas beer. jated with the C ission and the vhile Corporate IAWAuthonty
{CLA) since 1977. He has served as C issi ialized C ies, Company

Law; Enforcement and Monitoring and Support Services Divisions inthe past.

Dr. Mumtaz A. Hashmi is Insurance Advisor to the Commission. He holds a PhDD degree from Bngland. Be{are
joining the Commission, he managed the Pakistan ions of Royal and 1li; 2 leading UK

insurer, group, for. almost twcnty ﬁve years. He hasserved the insurance industry with his technical expertise and has
beenanimpor toi Jucation and training.

During the year, Mr. Shafaat Ahmad, Executive Director (Insurance} retired from service and Ms. Amber Dar,
Bamcutive Director (Law) lefi the Cemmission. Subsequent to the close of the year, Mr. Muhammad Hayat Jasra,
Secretary o the C ion and Mr. Imtiaz Haider, ive Director (SMD-North) also lefi the Commission.

‘The following Executive Directors were heading the Divisions/Departments as at the closeof the year:

Mr. Zafar Abdullah - Securities Market Division

M. AkifSaced - Specialized Companies Division

M. Nazir Ahmed Shaheen - Registration Department

M. Tahir Mat d F d Monitoring Department

M. Javed K. Siddiqui - Finance and Administration Department

Mir. Arshad Javed Minhas - Information Systems and Technology Department
Mr. Mansur Ahsan - Human Resource and Training Department

3.3 Divisions
‘The Commission's eperations were being performed by the following Divisions:

Company Law Division;
Securities Market Division;
Specialized Companies Division;
Insurance Division;

Support Services Division;
Chairman's Secretariat; and
Legal Depatrtment

3.4 Securities and Exchange Policy Board
3.4.1Policy Board Membership

While ensvring full antonomy of the Commission, the Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act
provides that the Federal Government shall appoint the Securitics and Exchange Policy Board which is respensible
to oversce the performance of the Commission and to take pelicy decisions in respect of the matters within the
jurisdiction of the Commission. In Junc 2007, the composition of the Pelicy Board was expanded from mine to ten
members, of which six shall be from the public scctorand four from the private sector.

M~
o
f=}
™~
-
[
o
o
w
14
-
<
=)
=z
z
<




M=
(=
(=}
o~
joR
o
O
o
w
(i
=1
<
3
z
=
<

Six members from public sector inclnde ex-offiic the Finance Minister or, in his absence, the Adviser to Prime
Minister on Finance; Secretary, Finance Division; Secretary, Law and Justice Division; Secretary, Commerce
Division; Chairman of the Commission and Deputy Governor of SBP. Dr. Salman Shah, Advisor to the Prime
Minister on Finance was nominated as the Chairman of the Policy Board, subsequentto the close of the year.

Four members from private sector are well known for their integrity, expertise and experience in commerce and
industry, corporate law; acconmtancy, financial services, investment, insurance, banking or academia.

During the year under review, Mr Tawfiq A. Husain retired as Deputy Governor SBP and was succeeded by Mr.
M Ur-Rehs Khan_ 8 to the clese of the year, Mr. Tanvir Ali Agha retired as Secretary Finance
and Mr. Ahmad Waqar joined the Board inhis place.

Ason 30 June 2007, the Palicy Beard consisted of:

%)

“Tamvir Ali Agha
Secretary
Finance Division

Securitics and Bxchange
 of Pakistin

Syed Asif Shah
Seeremry
Commerce Division Deputy Governar
State Bank of Pakistan

Parlismentary Affairs Division

Dx. Shabida Jaffrey
Vice Chancellor
Sandar Bahadur Khan
“Women University

M. Zubyr L Soomr Dr. Mohammad
Managing Director Zubalr Khan
Citigroup Managing Director
Financial Technigues
International

3.4.2Policy Board Meetings

Sevenmectings of the Policy Board were held during the year (4in 2006 and 3 in 2007). The Board was taken into
confidence about the hiring of forensic investigators to investigate the Karachi Stock Exchange events of March
2005 and reviewed their report. The Board was also apprised about the Market Monitoring and Surveillance
System being installed by the Commission to augment its market mommrmg & surveillance capacity up to
internatienal level. The Board was kept posted on the devek on & ion of stock exck
commencement of aperations by the National Commeodity Exchange Limited, It also considered and appmvtd
the anpual budget of the Commissien for the financial year 2007-08 and performance/market based new terms
and conditions of cployment for the officers of the Commission, The major issucs which were discussed i the
aforcsaid mectings included the following:-

Esmablishment of Southern Regional Office of the Commission at Karachi

Approval of additional manpowerin Scuthern Region and Northem Region of the Commission

Approval of revised salary package for employ fthe Co

Approval of budget of the Commission for the year2007-2008

Seventh Anpual R:port ofthc Ooxnrmsslon and the andited financial statements for the year 2005-06
Risk M: dinthe stockexch

Approval of* "Human Resonrce Hand Book ofthe Commission”

Performance/Market based new Terms and Conditions of employment for Chairman and
Commissicners

Mandatorya.dopu\m of Central DﬁporsltorySys!cm (CDS) byall listed companics

Market Moni and Surveill

Client Level Netting Impact. ouMarket

Demutualization of Stock Exchanges

Allotment ofa Plotfor SECP Office Building

O lization ef the Natienal C di

Progress review on the Real Estate Investment Trust (REITs) and Private Equity Fund Rules

Approval of Performance Bonus to officers of the Commission

Mesting of SECP Policy Beard in progress tnder the chairmaaship of Dr. Salman Shih
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Chapter 4
Financial Statements

Auditors’ Report to the Federal Gevernment —-——-——-—~—--o oo
Balance Sheet

Income and Expenditure Account

Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Changes in Funds

Noesitoithe FinancisiStaterents S e L i
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Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention 1o notes 3.5 and 14.1 detailing the reasons for
restatement of previous years’ figures.
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o« In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the [financial position of o«
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sear then endod, and 8 summary of suniliemt woous
{=the tinancisl statemants”y

5 (o tie Fiaricil Shate

Management is sesponsibla for the prepamrion and fir prasentarion of 1hese s Wh | WM&C@ 5

»\.mmion ar ISLAMABAD KPMG TASEER HADI & CO.
21°AUG 2007 CHARTERED ACCOQUNT.

inplementing and matmaining, inresmal contral relovans to the proprgsian mni Fir pr
finunciul slufements Lt are free from mators) missaterent, whether due b fraud or e
selecting and applyving Approprist acconniing policies: and naking scoeomling estimates el e
reasomablz i the circumstanees.

Aealiror's Respens biiiy

Our respomsibility i to express ae opinion on these fmemeial stalements based on av podit. We
surducled our gedsi in accerdsnce with luternational Standards on Auditing as applicable in
Pakisian. These standamds resquirs thal wis comaply with ethical eeuiiemnents atd plan and pefeon
e cudit to obtain reasomuble assurance whether the financial staments are tiee frem material
nizsalcmenl

An udic involves perforing procedures woslteie aulit evidense ehowl e w
digclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend an e auditor's judgment,
Judding the assossment of the tisks of muteril misslatement of the Biansial statenent., sdiller
due to fraud or error, Tn making those risk ossessments, the auditer considers intemal contrel
relevant te fhe entily’s preparation and Fai | slale menls
dosign sudis procedares that ace appropriate in the circwmsiances, but nor for the purposs of
i s of the witiny's internal control, An atdit also uisludes

prosentation of G [ wrder iy

evaluating the apprapriateness of scepnnling policics ssod sl the reasarabloncss of acconnting
extimalus made by a3 well as cval the pverall m inn of the finaneial
Slatenents.

We believe that the andit evidencs we have obined i sullicien and apprapriats L grovide @
besiy fir our nudil cpinion (lxs H
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Securities and Txchange Commission of Pakistan

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan =
~ Balanee Shua = 3 & o«
o A et A0 vie 21 Income and Expenditure Account o
(o) 2097 For the vear ended 36 June 2007 <
(Rupees 100 a
=
= 2007 2006 w
w i - /o v =
5 Property, plant and cquipment 3 164471 Note Rupees '060 o
o Restated o
= Capitul work in progress 4 22,442 = Iicome "
= s =
3 Lang term investments - beld do maturity 8 284,048 201,330 Fees and other recoveries | 1.216,923 1204 066 =)
= Other ineome i7 192,672 130,760 pd
Loung Lerm Toans (0 employees 7 2,356 2,001 1.409.505 Thisris -
o FExpenditure <
Current sty ‘ } T X
Achuamyes, deposite, prepaymcrts and other reccivables 8 ! 141,218 1U2,328 Salarles, allowances and other benefits 1§ | 387283
Short & dovess y I.236,257 i LERRATE Operating expenses mw | 238,237
Cash aad baok balonces | 104,286 ‘ 163,240 Depreciation 27,683
381,761 RRREA Amgartization of premium on Pakistan Investment Bonds 7,305
nl liab ‘ Bank charges 1.246
suedd and ather liacilivics i (56,531) (72,47 T
Ner enrrent assels 2,425,230 1,748,038 Excess of income over expenditure a7 871
Tieterred liahility for emplovees' relirement benyfit 2 (XR606) [24.543) Transferred from deferred gram 275 5,554
Deferved grant s 12,2113 (2.288) Surplus of income over expenditure for the year 748,146 846,953
Net asseds 2HTH,637 2122280 Surplus of income over expenditure brought forward 32249 2
Reprisented bu: Accumulaied surplos 1,070,637 1,122,491
Funds 14 TATAIT 2.122,401 Transferred tv assets (land and building) acquisition reserve £800,000)
Traniferred to gencral reserve . (400,000}
Conti cies and eommitments i3 Surplus of income over axpenditure carried forwsrd 270,637 322,49
ntingencies —

Vhe annexed roces fmm 110 23 fonm an megral part oz Uwse hocoal statenents. i The annexed nates from | to 23 form an i

1 part of these financia! statements,

“These Fmancial staemenis wers iwyzroved by the Commissioners
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sion of Pakistan

Securitics and Lixchange Cormni
Cash Flow Statement

Frow thwe year enicledd 30 e 2607

Cash Haws Crail #peeating activities

Susplus of inemme gues sxpendite fr e e
Adustments Mo
Depreziative: fur b
_ Amurtization v premim an Takisren Investment Honds
< Trovisiun Jor pansion
- Movision for gratimy
- Prpvigion g fouve svalimenr,
- Intcrex
- Gt 02 sale of praparty, plmi ard e sipoeac

noome

Coperating ineome e fire veorking capite] ehanzes

Licrezse in loans, sdvances, depusils, prigdy meels ARG O nativo o3
Incrarse in acerusd and olics labilines

Cromtsibulion o peasion fmd

Ll U0 1 Zeatuity tand

Leuves enehozed

Contiukion en accommt of civil seoeant pacd o Govermert of Pakiskm
el cosh geasrater frim nneraime ackivities

Cach fluws frum
Puaciuse of puupsty, plant and e

sting netivities
et

Prucesds from sale of propedy, planl and cyuipueil
Cagital waiks in pragress

e ingmnse in shart e fmestments

Tt roceivesd on investmeats azd bank deposi=s
et onth used i rvesting aetivicss

MNel{decrense) increse im eash and vash egulvalemts
Cash andd eash eyubvalenis af beginning uf ihe year
b e cash cguivadéots at eudl & the year

b dutnesed fotas fiam | % 25 form an intsmal par o] Lhese Ananeial slal2isents.
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3475 1,814
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{164} (7 837
s
B TR T
{36, 88T} L
T 8911
B4 827 2955
(42,306) {12000
(21,240%) (3,700;
(2,722} (2,269
: 42
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Securities and Kxchange Conunissicn of Pakistan
Motes to the Finaneial Statements
For the yzar ended T fune 3007

L LEGAL STATUS AND GPRRATIUNS

Sesufities and Lashanze Conmisaian o Pakistza
under the Secwsities and Tischange Commission of
regulation of ca.

& Comminaion™) was anabliaked 68 & bedy oo orule
akican A<, 1997 ("the Ael'} fbr the benel

lul rurkess, superinisndence cnd control ol Corporits entities and Tor matlers connscted

Thereilh aimd

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND Ba; OF PREPARATION
These tinancial swleaments bave been crepared wider the historic cost comvgution, The accounting.
adajted inthe preparation of these finoncial statements, as stated (7 the note 3. sigaificantly cotnply with the
applicable Fatemational Avcounting Standards. Hawever, e Comenissian is not required 1o comply with the
Tequirements of Ihe Uierhationa | ALcoubtng Standazds

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

S Propects, plant and cquipnient
Property, plant and equipsisat are stated at 6287 Jess aceumulated depreciation and impaimmen: losses, it any
excenl [ lensehnld land whieh is stated al eqst. Capital Worl in progress is sterod at cost
Diepreciaien i calelarsd straizht tine methad ra write off the aost oF each axset over 5 estrated
uselul (e Rates of degrecistion are speeitiad in Nete 4 1o the financial satements. Depreciation @n
aditions during Lhe yesr 15 charzed from ke dace of aequiziton v the e the wssel fv il Tor ues and
an cispenals uplo the date of dispasal.
Mainenance and narmal vepsirs arc charged w income a3 and when incwrced. Mujor senzwals and
improvernenns ere capitalized and the. £35cts 3o replaced, B ang, are refived. Gains and losses an dispasals of
praperty, plant and squipsient ae included in the incoma cusrenthy,

3.2 Recelvables
These are stated af cost less uliowanse B auy wneoll eetible jeceivables

3.3 Payahles
These are currizd a1 cost which is the firvalie o the consideration tn be. p the futare,

34 Foplayee benelits

Dfined comtribution plou

The Commission mainiaing 4 2pproved delined Conibutery Mievident Fund, Commizsioners and regular
suployees are entiticr o either provident fuad or pratity, whilc eoniractoal cmployees are stitled tor
ective trony 01 Tanua:y 2007, the Commission offered new lenns and conditions e ol ils 5.alT
thisse Wi opted Tr Mese ane enttied e provicent fund 25 well a5 Framity Sut Bt to pERSion. A% oh 30
Jure 2007 witsl 136 emplnvees apted 1o theas new erma and conditicns. The Gemmission's eonteiulion 1
Slefired Conuribuery Provident Fumd i charged e icome und ewpendicure acerun % the vear, 2

w8
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Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear emded 30 Juwe 2007

&
n

36

Defired berefit plant

The Commission maintaine approved tunded derined persion plan and spproved funded defined eratuiny
fund. Commissicners and regular employees are entifled e pension. Annual contributions are made
pensiot and gratuily furd oh éeluarial rscommendations using "Projected Uit Credit Methio
tecehl waluation was sondudted on Tune 30, 2067

. The mast.

The Commission's policy with regard to achearial pairs § lowses is b llow minfnem secammendsd
approach undst International Ascovnting Standard - 19 Emplayes Tenchila. Fransitianal linbility is being
recognized on A siraight line basis over a period of Live vears.

The future contribution rate of these plans mcludes allowanes lior deficil or swplus, The "Prajecied Unil
Credit Methnd" based an folkwing significant assumptions svers wd:

Discount ra:c 1% pa
Expected rate of etz on plan asset 10% pua.
Expected rate ol increase In seiary 10% pa.

Compienvudedt ubuehees

The Cottnission vecopizes fot compemsided absences payable lo cmployees at the time of
retiterent’ termination of service. The prvision is datermined on the basis of Test drawn basic salary and
accumulated Jeaves al reparting date.

Deferred gramt

Gram elated to fixed assets are accounted for by seitingsup Lie grants us delerred yranis, These gronts are
recognized as inoome-on n systematic basts over the usefull life of the assels.

Urants relaled to assets waich were previowrly included in [und hatance as assets acquired fram dissolsed
Corporale Lave Avlewily, reapproprialion of funds by GOP and technical assisauce fiam Asian
Develnpmient Rank bave new been weeounied for and prescnced as deferred grant in accsrdance with the
Inierautional Aceounting Standards - 20 *Accounting for Government Grants and Disebosure of Government
Aasistance”. This change has been oede ielrospeetively as per the Lntesnotiocal Accounting Sendard - 8
“Acvounling, Polivics, Chamges in Accounting Estimates and Errors” with nestatement of the cumparad ve
Mgures, The effec of Uis restaeemcnt i Ziven In the incama ond expanditire dcuaomt, statooent of changes
in funds and nore 151 12 the tinansial scacements,

Tlzd the ahve referred change not heen masle, fund bulance as of 30 June 2007 veould kave been Righer by
s, 2201 millien atd decumulated surplas of ineome gver expenditure as of 30 June 2007 vould huve beer
Towe by R #8165 millinn which 3o the amuurt of amertization of deferred grant.

Revenue revognition

Fees and viher reeveris aes recognized on acerual basis other than fees Under Mnywrarce Ovdinance, 2000
and fex from Non Banking Finanee Companies which are recngnived nm e i

Cenalties are recognized on 1ecRing husly

[neome on investnents o bark dipisili i3 roeognized on ime propartion hasis. w .

Y
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Securities ard Exehangs Commission of % <istan

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

: ; tr; the Finanv.al Staacents
Notes to the Finuncial Statemaonts

3 e 2D

- -
o i T o
o Fav she pear endod 20 June 2007 =
L Teaserl, BlantAwE oquipmen e im0 O
= 4 i &
37 Administered projects Slalerent of spezening asscts oonl 30 e
w proj w
o : 3 . ; " ¢ Bulliiigon  LEWSKRI  Ofer  Cemuiess  furamure  Vehigis Tetal =
The Cormmission fs the exeeuting /implementing agency under various donor assisted prejeets. Transactions lensenaki  PnpTeemEN U pmENE ani favare o
— and Lalances relufing to these projeas vrv repocied wnder Administered Projects, The swnmery information i e )
< s mresenied in the notes o these financial satements. Ficed ascets acquired in thece projects and B a0 B3l [T wee ani 18334 FrCRIT) <
tansferable to the Commission ave recogmized and wre subjeet to the policics adopted by the Conmssion for vzwmlacod dzorccint on (1954 A00B (19,05) A ORI
2 ik iy Copering. mel bu b value a3 at S0Jue 3006 A b EE (] (K Y (] =
Z T —— : : o aem o me an z
z 3.4 Impairment o = | 4 | [ ‘ = ‘ : ‘ Z
<< Lepre 0 - & = - <
The carcying anount of the Commmssina's asscts arc seviewed at cach bolance sheet date fo delermine T E i S ke b oow  aon
whetlier there is any mdiculion of mpairment [ogs 17 any such indicstion exists, the resoverable amount o Cohsitgmel book value a1 51 _zig £ Fad IR T 126 5011 FEIS
hetler th 5 indicetion of imp Lo, 17y wich il L th bl r a
h asels 18 estimaded and irmpaitrient lasses ars recognized in the insorme and expenditure aveounl.
208 ez mam Wy
< 150140 (1A Nl iE2 55 %)
2570 ] ] 6128 izl
39 lovestments seprachatinn rare - £ am ELLT s 3 %
|Tehd t motariy Sl € e N S a5 0730 e 1006 de 2 llows.
Investments with Taed or <determinalie payinents and tined matunty, that the Commission his the pasitive Deaschodl  Buldingen Leasehll @i Computers  Furnilune  Wehicle Tudal
intgat and ability to hold to matuity see classified a2 held 1o matuly imvestments and are camed al Ini H:i:ﬂlﬂ impreemsnl wuimnel e fistir e
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3.12 Cash sad cash equivalents

bor the purposcs of cash flow statement, cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash i band and bank

balances
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Chairman's Secretariat

OB]ECT IVE Taasmt the Chairman and raordmace m!h other departrients of the SECP and external entities, as necessary, in
the SECP inan effici

5.1 Operational Structure

5.1.1Structure

‘The Chairman’s S iat (CS) di the f of the Chainman's office and liaises with external
entities, including government agencies and multilateral and international organizations such as the World Banlk,
Asian Development Bank (ADB) and International Finance Corporation (IFC) and is responsible for the
managementof donor-funded projects.

5.1.2 Management Team
CSis| hezded hy Sycd Fayyaz Mallmud Director. He is a seasoned professional having more than thirty year of

laws and serves under the direct supervision of the Chairman, Mr. 8.
GulrezYudam has joined as Exacuuve Director (CS)in February 2008,

Officers of CS with ED 5. Gulrez Yazdani

5.2 Appellate Bench

The Appellate Bench Registry of the Commission is headed by the Registrar Appellate Bench who works
under general supermbendence of the Appellate Bench. Administratively, the Registrar reporis to the
1y Mr, Salman Ali Shaikh.,

Appealsfiled against orders passed by a single Commissioner or any officer of the Commission are heard by
Appellate Benches, which comprise of twa C issi each. The G issi who passed the order
against which the appeal has been filed can not be on the Bench which hears the review appeal,

The Appellate Bench is assisted by the Appal]ate Bench Registry. The Registry receives and scrutinizes the
appeals under the Securities and Exchang; ission of Pakistan (Appellate Bench Procedure) Rules
2008.

a5

During the year, 41 appeals were filed before the Appellate Bench against orders passed by Commissioners,
Executive Directors and Du'edors The Appellate Bench disposed off 12 appeals, out of which 4 appeals
dand 15

Disposal of appeals is likely to improve with the appoiniment of Commissioners against vacant positions
and restructuring / constitution of more benches.

5.3 Internal Audit

Internal Andit Department serves as an independent appraisal function within the Commission. It warks in

accordance with the Internal Audit Manual and under the guidance of an internal audit committee. The departiment

seeks to 1denhfyand mitigate Qpermoml risks and improve efficiency and effectiveness of use of the Commission's
imed at:

P P P

- Revicw of payroll processing, petty cash revenuc i travel, pre and
administration functions.

Menthly rcvlcw oﬂ:-udgct a-“ocatluns and uuhunom

Revenuc A fee, R Mortgage, Pmalncs and otherfees.
Review of the efficacy af monthly MIS reperts and annual s of the C

Post-auditoftransactions of the Support Services Division of the Commission.

Reviewand Anditofthe controlenvi at the Company Registration Offices {CROs).

Pre-auditofall final settlements of employees.

PR S

5.4 Monitoring and Compliance

The Menitoring and Compliance Unit in the Chairman's Secretariat maintains a regular vigilance and epsures an
appropriate and expediticus resolution of the grievances, complaints and queries of the public and investors against
the stock exch t ‘brokers, and ofthe ‘The Unit also reviews the performance
of other divisions of the Cemmission threugh periedic reports; handles the refercnces received from the ministrics
and follows up the correspendence received at the Chaimman's office to ensure compliance with the Chairman's
instriictions

In order to create within the stakeholders about the availability of vigilance mechanism ard how the
stakeholders can make best use of the facility, the Comrnission has placed the instructions on filing ofa complaing on
its website,. The information and forms have also been made available ac the CROs and the stock exchanges.
Investors, entities and general public can forward any query or complaint online through the links available at the
Commission's website besides using the regular mail. The Unit has a reporting mechanism whereby a track iskept of
the status of complaints and querics received.

‘The natiire of complaints received included:

Non-transfet of shares
Unauthorized trading (saldpurchzsc)
ized

o

fshares
Non-supply of statements of account
Nen-receipt of annual or ha].fyearly accuunm
Failure te investors' instruet
Suspension of payment

Nen-delivery of securities and
Non-payment of dividend

PRI N N S

Statistics of the. laints, queries and gow:
1& 2in the statistical section of this repore.

handled during the year has been provided in Tables
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5.5 Media and Publications Unit

‘The Media and Publications Uit ensures smooth flow of information between the Commission and its external
stakebolders, particularly print and electronic media. During the year, the Unitkept 2 tegular liaison with media and

issted updates on significant develk initiatives and reform of the C Press releases were
issuted to the media to maintain communication lines between the C i and stakeholders on §

atters.

5.6 Foreign Relations Unit

The Forzign Relations Unit (FRU) in the CS is primarily responsible for dinating with multilateral and
international organizations.

The FRU worked on formulating and putting in plao: perative hani such as M da of
Understanding at the international level te facilitate the d of ‘border mi duct. The C: ission has

co-operation arrangements in the form of MOUs with various erganizations. These MOUs generally cover the
need to exchange information abont matters of regulatory concern including financial and other supervisory
information, technical expertise and also inquirics as part of a larger international compliance program for the
purposc of preventing illicit activitics. A list of the organizations with which the Commission has signed MOUs
appears in Anaexure C,

5.7 Project Management [Tnit

The Project Management Unit executes donor-funded projects and assignments of the Commission. During the
peried under review; a major portion of the Technical Assistance {TA} to the Comnmission under the Financial (nen-
bank} Markets and Governance Program of the ADB was completed while an action plan was chalked out te
commence activities under the World Bank’s Institutional Development Fund Grant. The Unit also maintains close
lizison with the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance to imprave corporate governance practices in the
country:

5.7.1 Second Generation of Capital Market Reforms Program

During the course of the year, the Asian Development Bank {ADB} initiated deliberations with the Ministry
of Finance and the C fssion to provide for further capital market reforms. Through this
program ADB is providing an assistance package for the Second Generation of Capital Market Reform
Program through {) a program loan of $400 million to Government of Pakistan and (if) a technical assistance
(TA) grant of 1,000,000 to the Commission to support the implementation of the Program.

The principal objectives of the Program are to (i) hen the enabling envi for private pension
funds and other institutional investors; (i) address policy and regulatury constraints to the development of
corpotate hand market; (iif) increase equlty marke't breadth and reduce its volatility; {iv) strengthen the

£ k by t g the C: ion into a financial services commisgion (v) effective
supervision of NBFIs; and (vi) strengthening the governance of securities markets, market professionals
and public issuers.

The TA under the program will previde support to the Second Generation Capital Market Referm Program
in two major areas: (i) strengthen governance of capital markets to improve market transparency and
protectinvestors, and (i} support the Government's privatization strategy through the stock exchange.

a7

Tostrengthen thc governance of capltal markcts ancl thusimprove market transparency and protect investors, the TA
interalia the foll key

(i)  Establishment of a Capital Market Institute as a nongovernment certification institute to raise professional
standards among market participants and professionals.

{ii)  Support the preparation of a draft law for nonbank financial companies to strenpthen the mandate of the
regulator vis-A-vis the different categories of such companies, with a special focus on private pension

schemes.

{iii} Create a regulatory framework for private pensions funds with a particular facus on occupational savings
schemes.

‘The program also ¢nvisapes support for the d
exchange.

5.7.2Fi ial Markets and Gov: Program

lop of 2 Government privatization strategy through the stock

‘The Financial (non-bank) Markets and Governance Pregram (FMGP) was an integrated assistance package of three
loans and twe political risk guarantee facilities from the ADB to l.he Govemm:m of Pakistan. The Commission was
the executing agency for one of the TA loans te strength and governance of non-bank
financial markets. The total ameunt ef the TA was US$ 4.4 million out of which $ 3 million was to be provided by
ADB while the remaining portion was tc be financed by the Commission. On loan closing date of June 30, 2007
1US$2.15 million was spent outof ADB's portion.

‘The TAmainly invelveda 1 i focusing on op of awide array of financial intermediaries
ie. stock exch NBFCs and i I funds were alse earmarked for procurement of information
technelogy equipment as well as tr;un:mg of th: Commission's officials n.ud market parnclpants An internatienal
consultant was engaged to assist in devel a k for ) f | saving schemes and
pravide a sequential roadmap for their n:gulatmn The consultant also reviewed the operational processes of the
Commission's Pensions Wing and interacted with industry participants.

5.7.3 World Bank Assistance for Capacity Building of the Commission

In November 2005 the World Bank approved a grantfor the C: ission under its [nstitutional Devell Fund
facility in the amount of U$$454,000. The objectives of this grant are ta: (i) hen the C i ‘s abilities to
build a facilitative and cohesive legal framewark for sectors under its purview through better managing its own
resources, enhancing the capacity of its professionals threugh in-country training and via exposure to internaticnal
best practice in regulation and supervision of the financial and corporate sector and {ii) Develop independent and
high-quality professional serviee providers and encourage a greater role of self-regulatory organizations in the
markets.

During the year underreview; the Commission sent several of its. ufﬁ:ers on. furelgn trainings under this program. As
of the close of the year, the Ci ission was in the for C: h Real
Bstate: ‘Trusts and "Traind Mutual Fund

5.8 Anti-money Laundering

‘The Anti-M: Laundering Unit i and liaises with relevant agencies, both Jocally and internationally, to
promote AML activities in Pakistan.
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Funding fer AML and the combating of terrorist financing has been provided to the Government of Pakistan under
the World Bank's TA for Banking Sector Reforms (TABS). A total of US$800,000 was allocated for AML, of which
the Commission has 2 share of US$350,000 for capacity building in enforcement and supervision. The eut-off date
for TABS was 30 June 2006; in light of available funding the World Bank extended support to the AML component te
31 Drecember 2007. The Economic Affairs Division is in the process of engaging a consnltant to assess the needs of
different departments/organizations for AML and train the people.

During the year under review; the Commission participated in the Asia Pacific Group on Maney Laundering’s
annual meeting in Perth, Australia. A high-level APG delegation visited Pakistan and met with officers of the
Commission. The delegation as well as APG members expressed conc:m avcr the lack of anti-money laundering
legislation in Pakistan; the Anti y Laundering Ordi: was ' the close of the year.

5.9 Corporate Governance Project

It is an empitically tested fact that jurisdictions that have implemented pood corporate povernance
measures atiract more inve It has been C 's objective inter alia to initiate focus on
regulatory measures which are helpful in fostering investor confidence. Towards that end, the Commission
had developed and implementied a Code of Corporate Gevernance for listed cempanies in 2002. In
furtherance of its objective, the Commission, in collaboration with International Finance Corporation (IFC)
decided that a dedicated institute namely Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) needed to be
established for training and education, creating awareness, undertaking research, publishing guidelines
and other resource material and being a forum fer discussion on corporate governance, PICG which was
established in 2005 with public-private partnership has since started its activities and was primarily
engaged in thefollowing during the year:

* A Board Development Series (BDS) Program, developed with the support of [FC, has since
commenced. PICG ains to address corporate governance issues at the level of the BODs of companies
through inter-active workshops conducted in four parts. Each part comprises of six medules on

different aspects of corporate governance and ludes with a self- test that is
undertaken by the particip On successful letion of the the participantis awarded
the status of Certified Director. During the year, there were three in'takes inte lhe program involving
108 participants who came from diverse busi sectors includi 1l institutions, public
sector enterprises, listed companies and family-owned groups. PICG has received accreditation for
this Directots Education Program from 1Shareholder Setvices InUSA.

L3 PICG organized 4 Board Ori ion Workshops addressing the needs of financial institutions. These

workshops were directed at understanding corporate governance practices and the role and
responsibilittes of the BOD, In addition, PICG organized a workshop in Lahore on succession
planning and governance issues in family-owned businesses. This was followed by the creation of a
Focus Greup that will develop guidelines for directors of such businesses.

. Membership of PICG was initially restricted to 19 founding members but has now been opened to all
companies, corporations and other institutions to increase the level of engagement in keeping with

the objectives of PICG.
+ A Survey on Corporate Governance Practices in Pakistan was jointly commissioned by IFC & the
two dtables were held. The survey targeted 371 crganizations and provides a

baselme of current practices on which to focus corporate governance reforms. There is a general
awareness of good cotporate govethance practices and a large majority of the respondents indicated

pli with the datory of the Code. A task force comprising of experienced
ionals has since been formed tolead this reform process.

corp £ TIANCe |
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5.10 Development of Chartered Accountancy Profession

Thep ion of chartered i lated by the Insticute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP}
which is a Sclf Regulatory O izati blished under Chartered Accountants Ordinance, 1961, while the
Commission has an eversight role. The 12 members Council, which regulates the affairs of the Institute, includes
Chairman of the Commission.

During the year, ICAP with the approval and/or assi ofthe C ission has undertaken the following steps to
up-grade the quality of the services provided by the chartered accountants in Fakistat:-

. In order to make Pakistan fully compliant with the intcrnational requirements, the compliance with various
Intcrnational Accounting Standards (IAS) and Intcrpational Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) have been
made datory for the listed ics with the -ption of IAS-29 and IFRS 1,4, 7 and 8 which arc also
being cxamined for adoption in Pakistan, This would make financial statcments of Pakistan based are listed
corporate concerns comparable with the restofthe world,

. Financial Reperting Framework for SMEs have been developed and madeapplicable to different categorics of
noen-listed companics to improve the quality of their maintenance of accounts and reporting in the financial
statements. Dcvc]opmcnt of Financial Reporting Framework for SMEs by Pakistan has been gtcat]y

din profession worldwide particularly SAFA which hasapp d the same foradop
in SAFA countrics.
. Islamic Fma.nnal Rcyom.ng Sundan:ls an reporting. i for Murabal: jons and on farah
: were indig dand have bcm notified for mandatory compliance.

. In order to eliminate conflict of interest, the non-audit services, which the anditors of listed companies have
been prohibited from rendering to theirandit clients, have been specified.

. To ensure proper training of C_A_ students and facilitate completion of the conrse, the CA Bye-laws have beer
amended which limit the maximum pumber of students which can be trained by parmers and fellow
members of ICAT and allows smdents of Module E to appear in next Module F if they have a referral in only
ane subject.

. The quality of andit conducted by chartered is subject to a review by 2 Quality Control Review
Board, which also mdudcs r:prcscnunves from SECP SBP and KSE. A smsfaccory rating is essential for
auditoflisted comp Proposalsare under idh h dep of this Board.

¢ the

5.11 Tax Reforms

The (" issi intained its Haisatt with the Federal Board of Revenue so as to iron out income tax

ies and i in capital matket and special investment avenues i.e. REI'Ts, pension schemes
and venitire capltal The Commlssmn also wm]:cd closely writh the FBR on development of propet iticentives for
holding Following i several 4 it the Income Tix Ordinance, 2001 have
been made. While the full text of the changes is available in the Tax Law; 2 gist of some of the iotable amendments is as
under;-

. Aiml ] y of are entitled to set off of business losses consequent to amalgamation.
Definition of :umlpmated comparry did not inclyds corpatty engaged in providing services which has now
been included provided itis nota trading company.
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A person's contribution to voluntary pension scheme was permissible for taking income tax credit if he was
boldingan NTN (Naticnal Tax Number). Now a person whe enly has CNIC/NICOP shall also be allowed
the tax aredit. This shall allow the tax excmpt sectors such as agriculture and the pon-resident Pakistanis to
Jjoin these schemes.

To dispel doubts as to eligibility of tax exemption to Private Equity, Venture Funds and their
management companies, these terms have been defined. Their income shall be ireated as “business
income” rather than “income from other sources”.

To ge <ol of small busi ing as sole p i hips and

TP P F
partnerships, the definition of “5mall Company” has been expanded to include companies with
employees up te 250 and turnover up to Rs. 250 million.

To facilitate employees entitled to tax credit under sections 61, 62, 63 and 64, employers have been
empowered to determine taxcredit under those provisions.

Profits and gains of a person who sells immovable property to REITs {Real Estate Investment Trusts)
shall not attract any tax up t0.30-06-2010.

Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund shall enjey tax exemption till June 2014.

Distribution by Private Equity and Venture Capital Funds made out of capital gains has been made
tax exempt in the hands of the recipients.

Any gain on transfer of a capital asset of the existing stock exchange to new corporatized exchange
shall be tax exempt.

Any gain on transfer of membership right, by a member of an existing stock exchange, for acquisition
of shares and trading or clearing rights acquired in new corperatized exchange shall be tax exempt,

Levy of minimum tax shall not apply to Private Equity and Venture Capital Funds.

Private Equity and Venture Capital Funds shall be exempt from withholding respensibilities under
sections 151 and 233,

Heolding companies and subsidiary panies of 100% owned group allowed to opt to be taxed as
one fiscal unit, Option to be available to local companies and to be irrevocable,

Surrender of revenue losses between holding company and subsidiary allowed. There should be one
listed company in the group and holding company should not have less than 55% share holding in the
subsidiary. if none of the compandes is a listed company, then shareholding in subsidiary should not
beless than 75%.

Maximum limit of investment in securities of listed companies through IPOs has been increased to
Rs.300,000/-to facilitate small investors.
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Company Law Division

OBJECTIVE: 'T; pramote healthy growth of cotpotate entetptises, protect investors and creditors, promote investsent atid
e 0 the devel "
P

J

6.1 Operational Structure
6.1.1 Structure

“The Company Ordinance Law Division {CLID) regulates, monitors and enforces laws pertinent to the corporate
sector. In recent years, it has introdnced necessary amendments in existing laws and enacted new laws to cater to the
changing business needs and scenario. The CLD also undertakes monitoring and vigilance ef the corporate sector to
promeote transparency, acceuntability and good corporate governance practices.

“The CLD operates with the following departments:
. Registration Department (RD}

Registration Department (RD) is charged with the responsibility to administer and enforce the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 {the Ordinance) besides ather relevant laws, rules and regulations. Iis primary functions are

i of s i itoring the liance and regul their statutory RDisalso
responsible for supervision of the Company Registration Offices (CROs) located at Karachi, Sukkur, Multan,
Faisalabad, Lahore, Islamabad, Peshawar and Quetta.

. Enforcement Department (EnfD)

Enforcement Department (EnfD) is responsible for ensuring the listed corporate sector's {excluding NBFCs,
Modarabas and T C i i with various laws and lations in order to protect

the imterests of the stakeholders more particuinr}y shareholders and creditors.

6.1.2 Management Team

Mir. Rashid I. Malik, Commissioner oversees CLD). He is a Chartered Accountant from England & Whles and a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. He also holds a Master's Degree in Economics.
Hep over 30 years of ional and working experience of business eperation, management, finance and
aceounting in Pakistan and TJK. Mr. Nazir Ahmed Shaheen and Mr. Tahir Makmood, Executive Directors, head
RT}and EnfD) respectively. Both are Fellow Members of Cost and M. Ay of Pakistan and possess
intense working experience in the field of administration of Company Lawin Pakistan.

62  Registration Department

621 Corporate Portfolio
“Total number of registered companies at the end of FY 2007 stood at 51,327 as compared to 50,401 at the end of FY

2006, showing an increase of 2 percent. During FY 2007 a total of 4,703 new companies were registered while 3,777
companies were dissalved.
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Officers of RD in a Meeting with BD Mr. Nazir Ahmad Shaheen

6.2.2 Corporate Growth
6.2.2.1 Year-wise Growth

Year-wise incorporation of companies since 1998-99is reflected below:

Figure 1: Year-wise Incorporation of Companies
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6.2.2.2 Province-wise Distribution of Companies

G hical spread of

d during the FY 2007 is given below:

Figure 2: Province-wise Distribution of Companies Registered in FY 2007
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6.2.2.3 Associations Not-for-Profit under Section 42

Presently, there are 558 associations Net-for-Profit including trade organizations working in various fields such as
commerce, art, literature, science, religion, sports, social services and charity. The distribution is shown in the figure
below:

Figutre 3: Distribution of Associations Not-for-Profit under Section 42

Saclal Services Religlon
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6.2.2.4 Foreign Companies

Foreign companies that are registered abroad and established a place of business in Pakistan as branch office are
playing an important role in the country's econcmy. At the end of the year, 710 foreign companies were operating in
Pakistan, Country-wise origin of foreign companies in Pakistan is shown below:

Figure 4;: Distribution of Foreign Companies by Countryof Origin
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623 Performance Overview

During the year, RD undertook various to p corp ensure healthy growth of
corpotate enterprises, enhance public facilitation and encourage Iegu]atory compliance by corporations.
Notable measures include the following:

. Abolition of stamp duty on Memarandum and Articles of Association of companies in Sindh and
Balochistan. Punjab and NWEFF had already granted this exemption.

- Released more guides in its “Guide Booklet Series”, as part of corporate awareness programme,
entitled “Name Avaﬂability Guide” and Licensing of Associations Not fer Prefit”, including
publication of translated versions of P Guidein Chinese and Arabicl

. Launching of a media campaign for awareness of public and corporations on vanous corporate
matters.

+  LinisonwithSMEDA age corporatization of SMEs.

. Effective participation in ITCN Asia 2006 Exhibition.

- Distribution of medel Memoranda of Assaciation for the benaﬁt of formation of companies.

- Facilitation in establish: of Joint I -Comp 2
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6.24 Devel of Legal F k

6.24.1 A d in the C ies (General Provisions and Forms)} Rules, 1985

TD give effect of submission of all infermation/returns electronically by companies, enabling provisions have been

d in the Cempanies (General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985, Morcover, Form-29, relating te
submission of particilars of directors and officers, mtlurlmg the chief executive, managing agent, secretary, chief
accountant, auditors and legal advisers of the companies, or of any change therein, has been revised to make it easier
and user friendly,

6.24.2 A d inthe C ies Ordi 1984

To protect minority sharcholders, remove anomalies in the law, and introdhuce centralized online system: of
registration of companies and filling of returns, certain amendments, in consistent with the IT poll:l:s of r.hc
Government and the Commissien's comumitient towards devel of the corp sector, were
in the Ordinance throngh the Finanee Act, 2007. These inter alia. include:

=  Recognizatien of documents, record, information, ications and i in ic formand te
provide their accreditation.

+  Removal of bar of registrations ef companies and filing of their returns within territorial jurisdiction of their
registered offices and access them to make their samtory compliance in any one of eight Company Registration
Offices of the Commissien.

+  Curiailment of the Jural B on change of 3 compatry’ d office from ahe provinee (o
other province.

*  Acceleration of the process of flow of information between the o ics and its stakeholders by squeczing the
time to hold annual general meeting within three months foll the cl fcompany's financial year.

ng
+  Requirement for the private limited companies having paid up capital of more than 7.5 millien to file copy of

their annual andited accounts with the registrar so as to improve their corporate governance behaviour before
stakeholders,

+ EBasement in the process of veluntary winding up by permitting the companies to publish notices in
newspapersinstead of official Gazette in the event of their winding-up.

*  Inclusion of provisions to hold fresh election of directors of a company in the eve of substantial acquirer,

12.5% ormare, » h inalisted.
+ dating for listed ies to have anh ind dent shate registrar in arder to make transparent the process
of transfer and tr ission of shares of i

+  Authorizing the Commission to specify the class of companics or undertaking te which the restrictions for
irvestments in its associated u.nrlenzlang shall rmt apply subject m such conditions and restrictions on the
nature, period, amount ofim dter d thereto.

+  Empowering the Commission to order a special audit of the company and to appoint an auditor to carry out
deniled scrutiny of the affairs of the company, on its own metion, or upon an application made by members
holding notless that 20% voting rights in a company.

+  Authorizing the C: ission te require submission of additional
companies.

of accounts and reports from the

=  Enabling the Commission to make regulations and to issuc directives, circulars and guidelines to carry out the
Ppurposcs of the Ordinance.

a7

6.25 RegulatoryActions

6.2.5.1 Amal ions and M of C

During the year, RD submitied oral and written representations in respect of nineteen cases of amalgamation in
Courts. Of these, the decisicn on five cases is pending while decisions in respect of the following cases have been
taken by the Courts during the year:

Zzhidjee Fabrics Limited into Zahidjee Textile Mills Limited

Habib Bank AG Zurich inte Habib Mctropoliten Bank Limited

Pakistan Papersack Corporation Limited and Khyber Pass (Pvt.) Limited inta Thal Limited
Sapphire Energy Limited inte Sapphire Textile Mills Limited

GMPL (Pvt.) Limited and Provid Modaraba Limited into BRR T
W&P Company (Pvt.} Limited into Maxco (Pvt.} Limited

Khas Leather Products (Pvt.) Limited inte Khas Foods (Pvt.) Limited
Atlas Investment Bank Limited into Atlas Bank Limited

Pharmacia Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited inte Parke Davis & Company Limited
Union Bank Limited into Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited
Colony Textile Mills Limited and Landsend (Pvt,) Limited into Colony Mills Limited
FirstAllied Bank Modaraba into Allied Bank Limited

Netsol (Pvt.) limited inte Netsol Technologies (Pvt.) Limited

PEL Daewoc Electronics (Pvt.) Limited into Pak Electron Limited

Services (Pvt.) Limited

L I O O I I N R

6.25.2 Approvalsand Permissions

The Companies Crdinance contains a number of provisions that require comp to obtain prior approval of the
Commission or the Registrar before taking a particular action. A larpe number of applications were received during
the year and after consideration of the circumstances of each case, necessary approvals were accorded in the cases
listed in Table 10.

6.2.5.3 Processing of application for grant of license to Associations Not-for-Profit under
section 42

During the year, 45 license were issued to associations not- for pmﬁn The Commission has further facilitated the
incorporation of associations not-for-profit by intrad -wise } for obtaining of license,

Faclhtatmn has also been pruvldcd by rnahng avmlahle mudel Memotanda and Articles of Association and

h

6.2.5.3 Capital Issues

+  IssueofShares Other than Right

Dumgd.gyw,dne: ies applied for| ission toissue shares other than rights to the exdsting sharehald,
and h 1 worth Rs.1.5billion.

allowed toi

»  IssueofPreference Shares
During the year, twe public unlisted companies applied for approval to issue preference shares to the existing
sharehelders. Approval was granted in both the cases te issue preference shares amounting to Rs. 92.9% million.
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6.2.6 Monitoringand Enforcement
6.2.6.1 Action against Forex, MLM and Pyramid Schemes
During the year, RD identified two companies whick were doing unauthorized and illegal businesses of

forex/brokerage/MLM/Pyramid schemes and were deceiving general public. Petitions against these companics have
been filed inthe Lahere High Court.

§.2,6.2Investigations
During the year, the RD p d six applications for investigation of affairs of th panies alleged to be ped
ina depriving the ik fa ble return or jitti ds agai editars.

6.2.6.3 Adjudication of cases under the Ordinance

Dhuring the year, the Registrar of C and the CROs adjudicated 4,746 cases of violation of various provisions
of the Companies Ordinance. In 1,530 cases punitive actions were taken againsterrant companies.

6.2.6.4 Dissolution of Companies

RD disposed of 3,777 cases of dissclution of Ofthese, 7 ies were: ded up under High Court
orders, 39 were wound upvol ily and 3,731 des were struck off from: the register under section 439 of the
C Ordi Thedissalved iies had a paid up capital of Rs, 879.83 million,

6.2.6.5Redressal of Cornplaints

During the period, the RD and the CROs received 164 complaints from different stakeholders while 12 complaints
were brought forward from previous year. Of these, 161 complaints were disposed off during the year while 15
comeplaints were in process at the close of the year.

The complaints mainly pertained to lssuzs relating to deprivation uf rlght issue, non-payment of dmdmd

holding of AGM or impreper helding of non-regi of
transfer of shares, nen-issue of share certificates, non -receipt of notices, Jmpropcr election of directors and non-
receipt of anmual accounts.

6.26.6 E ination of Annual A of Non-Listed Public Companies and Associations
not for Profit
RD cartied out exatnination of annyal accounts of 657 listed public ies and iations not for profit

duting the pericd. Necessary action was undertaken against the errant companies. Show catse notices, warning
notices and explanation letters were issyed to 330 companies for non—complisnce with the statitory requirements,
while 327 accounts were found in order.

6.2.6.7 Administrative Appeals

During the year, four appeals against the orders passed by the concerned registrars were made before the
Executive Director {Registration) and the Registrar of Companies. All of these appeals were disposed off.

Two appeals were made before the Commissicner (CLD) against the orders of Registrar of Companies and

were disposed off. However, one appeal made before the Appellant Bench against the order of Registrar of
Companies, was under process at the close of the year,

49

6.2.7 Developmental Activities
6.2.7.1 eServices Project

Realizing the impertance of information technology and the need to introduce clectronic governance in its
operations, with a view te facilitate the corporate soctor and te case the procedure for submission of returns, the
C has embarked upon a highly ambitious and practical e-Services Project. Through this project, thc
C ission Is p towards the provision of online services to facilitate the general public through the
fo].lowingfunctions:

. Online availability of name
. Online incorporation of companies
. Online filing of statutory returns

This would be a great achievement not only in provision of online services but also in making it easy to access the
records of companies. During the period, modules of th developed and mock trials undertaken.

6.2.7.2ITCN Asia 2006 Exhibition

RD and the IS&T Department jointly participated in the ITCN Asia 2006, held in August 2006. During the
cxhibition, a fast track Company Incorporation Desk for 'on-the-spot’ incorporation of companics was established
and the Commission's guideline baoklets were distributed among visitors to create awarencss. This effort of the
Commission was highly appreciated by local and foreign delegates.

6.2.7.3 Publication of Guideline Bookl
Keeping up with the past endeavours to publish guideline booklets to create public awareness on variotss statutory
matters and to help introduce international best practices in governance, the following guideline booklets
have further been published and placed an the C ission's web site:

- "Translated version of Promaters' Guide in Chinese and Arabic
#  Company Name Availability Guide
- Licensing & Regi ion of As fati Not-for-Profit

6.2.7.4 Placing of Memorandum of Association on SECP's website

RD has developed and placed on the Ci ission's web site, simplified and dardized medel da of

association for various sectors of the for the i of the p of ies and general

public. During the year, model memerandum of association of venture capital business was developed and placed en

web-site. The Commission has plans to develop and provide such medel da and articles of iation for
all sectors of corporate activity.
Complete list of M dadeveloped by the C: ission is available in the £ E

6.2.7.5 Liaisonwith SMEDA for Corporatization of SMEs

SMEDA, in dination with the C ission and other. held a seminar titled “Hassle Free Business
Environment for SMEs” an May 2, 2007 at Karachi in which the Commission amv:ly participated and extended full
cooperation and support to the {ling desk was established at the seminar to disseminate
information about the initiatives taken by the Commission for promotion of SME sector. Benefits of forming a
corporate entity were explained to the visitors,
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62.7.6 Rep jonin Corporate Registers Forum (CRF)

T]m Commission is a Charter Member of the Corporate Registers Forum (CRF), a global association for
i of corpotate and ities registers. Mr. Rashid 1. Malik, Ci issi LD & $MD, . |

the Commission in the AGM of CRF, held at Kuala Lumnpur and Singapore from 16-20 April, 2607. It was jointly

hosted by the Companies Commission of Malaysia ($SM) and the A i ] Cotportate latory Authotity,

Singapore (ACRA).

One of the activities of the AGM was the election of bets for the: for the enstring year. The

Commission was elected as one of its members along with five other member jurisdietions i.¢., England, Canada,
Auystralia, New-Zealand and South- Aftica. Malaysia and Singapore who were hosting the AGM were selected as
honotary members.

Tall

'The focus of the forum.  the evolution of Corporate and inresponse to
the dymmlcs of the business emnmnment and the need to address the challenges and responses in meeting the
fithe busi

6.2.7.7Participation in Finalization of Free Trade Agreements

Pakistan is in the process of finalizing vari 2T for expanding trade in services including the following:
- Pakistan Scrvices Order- WT'O Agreement

- Pakistan- Singapore Free Trade Agreement

. Pakistan- China Negotiations- Free Trade Apr

. Pakistan- Malaysia Frec Trade Agreement

RD extended firll support to the Ministry of Commerce and also gave r on various ing legal
and corporate issues.

6.2.7.8 blisk of JointI Compani

RD facilitated the establist of joint i ies and provided in the pre-incorporation

activities of the following companies:

. Pak-Brunci Joint Investment Cempany Limited incorperated in Nov, 2006
+  PakIranjointh Company Limited incorporated in June, 2007

Facilitation was also extended to PakistanChina Joint Investment Company that got incorporated in July, 2007, Mr.
Nazir Ahmed Shaheen, Executive Director, RD, participated in the pre-incorporation activities in Befjing as a
member of BOl delegation.

6.2,7.9Future Plan

- Extension of Cede of Corporate Governance to Asseciations Notfor Profit

With a view to extend the Code of Corporate Governance to associations not-for-profit, the rules namely
Associations Not-For-Profit under section 42 of the Ordinance (Licensing and Corporate Governance) Rules, have
been drafted which contain the regulatory framework requlremcms in line with the provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance proposed to be applicable on the ions not-for-profit. Presently the draft is at an
advanced stage of consideration.

&1

+  Draft Housing and Real Estate Develop Comp (Establisk and
Monitoring) Regulations, 2007

In Drdr:r o clusely mammr nhe real estate develnpmem secwr, RD has drafted “Housing and Real Estate

and N g) " which lay down camprehenswe
regulawry k for registration, pest incorporati pli and legal i of
operating in housing and real estate develop sector. Draft lations have been prepared after mkmg inte

ideration the vi from. dlegal 1

+  DraftPublic Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2007
To extend the corporate governance initiative to public sector panies, Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2007 have been drafted in r:onsulmnon vmh legal experts. The draft Regulations have
been circulated among varions divisions of the C i for ob g their views/

+  Establishment of a Facilitation Centre at CRO Karachi and Isllamabad

After the 1 letion of a faciliation centre at CRO Lahote, wotk has been started to set up similar
facilitation centres at CROx Karachi and Islamabad to facilitate the general public md the catporate sector. These
centres will go a long way in providing an investor friendly envi JH 5 and assisting in
cotporatization ofbusinesses.

3 Publication of Guideline bookl

The following guideline boakletsare in the process of development:

a. PFrequently asked {FAQs} ak l estate devel
b. Complaint Ledging and Redressal Guide
[ Company Meetings and Resolutions Guide

+  Oifthe Shelf (Ready made) Company

A new concept of ready-made/ off-the-shelf company is being introduced by the RD. A 'shelf company' would be a

previously- mcorpuratcd company which would be readlly available for instant off-the-shelf purchase without the
fime spent in setting up.

A detailed concept paper on Off-the-Shelf Company setting out the modus sperands and the expected benefits of the
idea has been prepared. An awareness campaign was also initiated to get feedback on the concept from varions
quarters beforeits approval by the Commission.

+  Corporate Universal Identification Numbes (CUIN)
As part of the e-services project, the existing registration numbers of companies have been replaced with a new
Corporate Universal Identification Number (CUIN}. The new CUINs will make the e-services processes efficient
and improve service delivery to the corporate sector. CUIN will be a 7-digit unique number linked to another 34
digits to capturc important data for analysis purpose. The Commission will be able ta sort various companics under
any of the given ficlds to get 2 better asscssment of the corperate scene in Pakistan. This will be a comprehensive
numberingsystem which will be implemented shordy.
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. Data Refining Exercise

Data Refining Exercise was started at all CROs to update the daw stered in the Company Registraton and
Compliance Systemn {CRCS), which is the pnmary datalsase holding corporate information of more than 50000
companies. Threugh this exercise the. datais b hecked and updated t its corTectness.

. Scanning and Archiving Project

Scanning and Archiving Project was d to improve effecti of the ional and create a
transparent paperless work environment. The project started from CRO Islamabad. The project is now also in
pregress at CRO Karachi, while file preparation for scanning is underway at CRO of Lahore, Faisalabad and
Peshawar.

. Facilitation Schemes

Facilitation Schemes of Company Easy Exit Schemeand Companies Regularization Schemes willbe re-launched.

. ISO 9001:2000 certification

IS0 $001:2000 certification will be obtained for the RTY and eight field offices through ont Pakistan, in view of their

service-oriented role in prevision of corporate services. To begin with, certification for RD and CRO Islamabad will
be sought.

6.3 Enforcement Departinent (EnfD}

6.3.1 Performance Review

During the year, EnfD) maintained its focus on improving the level of listed corporate sector with the
statutory provisions. The regulatory and enforcement actions were aimed at preventing wnautherised inter-
corperate financing, irregularitics relating to empleyees' provident fund accounts and nen~compliance of ether
statutory provisions.

EnfD reviewed financial statements to ensure that those were prepared in accordance with the preseribed financial
reporting framework. Compliance with corporate laws and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} by
listed companies has shown improvement as a result of vigilance and stringent corporate discipline enforced by the
Department.

Officers of Enfl? in 1 Meeting with ED Mr. Tahir Mahmood
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6.5.2 Regulatory Actions

6.3.2.1 Approval for Placement of Quarterly Accounts on Websites of Companies

To make the information available timely and promote virtual presence, the listed compamies were
allowed/facilitated to place their quarterly accounts on their websites instead of transmitting these by post to the
shareholders, subject ta an undertaking to supply the copies of the quarterly accounts to the shareholders on demand
attheir registered addresses, free of cost within one week of such demand.

During the year, 16 companies were given permission, in addition to 196 companies already permitted in previous
years, to place their quarterly accounts en their websites instead of circulation by post to the members.

6.3.2.2 Approval for Appointment of Cost Auditors

During the year, sixty applmaimns for :ppolmmem of costauditors were approved under the cost accounting record
ordersin ble ghee and cook d sugar industries.

6.3.2.3 Capital Issues (Listed Companies)

Companics can raise further capital by way of right and/or bons issues without the approval of the Commission.
However if companics want te issuc right shares more than once in 2 year or want to raisc their capital witheut the
offer of right shares, they are required to ebtin permissien from the Commission. During the year, EnfD received
23 applications sceking approval ef the Commissien for issue of capital. These applications were dispesed of as
follows:

+  IssueofShareswithout Right

‘Ten applications were received from

toissue shares other than right ¢ the existing
Seven ies were allowed to issue shares other than right under Section 86 (1) of the Companies
Ordinance. One bank was given approval allewing it to issue 600 million erdinary skares at Rs. 10 each, other than
right, toa financial services group with the primary purpose of restructuring. Another company was allowed to issue
shares other than right, from time to tine against conversion of loan amounting to US$ 25 million provided by a
foreign multi-strategy trading fund. One incomplete application was rejected.

. Issue of Preference Shares

During the year, two applications for issue of more then one kind of share capital having different rights and
privileges were received from listed companies. Approvalwas given in one case to issue preference shares to exdisting
shareholders amounting to Rs 700 million. EnfD also granted approval to a Company to issue preference shares,
amounting to Rs.302.5 million, etherwise than right, to certain financial instittions and general public.

+  Relaxation ofRules

During the year, rine applications were received from listed ics for relaxation from the i of
Companies (lssuc of Capital) Rules, 1996. Six of these applications were received from banks for relaxation of the
requirements of law to issue right shares within a period of less than twelve months of the previous issue tomeet the
directions of SBP whereby they were required to increase their paid up capital. Out of the six applications,
requirements ofthe Rules were relaxed in four cases while two were declined being unjustified.
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6.3.2.4 Appl forE in Time for Holding of Annual G 1M g {(AGM)
During the peﬂod 19 listed compames applied for extensmn in time for holding of AGMs, out of which 16
whereas th p were rejected for diffe

6.3.2,5 Approval for Holding of AGM at Places other than the Registered Office

Durmg the year, three companies applied for approval for holding of AGMs in towns other than those where their
d offices: i d towhich Is were accorded having regard to justification provided.

6.3.2.6 Approval for Loans to Directors

During the year, two applications for approval of the grant of loans to dircctors of the companics for the purposc of
purchasc and corstruction of houscs were dealt with. Both applications were approved.

6.3.2.7 Approval for Grant of E: ption from A hing of C lidated Fis ial $

During the year, faur companies submitted applications for grant ef ptien from iy lidated
financial Is were accorded as the requesis were justified.

6.3.2.8 Monitori d Enfc Actions

During the year, the financial of the listed companics were ined and 122 ies were asked to

provide cxplanations with regard to various obscrvations made during the review and cognizance of the default was
taken on different issues,

6.3.2.9Investigations into the Affairs of Companies

During the year, es of i igati Jealtwith on f dismal perfor d i y state
of affairs of the pany and on apprel that k were being deprived of reasonable returns.
P i gainst both thy ies were being finalized at the end of the peried.

6.3.2.10 Actions Against Anditors

Examination of accounts revealed that in certain cases auditors failed to discharge their dutics and responsibilities in
as much as the reports issued by the anditors failed to bring out material facts abeut the affairs of companics or they
cxpressed unqualified or inappropriate opinion.

During the period, fourteen cases of such defanlt were detected. An aggregate fine of Rs.250,000 was imposed an

partrers of three firms whe failed to discharge their dutics and responsibilitics in a professional manner. Further,

proceedings initiated against partners of five firms of auditors were dropped on submission eof satisfactory
lanation'while proceedings in six cases were in process of finalization.

6.3.2.11 Surplus Arising out of Revaluation of Fixed Assets

During the period, proceedings against two companies were initiated for failure to transfer an ameunt equal e
incremental depreciation from Surplus on Revaluation of Fized Assets Account w un-appropriated profit /

lated loss through of changes in equity, w record realization of surplus to the extent of the
ineremental depreciation charge for the period. In one case a fine Rs. 10,000 was imposed on the chiefexecutive of the
company and other directors were reprimanded to be careful in future. Proceedings in the other case were being
finalized atthe end of the period.
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6.3.2.12Irregularities in Provident Fund

During the year, the chief executive of a company was fined for failure to pay everdue amount to provident fund and
was directed to seutle the entire nmsmndmg amount mcludmg the interest accrued. Proceedings initiated against
another company were dropped on submi of y explanation while p lings in third case were in

progess.

6.3.2.13 Irregularities in Utilization of Amount of Security Deposits Received from Dealers

During the period, five cases of irregularities in utilization of amount of security deposlts rece]vr:d from. dealers were
b

detected. Proceedmgs initiated against four compames were dropped on of satisfactory
lized at the end of the period.

whilep fifth company
6.3.2,14 Inter-corporate Financing

During the period, 12 cases of violation of lLaw were noticed where listed companies made advances and investments
i associated concerns without the required approval of the shareholders. A penalty of Rs. 1, 000,000 was imposed on
directors of three companies with warning to be carefill in firture. Proceedings initiated against five companies were
dropped with warningwhile praceedings in four caseswere in process of finalization.

6.3.2.15 Lease out of Project without Sharehoelders' Approval

During the peried, four cases of violation of law en this account were detected. A penaliy of Rs. 130,000 was imposed
on directors of two companics with direction te be careful and vigilant in future in compliance with the
reqmremcnts of l:w in lewcr and spirit. Proceedings initiated against a company were dropped on submission of

1 to comply with requirement of law in future. However, prooe\:dmgs against

¥
anothcrwmpmywhlch disposed of asscts withoutauthori of the shareholders were in process of {

6.3.2.16 Making of False/Incorrect inD

During the petiod under review, teh cases of misstatetnentwere dealtwith and disposed of as below:

- Th d dwherein failed to provide material information and made misstaternents
in the material circulated to sharebolders at the time of approval of right issues and utilized the proceeds of
right issues otherwise than the purpose described earlier. An agpregate penalty of Rs.554,000 was imposed on
the directors of two companies while proceedings initiated against a company were withdrawn with direction
to make good the defaultby buying back 1,824,173 right shares @ Rs.21.95 per share {tom shareholders of the
company.

. Proceedings were initiated against a P i and not p ng information about SBP's
conditions, which was a prier event, while sc::kmg the Commission's appmval to issue 115 million ordinary
shares otherwise than rights to Pakistan Cement Holding Company Led. In view of revival of the dormant
project and to encourage foreign investment, the default was condoned with wamning to comply with the

requirements of law in its true spiritin foture.
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. Proceedings initiated against the anditors of a company whe issued twe certificates en the same date showing
contradictory position of the paid up capital of 2 company. The submission made by the auditors in writing and
at the time of hearing was considered and it was obscrved that the lapse did not appear intentional and ne
benefit scemed to have beer: derived by the auditors or by the company duc te issnance of two certificates. The
anditors upon realizing the mistake issued a revised certificate in regards to the capital of the company before
approval of the prospectus by the Karachi Stock Exchange and the Commission. The default was, thercfore,
condoned with wamning to the auditors to be vigilant and perform their duties and obligations with extreme

carein futore.

. A penalty of Rs.7%0, 000 was imposed on directors of a company for publi and p ion of accounts
for the year ended June 30, 2001, 2002 and 2003 in the AGM without signing of reportbythe auditors of the
company.

. Directors Report of a company did not contain information and explanati ding reservations ined
in the Auditors' Report,. z.lt.houghr.hztwas required nnder the provisions of law: Proceedings initiated against it
‘were dropped as thy pany iplied with the req flaw subsequentl

. Proceedings initiated against 3 company for mi in the ling time schedile of

proformainvoices wete in process of finalization at the end of the year,

. A company had utilized the funds raised by issue of right shares in a marmer which involved disregard of the
commitment made at the time of approval. Proceedings initiated against it in the past were closed with
direction to directors to make good the default by making payment of entire amount of Rs.260 million to the
company.

6.3.2.17 Non-circulation of Abstract on Increase in Chief Executive's Remuneration in the
Directors' Report

During the year, two cases of default for non—circulation of abstract on increase in Chief Executive's remuneration in
the Directors' Report were dealt with. Afier due process pemlty of Rs. 5 000 ‘was imposed on cornpany secretary of

onecompany whereas p: dings in the other case: ppedon ion of sati y

6.3.2.18 Disclosure of Information in Case of Special Business

During the period under review; 120 netices disclosing information of special business were examined and
information disclosed was ebserved to be deficientin some of the cases. Following actions were taken in cases which
were found deficientin disclosure:

. Thirty two companies were directed to cirenlate un-disclosed information ta the sharcholders by way of
“Addendnm”.

- Four companies were directed to disclose material inforraation pointed out by the Commission at the tire of
meeting of the company.

. One company which intended to pass resolution for short term loans and advances to its associated
undertakings out of surplus funds available with it was directed to fellow provisions of Section 195 of the
Ordinance.

‘material facts to the gk

- One companywas direcred ro send holders before holding of AGM.

a7

. One company wis dlrectcdto complymth pmvlsmns of Section 208 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
P fListed Comp { Juisition of Voting Shares and Take Gver) Ordinancs, 2002,

- ings against seven were initiated nnder Section 160 of the Ordinance. A penalty of Rs.
65 000 was imposed on the chief ive of two ies for non-t ission of notice of annual general
meeting and annual accounts to the Cemmission and other directors of the company were reprimanded to be
careful in futnre. Proceedings initiated against two other companies which failed to disclose and annex
statementof material facts with the notice of AGMs were dropped with warnings on submissien of sausfacwry

explanation and assurance to comply with the law in future, However, dings against four
were in process of finalization at the end of the year,
6.3.2.19 Circulation of Quarterly Accounts
Aol of 1581 quarterly. flisted it due to be filed during the period under review: As manyas

1341 such accounts were filed exhibiting 85 percentcompliance rate.

During the period, 58 cases of non/late filing of quarterly accounts were detected. An aggregate penalty of Rs,

3,514,000 was imposed on directors of fuurtccn companies. Proceedmg; initiated against twenty four companies

were dmppcd with warning on sut ion of satisfactory i However, dings against twe
were in process of finalizati

6.3.2.20 Holding of Annual General Meetings

EnfD undertock strict monitoring to ensure that listed companies hold AGMs within the prescribed peried of time.
Out of 529 companies menitered by EnfD during the year, 465 companies held their AGMsin time.

During the year, seventeen cases of non/late holding of AGMs were detected. An aggregate penalty of Rs.1,935,000
was imposed on directors ef ten cornpanies which failed to hold their AGMs while proceedmgs initiated against four
companies for late holding of AGM were dropped with warning on sati ¥ ion. However, p di
against three companies were in process.

6.3.2.21 Direction for Holding of Annual General Meeting

During the period, cight companics were given directions by the Commission te hold overduc annual general
meetings.

6.3.2.22 Calling of AGM of a Companyby the Commission

During the year, the Commission convened the overdue AGMs of a cempany which had failed to hold the meetings
for the years 2004 and 2005, The agenda of the meetings included elections of director's aleng with the approval of
aenual accounts for the years 2004 and 2005, The Commissien in the interest of the shareholders and as per the
direction of Henourable Lahore High Court called the AGMs.

6,3.2.23 Penalty for Default in Complying with the Di
Holding the Meeting

aof the C ission for

During the period, proceedings against two companies were initiated for nen-compliance with the directions given
under Section 170 of the Companies Ordinance for holding of overdue AGMs. The proceedings were in process at
the close of the year.
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6.3.2.24 Non- holding of Election of Directors With-in Prescribed Period

During the period, four cases of default for non-holding of election of directors within prescribed peried were dealt
with. A penalty of Rs. 10,000 was imposed on one director of a company for failure te hold election of directors within
the prescribed period while other directors werg advised to remain careful in ensuring compliance with mandatory
quunemems of the statute. In twa other cases, proceedings were dropped with warnings in view of satisfactory

bmitted by both the ies. However, dings initiated against a company werein progress at
theend of the period.

6.3.2.25 Punisk forNon-C i with Directives of the Commission

During the period under review, six cases of non-compliance with directives of the Commission were dealt with.

Proceedings were initiated against the panies for L with the di given. In one case, the

Commlssmu <called the AGM, the proceedings mmal,ed were: drnpped in another case on submission of satisfactory
P ionwhile the p dings wereinp Ip

6.3.2.26 Enforcing 1i with Provisions of Ordi

During the year, EnfD, after observing different defaults, issued directions to make good the defaults by complying
with the requirements of law. The defaults included among others non-preparation of annual accounts in
accordance with the accounting framework, not addressing the observations of auditors, directors' report not

the full i icn and explanation with regard to observations of auditors, not clarifying entitlement of

fractional shares and failure to provide1marrvial i to the shareholders in AGMs.

6.3.2,27C lidated Fi ial §

During the period, proceedings were initiated against 2 company for failure to attach consolidated financial
statements as required underthe law A fine of Rs 40,000 was imposed on the chiefexecutive of the said company and
other directors were reprimanded to be carefinl in fumre.

6.3.2.28 P of T im Dividend in Ab: f Profit

During the petiod, two cotnpanies had declared interim dividend out of profit after taxbased on quarterly aceounts
but their annual accounts revealed losses for the year. Proceedings initiated against both the companies were in
process of finalization.

6.3.2.29Tssue of Bonus Shares by Listed Companies
During the period, proceedings were initiated against a company for failure to comply with the

requirements of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 for issue of bonus shares and the same was in
process of finalization,

6.3.2.30 Issue of Right Shares by Listed Company

During the period, proceedings were initiated against two companies for failure to comply with provisions
of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 for issue of right shares and the same were in process of
finalization,
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6.3.2.31 Late Sul of Appl for App of Cost Auditor and Cost Audit
Reports
During the yeat, dings against four ies were initiated for fanlurc to comnply with the provisions of the

Companies {(Audit of Cost A Rules, 1998. Considering the sult of the ies, defaults were
condoned with warnings to directors of the eompanies to be carefitl in fitture and discharge their responsibilities as
perthe statiite.

6.3.2.32 Winding up of Companies

During the period, six cases wherein the d regi had sought ions of the C ission for filing of
winding np petitions in the respective High Courts against companies which had defaulted in holding twe
consecutive AGMs or had suspended business for more than cne year were dealt with. In one case, the concerned
registrar was authorized te file a petition in the Hon'ble High Court for winding up of the company: In the other case,
preceedings in the matter were closed on receiving copy of the Hon'ble Lakore High Court's erder for winding up
the company on petition of a creditor. However, proceedings in four cases were in progress.

6.3.2.33 Investors' Grievances

During the period, EnfD resolved 982 cemplaints out of 1004, whereas on ining 22 laints were
songht from the concerned companies. The complaints were mainly related to non-receipt of dividend warrants,

non-encashment of dividend warrants, delay/nen-transfer of shares and issue of duplicate shares, non-receipt of
annual and interim accounts, wrongful deductien of Zakat, non-holding of AGM, non-circulatien of notice of
meeting, etc.

6.3.2.34 Administrative appeals

During the year, a number of orders were passed imp of different YP

of law and issuing directions to make good the defaults itted by the listed i appeals were
filed against the arders of ED/Directors of Enfl). OQut of these, the Appellate Bench upheld h ders passed by the
Director and ED under sections 158 and 171 of the C Ordi; y. In one case, the Appell
Bench while upholding the order passed by the ED for appointraent of a m firm as inspector of company te
conduct investigation of the company, directed to appoeint one of the officers of EnfD) to investigate the issues
identified by the ED and on receipt of the Inspector's report, a decision would be made regarding further action as
may be required. However, thirteen appeals have yet to be adjudicated by the Appellate Bench.

penalties for

6.3.2.35 Judicial appeals

During the year, two appeals were filed in the Hon'ble High Court of Lahore by a company. One appeal was filed
against the order passed by the Appellate Bench ef the C ission on its three revision petitions. The Appellate
Bench upheld the penalties imposed by the Director Enfl> and the ED on directors of the company for failure to hold
two consecutive AGM of the company and non-compli with the direction of the C ission to held its
ovcrduc AGM. Th:Appellatc B:nch alsc directed the company to hold both the AGM and the election of directors

delay. The company- ther appeal in the Courtagainst calling of overdue AGM of the company by the
Commissicn itself exercising its power in the best interest of the stakeholders as the company failed to comply with
the direction of the Appellate Bench with regard to holding of overdue AGM. The Hon'ble Lahore High Court,
Lahore in its order dated January 19, 2007, has sct aside the Commercial Appeal No. 1/2607 of the Company for stay
order against the Commission's dircction to hold the AGM. The Hon'ble Court directed that the AGM be held as
envisaged by the Commission. The AGM of the Company was held on January 25, 2007 as determined by the
Commission and ¢lection of directors was also condncted. The Hon'ble Court has directed the Commission te
dispose of the matter relating to the takcover laws, which is sub=judice before the Hon'ble High Conrt.
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6.3.2.36 Development Activities

The C issi idering the imp of the credit rating information for overall health of the financial
systern and also to safeguard the interest of prospective investors, depositors and creditors, directed all listed
companies to-disclose the name of eredit rating agency and exact rating instead of rating band or category only. It was
also directed that all the credit ratings shall be disclosed with the name of credit rating agencies, if more than one
credit rating was obtained, instead of publishing the higher rating.

6.3.2.37 Fraud Investigation Unit (FIU)

The C ission is i ng governance in the listed companies and has shown its resolve to bring
in transparency in the affairs of the hstcd companies by setting up a Fraud Investigation Unit {FIU). The unit aims to
develop strong frand detection and i mvesnganon structure which creates deterrence and investigates cases of serious
fraud. FIU is conducting multi-d; 1 ions under different laws and regulations administered by
various divisions of the Commissicn.

“Working strategy envisaged for FIU fundamentally comprises of Intelligence led investigations, through diversified
investigation teams comprising of experts in their specialized areas, extensive research and capacity building on
forensic mv:stlgatmns fmnung of new and effective laws and strategic partnership with other regulators, both local
and international, law ies and insti

During the year, FIU concluded a number of i igations i thr:e llstcd Ip therehy uncmhingz
wide range off:muds Iving of P laws. Main vi d were

financial Tudi: of revenues & sales, breaching statutory and ﬁduclary duties by t.he
directors of listed panies , unlawful of ing agent, insider trading, designing and effecting

fraudulent acts, misleading audit repuns hy smtutnry & cost auditors, failures of stack brekers to carry out
appropriate due dilj d failure of kers to comply with their statutory obligations.

In one case, FIU after conducting investigatien found out that the directors of Ahmed Spinning Mills Limited
(ASML) disposed off ASML's investment in shares of M/s United Sugar Mills Limited (USML} te Clearshore ata
price of Rs. 16per share. Sut ly, the personal holding of ASML's directors and Clearshore's holding in USML
were sold off, ith coatrol, ata price of Rs. 333 per share, thus depriving ASML's sharcholders of
their rightful share of Rs. 213.425 million. The Commission imposex an aggregate penalty ofRs 10 nulllonan/s
Clearshore, its directors and directors of ASML for violation of the Listed Companics (§ ion of
Voting Shares and Tak:w:rs) Ordi 2062. The C: i alsa ined M/s Clearshore and the dircctors
of ASML from receiving the balance consideration of the sale and directed thatthe amountbe held in trust.

In another case, FIU invcsﬁgatcd complaint against M/S Hala Enterpriscs Limited for disposing off a picce of land
for satisfying bank Liabilitizs of an associated private limited company. The sale of land, sale proceeds and receivable
from associated company were not recorded in the bwlﬁ of th: company to conceal the transaction. Thus the
financial statements placed before the sharchold:

6.3.4 Future Plans

EnfD aims to pursue its next generation of reforms. The landscape is broad, but the following are identified as the
key areas of reform, work en which is part of the Future Work Flan for 2007-08:

- ing of Code of C Gaovernance (CCG}

‘Compliance with the CCG is monitored by the EnfD>. Itis proposed that its
overtime as the CCG is largely there for voluntary compliance.

must be made datory
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. Strengthening the Fraud igation Unit (FILT)
The FIU was established as a high priority agenda item for the Commission and this unit mainly targets the
prevention and detection of white-collar financial crimes. Identification of such crimes is largely a function of the
EnfD, which reviews the financial reports and identifies areas of further inquiry. Close coordination with the FIU
and synergetic development in this area would be-a key next generation reform area for the EnfD.

*+  TImprove Vigilance on Auditors
In order to ensure thar auditors of listed companies perform their dutes diligendy and discharge their

responsibilities effectively under the statute, a dambase of andit firms will be developed and usedzs a navl@nnn ool
toimprove the performance of the auditors and establish effecti oflaws and

+  Databases

The availability of both financial and non-financial information database is vital for tracking the performance and
effectively monitoring the companies over the years. A repository of historical financial and non-financial data will
be developed containing relevant and reliable information that assists in effective application of analytical
techniques.

+  Intelligence led enforcement
To deter against the increasing trend of corporate fraud, EnfD intends to play a proactive role in developing

precedures to prevent and detect frauds in a timely manner. Financial analysis ef the companies will be conducted te
identifyand detect fraud or fraud risk.

*  Educatingemployees of compani
In-house awareness/training will be conducted for of the particularly directors, CEOs,
CFQs and p ies, to increase and improve gavernance by

utilizing the facilities available at the Paldstan Instinte of Corporate Governance.
+  In-house Investigation
Capacity of the officers of the Commission would be built for independent and result otiented investigation of

corpotate affairs. The inspection of records of listed cotnpanies will be carried ont to improve compliance and to take
uplimited scopeinvestigations under Section 231 of the Companies Ordinance.
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Securities Market Division

OBJECTIVE: ' develop and promote a fair and modern eapital market in Pokistan, protert investors through an efficiently
vegulated matket and facilitate capital formation.

7.1 Operational Strocture

7.1.1 Structure

Securities Market Division (SMD) plays 2 fundamental role in maintining the integrity and vitality uf the markets
and protecting the interests of investors. It strives o hen the integrity and dness of the markets

for the benefit of i and other market partici ate] to duct its wotk in a matner that is as sophisticated,
flexible, and dytamic as the securities markets it regulates.

SMD s entrusted with the tasks of institut i latory k to develop and promote the market,
enhance transpzrency, promaote eﬂ'ccuvc risk mzmgement and ensure good governance at the stock exchanges,

central d patty and national cleari pany to enhance investor confidence. Tt
is responsible for regulation of all aspects ofthe ital market including licensingand i

SMD regulates the pmmryznd secondzry market actvities as well as market intermediaries. The scope of activities

i and rule making. SMD processes
and grants approvals of prospecmscs for public offerings of both debt and equity securities and performs the
oversight function for monitoring the working and activities of commodity exchange and ather players in the capital
market.

SMDis divided into following Wings:

Steck Exchanges, Dcpos]tory;md Clcanngand Pohcy and Regulation
Monitoringand Surveill

Capital Issues

Commodity Exchange

Brokers Registration and Inspection.

Investor Complaints

“ e

7.1.2 Management Team

Mr. Rashid 1. Malik, Commissiencr, oversces SMD. He is a Chartered Accountant by profession. He also holds a
Master's Degree in Economics and posscsses over thirty years of professional experience in business operation,
finance and ingin Pakistanand U.K.

To cxpand its outreach to the stakeholders and regulatees in the souch:m region, the Commissien :shbhshcd a
regional office in Karachi and Mr. Zafar Abdullah, a Chartered A byp ion, joined the C i in
December 2006, as Excentive Director {(SMD-Sonth). Mr. Imtiaz Haider, Exccutive Director, was head of
SMDNorth. Both the Exccutive Directors were assisted by a number of professionals inclnding lawyers, chartered
acconntants, financial analysts, and business prads

Mr. Imtiaz Haider left the Commission subsequent to the clase of the year.
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Departmental/Wing Heads of SMD

7.2 Capital Market Overview

During FY2007, the Katachi Stock Exchange 100 Shares Index (KSE-100 index) incteased by 38 percentand closed
at 13,772 ah 29 Tune 2007which was the highest through out the year, Market capitalization of the KSE surged te
Rs.4,019.42 billion (US$ 6633 billian), an increase of 43 percent over FY2006 market capitalization of Rs.2,801.18
billien (US$ 46.65 billion),

ForKSE agl Table 11instatistical section, Agraphical ionis given below:

Figure 6: KSE-100 Index Daily Turnover at KSE (July 2006-June 2007)
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Figure 7: KSE Market Capitalization and Daily Traded Value (July 2006-June 2007)
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Figure 8: Traded Value in Ready and Futures Markets at KSE {July 2006-June 2007)
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7.3 Performance Review

Through a variety of rule making and other initatives, SMD continuced to modernize and refine its administered
regulations in order to facilitate innovation and ition while p ing the interests of i

SMD acuvelypursu:d its goals to increase mvestur conﬁd:ncc, proa:uvelyund:rtak: market reform initiatives and

further dthe risk Kby imp ofsustainable risk

aimed at minimizing systemic risks. SMD's mltlauv:s and reforms contributed towards a high level of i ml,eg;my and
in terms of price di y and trad which was mil dinth dinary growth of the

capllal marketin the country.

On December 04, 2006, SMD impl d a new risk regime based on internationl best practices,

which had over the time become ineffective and stale. New risk hodology was i dina

phased manuer, to minimize the chances of negative effects on the market which might have developed in
consequence of asuddenchange.

SMD, in consultation with market participants, took major strides towards removing various impediments in the
development of Centinuous Funding Systern (CES) Mk 11, a product aimed at replacing the existing CFS product.
CFS MkII, will be an independent market funding product run on the platform of National Clearing Company.

As a step towards boosting investor confidence, the capital gains tax exemption has been extended till June 2008 and
stamp duty on transfer of shares has been deferred for two years.

In pursuance of the Commission's objective to increase market transparency and improve its surveillance capacity,
Universal (Client) [dentification Number {(UIN) System at the stock exchanges was implemented with cffect from
August 01, 2006. The system was further refined from time to time through out the year, based on feedback of the
cnd-users. In order to maintain the authenticity of the UIN database, a databasc cleansing exercise was alse
wndertaken by NCCPL.

7.4 Development of Laws and Regulations

T41A d: in National Clearing and Settlement System (NC5S) Regulations

On iber 27, 2006, the C {ssion app ] ! in the NC$$ regulations relating to UIN to
further elaborate the existing working functionality of UIN. More wete made in NCSS regulations
based on oper:muml feedback received from matket i of eash-settled futire
contract ! in NCS$ 1 Thus clearing mechanism was modified to allow
settlemnent of daily mark-to-market profits and losses. With the lagneh of Umﬁcd ‘Trading Systern, certain chmges
wcre tequited in the IDS module 'hemg loyed by NCCPL; i d in NCS$ regul e

pprovedby the C i Juringthe year.

7.4.2 Unified Trading System Regulations

The Commission on April 8, 2007 appraved Unified Trading System (UTS) lations of Lahore Stock Excl

(G) Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange (G) Limited. The intreduction of a unificd trading platform will enable
the exchanges to expand their trading activities and enter inte 2 new era which envisages increased trading volumes,
‘better price discovery, and a better quality of trade execution for the investors. As the UTS employs state-of-the-art
technology, the stock exchanges will be able to pravide a modern, efficient trading infrastructure for the execution of
investors' orders, for effective monitoring and surveillance, promoting and protecting investors' interest and
increasing the transparercy and efficiency of the transactions. The introduction of this trading facility would help
reduce fragmentation of our local markets and facilitate the introduction of new diverse products to cater to various
needsof thei ,leading toap 5y ingofour markets.
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743 AmendmentsinListing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges

In February 2007 the C ission approved d in the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges for the
purpose of inclusion of a list of services that an auditor of a listed company cannot provide. This would effccively
preventsituations of conflict ofinterest.

744 A d. in the General Regnlations of the Stock Exchanges

+  Arbitration Procedure: Tofurther line the arbitration procedure at the stack exchanges' level, the
Commission on March 19, 2007 approved amendments in the General Regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange
(G) Limited. To avoid any possible conflict of interest during Lhe Arblt\".\tmn proceedings these Regulations provide
for the constitution of a Panel of Experts isting of havingknowledge/ experience in the
field of law; trade, commerce, industry, arbitration, securities market and/or fields ancillary to the stock market.

+  Segregation of Client's Assets from Broker's Assets: In orcer to provide for segregation of client’s

cash assets in line with international best practices and to ensure that client's assets are not misused, the Commission

on September 1, 2006 app: 1 d in the Exch ! General lations. These lations reqiire
broket to maintain 4 separate bank account for his client's cash assets and ensure that margin deposited in form of
ecutitiesi intained in 2 separate sub. 1t ofinvestor accotint.

+  Manner of Confirmation of Orders of Investors by the Brokers: For the purposes of bringing
the General Regulations of the steck exchanges in line with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Rules,
1971 dealing with the manner of con.ﬁrmanan of trade orders of investor by broker, the SECP on May 25, 2007 and
September28,2007 approved in the General Regulations of KSE.and LSE respectively. (This will assist
enha.nr:mg mnspan:ncy and reducing disputes between brokers and clients).

745 Regulations Governing Members' Office(s)/ Branch office(s} for Conducting the
Business and Trading of Shares & Securities Within/ Outside Exchange Building

In order to ensure increased investor protection and promote equity investment in the country, it was considered
essential to introduce regulztions governing “Members' Office{s)/Branch office(s} for Conducting the Business and
Trading of Shares & Sectrities Within/Qutside the Stock Exchange Building”. The Regulations were approved by
Commission for both LSE and KSE on April 10, 2007and June 11, 2007 respectively. Whereas these regulations had
alreadybeen approved for the ISE earlier.

746 Regulations governing Deliverable Futures Contracts

On Angust 011, 2007 the Ci issi d d in Regulations Governing Deliverable Futures

Contracts of the Karachi Stock Exchange lh:reby Testricting sales posltmn in excess of (.25 % of the free float of any

scrip unless there is a pre-existing interest of the investor on a UIN basis. This has becn implemented with the
1

purposes of improving and frther chening the p risk

74.7 Continuous Funding System Regulations, 2006

On October 9, 2006, the Commissior approved Continucus Funding System Regulations 2006 thereby repealing
the earlier Continuous Funding Systern Regulations 2005, The new Regulations cemprebensively cover various
areas/operations of the CFS market including segregation of CFS and Ready markets, netting regime for exposure
purposes, linking of CFS premium rates to a i of KIBOR, i ion of a condition that CES
securities shall be held in CDC blocked CFS Account, allowing broker CES financier to pledge proprietary CFS
financed scrips asd P upon payment of margins, etc.
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748 Amendmentsin Karachi Automated Trading System Regulations

On Oceober 16, 2008, the C issi d d in the Karachi Autematcd 'lhdmg Sysccm
Repulations (KATS} incorporating ncccssary provlsmns in relation to the i duction of Unique Id
Number (LJIN} at the exchanges wie.£ Angust 1, 2006, LJIN is cxpecsed 1o signi Iy cnhance risk at

the client level Lhcrcby bringing in MOrC transparency and improving surveillance and monitoring capacity of the
stock excl wellas the C

749 Regulations Governing Cash Settled Futures Contract (CSF Contracts)

In order to provide the investors with diversified trading instruments and to bring-ir more derivative products, the

Cotmmission h:;d been working on the inttoduction of standardized Cash-Settled Fugures (CSF) Contract in line

with i l l:est Ppractices. A Jingly, on Februaty 21, 2007 and May 17, 2007 the Commission approved
lations governing CSFC the KSEand LSE respectively.

7.5 Developmentof New Products
751CFSMkLII

In order to facilitate eransparent and efficient financing for the market, the Commission proposed authotization of
direct leverape finance in form of CFS Mk II by cligible brokers, banks and nan-banking financial institutions.
Further, with the purposes of providing a level playing field for the Lahore and Islamabad markets, centralized CES
MEITis being developed by NCCPL in collaboration with the KSE.

CFS Mk Il would allow a level playing field for all marker participants. Irwould also allow for case of transactions and
hassle-free ion whereby financial instituti ould pravide financing to the stock market direcdly through the
NCSS platform. Mareover, a steady and assured souree of liquidity at competitive rates would be available to all
market players causing overall marketactivity to increase.

The C ission, in June 2006, d a high powered committee to address matters relating to CFS Mk Il and
o work out deeails for its implementation. Subsequently, m]muary 2607 CFS Mk II Implementation Committee
(the Committee) was formed to move from 1 ion. The C i under the
Chairmanship of Mr. Shankat Tarin and :ompnsmg rcprcsmmtlv:s of the three stock exchanges, the SECRE
MUPEAR stock brokers and bankers had held varions meetingswith the stakeholders.

Based on the feedback received from the stakeholders, the Committee further refined the initially proposed
mechanism of CFS Mk L, together with threshing outvarions roadblocks in its eventmal impl ion during the
year under ideration. The C ittee has y finalized the draft werking paper of the said product and
currenty steps are under way toimplement the said productsoon.

7.5.2 Cash Settled Futures Contracts (CSF Contracts)

The C i dthe lations Governing CSF Contract for the KSE on February 21, 2007, after which
the CSF Market becam.e operational at the exchange from April 2, 2007, initially trading in 3 scrips. CSF Market
being a derivatives market provides ancther avenue of financing for the capital market, increasing the liquidity
thereof
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753Fi 1 {FIs) System

During FY-2007, the Commission actively pursued the development of a system of Margining the Financial
Institutiens (FI) who at present do not tender margins to the Brokers for the wades executed on their behalf. As the
quantumn of such trading activity is very substantial, it puts an enormous burden on the broker community who are
compulserily obliged to tender margins to the exchange and/or NCCPL for all the trading activities carried out by
them on behalf of their clients.

In order to ease the burden of the brokers and to further bind the ﬁnanmalmsumuans for their trades and provide an

efficient and effective base for submission of margins by l.hern, the Ci Jeveloped F1 M System in
consultation with the various d parties. A was gstablished under the chai hip of Mr. Igbal
Hassan, President, NIB Bank Lu. and isting of ives of the Cs ission, the three stock exct
MUFAR various brokers and bankers to address issues relating to unplemenmmn of Fls Margmmg System. Tl:e
Committee finalized the modus operandi for ing systern and developed the necessary Y

forits implementation.

‘The systern hasbeen implemented by NCCPLin ber 2007 and the sali thereofareas follows:

- Margins deposited by FI's directly wich NCCPL

. Release of Margins of Brokers once margins deposited by corresponding FI's

- Default management by NCCPLin case of | Non Broket CleztmgMemher

.

Risk Managementof Non Broker Clearing Memberat NCCPL
7.54 TFreeFloatIndex

KSE-30 Sensitive Index based en free float of scrips was putin place with effect from Septemnber 1, 2006, There had
been a need to introduce a free float index that is a representative of the market as the capitalization weighted KSE 100
Index was not representative because of aver weightage of a few scrips. Free float means prepertion of total shares
issued by a company that are readily available for trading at the stock exchange. It generally excludes the shares held
by controlling di Ver and other locked-in-shares n ilable for trading, Free-
float index gives a much better market representation than indexes constructed on the basis of total market
capitalization of the companics.

755 Unified Trading System (UTS) Platform

After approval of the UTS Regulations of LSE and ISE by the Commission in April 2007, the UTS system went live
o April 30, 2007 With the inception of UTS, it is expected that a healthy state of competition would oceur and asa
result thereof, the securities market of the country particularly both LSE & ISE would progress. One of the
advantages of UTS to the members of ISE would be the direct aceess to a larger market eliminating control issues
such as custody of securities, payments, etc. currently being faced while trading throngh KSE members.

756 IntroductionofT+2

Th ulintroduction ofa shorter Settl Cycle T+2and repl of T+3 with effect{rom August 6,
2007 at the stock exchanges has brought eur market at par with va.nuus international Junsdlcuuns and assisted in
reducing the overall settlement risk in the market. The reduction in cycleisalso b l to the brokers
asitprovides them a relicfin their capital ad and i

7l

7.6 Regulatory Actions
7.6.1 Risk Management

In order to bring the risk management framework in line with international best practices and standards, the
Commission took major strides towards impl ion of a new Risk A System (RMS) at the bourses
of the country. In line with the procedure followed in other reform measures, the Commission adopted a
participative and consultative process while developing the new RMS and detailed sessions/ mestings in this regard
were held with the stakeholdersincluding, broker: and BoDs of the stack exch

The new RMS, which was implemented in a phased manner, has changed the existingregime in the following areas:

Netting Regime

Initial Murgining Regime

Special Margins

Client-level Netting Regime
Mark-to-market Losses

FPosition Limits

Valuation of Sccuritics (Haircuts Regime)

DR Y

7.6.1.1Netting

A comprehensive market wide netting scheme was intreduced through the new RMS whereby depending on the
varions different types of risks faced by a particular market, different netting regimes were introduced in different
markets. Furthermore, previously, netting was allowed across different settlement periods, which has been done
awaywith cffective December4, 2006,

7.6.1.2Initial Margining Regime

Before December 4, 2006, the margins on members' exposures in Ready/CFS and Futures Market were caleulated
using “slab-based rates”. This slab-based system did not take into account individual volatility and liquidity of shares
and thus the margin rates increased only if there was a change of exposures slab. Under the New RMS, initial
margins are calculated using VaR-based system. VaR is a state of the art risk management system practiced
internationally and takes into account risk associated with each share based on historical data. Initially the VaR-based
margins are being applied at concessionary percentages in Ready and CFS Markets, and these percentages are
increasingby 1% every week and will reach 100% on November 19, 2007.

7.6.1.3 Special Margins

In erder to curb volatility and to mitigate systemic risk in the market, special margins have been introduced. These
margins are payable on a daily basis only where the weighted average transaction cost of a scrip in the CFS or Future
Deliverable Markets with respect to a client, is different by more than 10%, from 26 weeks moving average price of
that scrip in the Ready Market. In the Futures Deliverable Market, special margins are applicable on both long &
short positions whereas in the CFS Market special margins apply to long positions only.

7.6.1.4 Client-Level Netting Regime

Client-level Netting (CLN) Regime in all the markets was impl d writh effect from the following dates:

«  ReadyMarket: February 1,2007
»  CFSMarkes: February1,2007
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+  Deliverables Futures Market: May Contracts {April 23, 2007)
»  Cash-settled Futures Market: April Comtracts (April 2,2007)

Under this regime, the exposures are calculated at client level (based en UIN basis) and ne netting is allowed
between long and short positions of dﬂer:nt clients. Exposures calculation en UIN basis means that netting is
allowed in the same scrip and iod ofasingle cli der the same broker. In other words, netting
of such positions ef the same client acrass brekers is notallowed.

7.6.1.5 Mark-To-Market Losses

Mark-to-marketlosses are callected 100% in cash in all the markets on a daily basis. Mark-to-market {MTM) profits
in CSF Market are distributed on a daily basis, while profits in Deliverables Futures Market are distributed on a
‘weekly basis to the extent of 20% of apening rate of contract. Under Client Level Netting regime, netting of MTM
profitsand losses in different scrips, in same settlement period of a single client under the same broker are allowed.

7.6.1.6 Position Limits
Market wide, member wide and client wide position limits have been introduced in the market to avoid

concentration of positions and to restrain investors from being over leveraged. These limits have been linked with
the free float of the scrip and d to minimize the possibility of any marketat

7.6.1.7Valuation of Securities (Haircuts Regitne)

Significant amount of margins against exposures in all the markets are placed in the form of eligible securities.
However, since the realization of securities might be different from their current market values ina d:ﬁultso:nann,
£

thevalues of such securities to be accepted as margins need to be adjusted inad 1di this
risk. The percentage by which the securities are adjusted downwards is called the “haircut”.

Previously, the values of eligible scrips were calculated on a criteria based on the company's EPS and a flat-haircut
percentage. However, in erder to effectively categorize the collateral after December 4, 2006, the haircuts regime has
‘been revised, so as to prescribe haircnts for different scrips based on their liquidity and volatility.

7.6.2 IssueofCapital

The Capxml Tssues Wing (CIW') dcals with the approval of prosp ind offer for sale d for public offer
of The prosp. for sale d of any pany inviting publie subseription of its securities
under the Companies Ordinance is rcqmred to be approved by the Commission prior to its issue, circulation, and
publication.

The CIW also matters ding issuance of ial papers, of SFVs, Empl Stock
option Schemes, appli for relaxation from i relating to the pubhc oﬁ'enng of securities and
matters regarding making of fictiti licati: ind submission of more than by asingle appli

for subscription of shares.

During the year under review, eleven {11) companies issued or affered shares to the public as compared to seven (07)
in FY¥2006. New capital of Rs. 7.308 billion was listed in FY2007 as compared to Rs. $.601 billion in FY2006.

ilarly, nine (09) des isstted debt i ie. TECs to the public, as compared to eight {08) in the
preceding year. TECs of Rs 11.650 billion were listed during FY2007 as compared ¢ Rs 10.505 billion in FY2006. For
details see Table 12 & 13 in Stasistical section.
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7.6.2.1 Share Capital

Of the eleven (11) equity issues during FY2007, seven (07) were fresh through which 149.285 million ordinary
shares amounting to Rs. 1722.497 million (inchusive of| premlum amount of Rs. 229.642 million) were offered o the
general public. Ofthe total seven issues, four (04} ibed while thres (03) were undersuk 5

Figure 1:Number of Equity Issues to Public during the FYs 1998-2007
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7.6.2.2Redeemable Capital

During the year, nine (19} companies made public offer of TFCs involving an aggregate amount of Rs, 11.550
‘billien. An amount of Rs. 11.650 billion {inclusive of green-shoe option) was raised, of which Rs. 7.278 billion was
through pnvate Pplacemzentand Rs, 4.372 billion was from the general public. Of thesenine {09) TFC issues, twoe (02)
were bscribed. Table 13 the TFC efferings during the year under review:

TEC Issues Floated During Fys 1996-2007
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7.6.2.3 Section 18-A of the 5 and Excl Ord 1969

During the year under review, 446 cases containing submission of fictitious and multiple applications in viclation of
Section 18A of the Sceurities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 were rcportcd in 07 different lPOs Orders in twenty-
seven: cases were passed and an amount of Rs.540,010/- d in ¥ cases, ining cascs are
currently under process.

7.6.2.4 Takeovers

hold §i

T protect the interest of minority sh and & iolation of the regulatory requirements in respect
of substantial acquisition of shares and takecver of companies, enfercemnent actions, under the Listed Cempanies
(Substantial Acquisition ef Voting Shares and Takeovers) Ordinance, 2002 {Takeover Ordinance) were taken in the
cases of substantial acquisitior: of shares of (i) Mubarak Textile Mills Lud.; and {ii) Wazir Ali Industries Ltd, and
penalties were imposed upon the Acquirers and persons acting in concert. Further, during the FY2007 Public
Arnouncement of offer by various Acquirers under the Takeover Ordinance were made in sixteen (16} cases. The
detail of these Public Announcement of Offer are given in Table 14,

7.6.2.5 Investor Awareness

It has been observed during Initial Publlc Oﬂ'ermgs (lPOs) of shares of various companies that individual investors

submit fictitious and multiple appli in 1 of the p of Section 18A of the Securities
and Exct Ordi 1969. For of the general puhhc, t.he e ission has initiated a ign. The
purpose of this ign is to create. amongthe that mald) Fictiti licati
and submission of more than one application in the name of one person for subscription of shares of ies is
strictly prohibited under the law and in case of viclation subscription money of such applicants shall be confiscated
under Section 18A of the Ordi This ign includes publication of Warning Netices (both in Urdu &
English Language) in all the leading newspapers at the time of initial public offering of shares, dissemnination of
warning notices to the stock exch for circulation amaong all of their bers and on their websites.

‘The said warning notices are also issued to all the bankers to the issue for placing the same on prominent places in the
Bank branches.

7.6.2.6Issue of Securities outside Pakistan

During the period under review, the Commission allowed three (03) companies te issue & list Global Depository
Receipts (GDRs) outside Pakistan under Section 62A of the Cempanies Ordinance, 1984. Similarly the
Commission has allowed two ((2) companies to issue foreign currency bonds outside Pakistan under Section 624 of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The detail of these issues is given below:

5.No. | Name of Company Nature of Security Amount

(US $ in million)
1 United Bank Limited Global Depository Shares (GDSs) 565
2 Azgard Nine Limited Foreign Currency Bonds 400
3 il & Gas Development Global Depository Shares (GDSs) 772

Company Limited
4 MCB Bank Limited Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) 150
5 Palqstan Mobile Foreign Currency Bonds 400
ions Limited
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7.6.3 Registration of Brokers and Agents

Brokers and Agents are required to be registered with the Commission under the Brokers and Agents Registration
Rules 2001,

7.6.3.1Brokers

At the end of financial year 2007 total number of brokerage honscs registered with the C: ission stood at 312 as
compared ta 311 at the end of the last financial year. During the year under review only one new broker was
registered with the Commission. However, 81 individual brokerage houses of the stock exchanges converted their
stalus into corporate entitics during financial year 2006-2007. Upon conversion from individual to corporate
entitics, th:lr licenses as bmk:r were converted from individual to corporate. The details of registered brokers and
their rom individual to corp itics in tabular form are given as under:

Details Corp Brokets Individual Total Brokers
Brokers

As of 30-06-2006 190 121 m

Change during 2006  -2007 82 (81) 1

(due to conversion/addition)

As of 30-06-2007 272 40 312

The details of Stock Exchange-wise categorization of brokers into corporate and individual are as follows: -

Stock Exchange Corporate Individuals Total Brokers
Brokers
KSE 156 14 170
LSE 67 23 %0
ISE 49 3 52
Total 272 40 1z
It <an be observed that percentage wise KSE had 54% of the total brokers repi d with the C; issi pared

0 29% of LSE followed by 17% of ISE.
7.63.2 Agents

The statistics with respect to certificates granted ta agents as of June 30, 2007 are presented in the table below.

Stock Number of Agents Addition Cancellationy Surrender | Number of Agents
Exchange as on 30.06.2006 During the Year of Registration as on 30.06.2007

KSE 197 130 52 275

LSE 95 62 18 146

ISE 15 20 2 33

Total 307 219 72 454
76
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Compliance with the requirements of the Brokers and Agents Registration Rules, 2001 was ensured and appropriate
punitive measnreswere taken in cases of violations.

7.6.3.3 Enforcement of Section 5A of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

‘The robuzst pr of the stockexch has atracted sut iali from i all over Pakistan.

As a result, many smzk bmkers of l.he e)mhmges have opened their branches in varieus cites of the muntry
o getting th d with the C i and leting the required to

facilitate local investors, However, the C ission received repor laints from varicus sources that some

unauthorized brokers/agents were dealing in the securities business in various towns and cities in viclation of

Section 5-A of the Securities and Excl i 1968.

T curb the activities of these illegal and horized entities, a hensi ign weas | hed during the

year 2006 to protect the interest and confidence level of investors and general public.

In this context, a detailed circular dated 4 January 2006 was issued to the stock exchanges of the couniry with the
instructions to notify all their Members to operate I:ranch uﬂ'lce (s} enly after duly informing the exchanges and in
smct li wlth licabl rules and it kers were advised to refrain from dealing with
such illegal/ ized brok foranck and to mform the exchange and the Commission if any such
entities came to their knowledge The chhanges were required to advertise in newspapers - especially in the cities
of Faisalabad, Mulian, Bat Khan, Peshawarand any other cities deemed necessary - warning the
general public to refrain from dealing with such elements.

The exchanges were also advised to establish a dedicated help line to di te the general public
about the status of the brokerage houses and their authorized branches and widely publicize this facility in the
national media, Karachi being the hub of securities dealing, SECP established its Securities Market Division SMD
(Seuth) in Karachi. The SMD threugh its continued vigilance and quick disposal of investor complaints is closely
monitoring the dealers/agents to curb this menace of legal brokerage houses and restore investor cenfidence in the
capital market. The move against these illegal entities was taken up on priority basis during the year 2007, and as a
result uf the above soeps, the number of complaints received during the year on this account bave reduced

as 1to the ling year. During FY 2007, SMD (North) received only 03 complaints as
¢otnpared to 19 complaints in the year 2006, These 5 complaints were received from the provinces of NWEP and
Sindh, while in the year 2006 most of the complaints against illegal brokerage houses/branches were from the
provinee of Punjab,

Since the establishment of SMID (Sotith) i December 2006, complaitts pertaining to the KSE are being dealt by
SMD (South). Dyting this petied 2 cases of lllegal brokerage houses wete received by SMD {(South), Thorough
investigation was condiicted in all the ¢ases, including undisclased visits to the business addresses of the entitics
reported through Compaty Registration Offices and by SMD officials, The status of the above casesis as unders

No of [llegal Brok Hbouses/Branches reported 07
Final order Issued 03
Houses/Branches found legal /regil d 03
In process 01

7

7.7  Monitoringand Enforcement
7.71 Market Monitoring and Surveillance

The MarkstMommnng and Surveillance Wing (MSW) is responslble fur ensun.ng that stock exchanges, being front
line ) quately carry out their fu the market, detecting unfair market
practices and ensuring adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulsuuns In order to meet this objective, the MSW
has its own dedlcaned team of officers wh\ch monitors the day to day trading of the stock exchanges and carries out
detailed i intoi practices identified.

During the period under review. MSW centinued its efforts to ensure market fairness and carried out major
investigations which include investigation inte the stock market crash during 2005, based on the observations of
forensic investigation firm Diligence Inc., U.S.A. As a result of this investigatior, 70 Brokers were issued Show
Cause Notices and appropriate orders were served based on the results of hearings and evidences submitted. MSW
has also identified unfair trade practicesin the trading of KAPCO shares and CTTL shares and legal proceedings will
‘beinitated in due course.

In order to further strengthen the monitering function: of the MSW, a highly advanced surveillance software with
sophisticated taols is being acquired. The MSW has deployed its resources to ensure efficient design and effective
implementation of this software.

7.7.2 InvestorComplaints

The jurisdiction of the Comtnission inter alia, extends to overall supetvision and regulation of the capital markets.
Sub-section 6 of Section 20 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1957 lays responsibility on
the C ission to maintain d ofinvestors in the Secutities Markets by ensuring adequate protection.

Whenever, any dispute atises between a clientand member of 1 stock exchange the primary responsibility to redress

the grievances of the complainant lies with the r stock excl The stock exck are self-regulatory

bodies and disputes between an investor and a broker are resolved in ! with its M dum and Articles

of Assocuuon read with General Regulati of the respective stock excl The Regulati provide a
p ive modus operanidi for resolution of such disputes.

Inan effort investors' ion, the C has pravided the procedure for complaints handlingin a
guide bocki.e. “the Investor's Guide for Lodging Complaints”. The guide is available on the Commission's official
web site and the CROs.  Investors' Complaints Wing (ICW) works in close dination with the stack exct

for the purposes of monitoring and investigating any illegal practices of market intermediaries. It also exereises
vigilance over stock exchanges for expeditious and efficient dispute resolution. In case of detection of some lag or
delay, the C. ission seeks explanation from the stock exch and efforts are made to expedite the matter by
helping to remove any hindrances. Moreaver, a proper track of' laints is kept with the C ission in order te
maintain vigilance aver the situation. In addition to this, the ICW guides the investors at every step and facilitates the
resolution of their grievances. In case of defanlting members, the ICW works diligently in monitoring the default
procedures and practices of the stock exchanges in order to provide relief, in mini possible time, to i
agprieved by such defanlts.

7.7.2,1 Complaints Handled Directly by ICW

Although the General Regulations of the exchanges specify the course of action to be followed in disputes
between brokers and investors, the ICW may directly take up the matter, conduct investigations and pass
ordens in. the cases, which fall under viclations of sub-section 6(d) & 6(g) Section 20 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997. These Sections confer upon the Commission the power to
administer laws effectively but with minimum procedural requirements and also authorize the
Commission to take whatever action is necessary. Keeping this in view, if the Commission observes some
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apparent breach of lawes by the market intermediaries whick fall within its regulatory ambit or is in the interest of the
investors and Securities Markets, then ICW takes up the matter directly. Further, issues of important nature with
domino effect scenario requiring nrgentaction on the part of the Commission and/er issues where the Stock Exchanges
are notcompetent to initiate anyaction are also taken up in pursuance of Section 20 of the Act.

The statistics of complaintshandled by the ICW during the year are given in Table 15.

7.7.3 Inspections

‘Tofurtheritnprove brokers i with th Licabl ities Laws, riles and Lati f the C

and the exchanges, a system andit of the business affairs of the brokerage house was made compulsory under the
“Regulations Governing $ystem Audit of the Brokers of the Exch 2004 To cnstpre liatiee with the syster

andit reports, the Inspection Wing has started atalyzing the contents of each Systern Audit Report of the brokers
from the year 2006. During the FY 2007 a total of 54 System Audic Reports wete teceived and analyzed. Qut of 54
reports, 15 reports showed full compliance by the brokers and for the i letters, highlighti
the nen-complianee areas, were sent to the concerned stock exchanges for taking further action under the
Regulations. So far LSE and ISE have taken action against 32 brokers.

The ion Wing also i .| i by ies and stock excl in terms of jes'
voluntarydellstmg Emm the exchanges and related matters such as handling and resclving comphaints lodged by the
ding purchase of shares by the majarity shareholders of companies that opt for

voluntary de-listing under the Listing lations of the exch It is the responsibility of the stock exct o
ensure compliance of Section 32-A of their Listing Lati However, ion Wing also reviewed the
delisting process and handled any complaint lodged by the pany against decisions of the exch Durmg the
year under review, eight complaines relating to the buy back of st Jelisting of ies were resol dled
bythis Wing.

During April and June 2006 the stock market of the country repeatedly expenem:ed periods of volaulny In
order to investigate any possible instance of market abuse, the C i conducted a preli v
enquiry into the affairs of a number of member-brokers of the Lahore and Karachi Stock Exchange Based on
findings of the preliminary inquiry, it was decided that the matter needed to be probed further. Therefore,
the Commission appointed four leading Chartered Accountant Firms of the country as Inquiry Officers
under Section 21 of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance 196 to inquire into the affairs of different
‘brokers of KSE and LSE. Detailed Terms of Reference (TOR) were given to the Inquiry Officers and they
‘were required to perform “agreed upon procedures” to investigate into affairs of the member-brokers of
LSE & KSE.

Most of the Enquiry Reports have been received from the Inquiry Officers and were reviewed/analyzed in
detail by the Commission, Subsequently, on the basis of findings of the said inquiry reports, show cause
notices were alse issued and in number of cases hearings were held. Upon completion of the process of
‘hearings final orders will be issued soon.

7.7.4 Beneficial Ownership

To protect the interests of small sharcholders and i the provisions of Section 224 of the Cempanies
Ordinance, 1984 prohibit directors, chief I ing agents, chief and ies of listed
companies who are beneficial owners of any of their equity securities, and every persor who is directly or indirectly
the beneficial awner of more than 10 percent of such securities from retaining the amount uf profit made bynhem
onaccountof transactions made within a period of sixmenths, In li with thep i f the Ci

Ordinance, these persons are required to tender the amount of such g-nn to the Issuer Company and failing that the
Commission. For the purpese of detecting cases where tenderable gain has accrued, the returns of beneficial
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owmership, filed in compliance with Section 222 of the Companics Ordi are
under review the Commission received 2,531 returns of beneficial ownership.

d. During the period

Bvery listed company is required to file annual returms on Ferm-A, the prescribed additional information and a soft
copyof the listof its members, in accordance with S.R.O. No. 10 4/(T)86 dated 12 November 1986 and cirenlar No.
6 of 2001. This facilitates verification of the data provided by beneficial owners.

7.7.4.1 Enforcement Actions

‘The position of tenderable gain cases as of 30 Junc 2007 issummarized below:

Status No. of Cases
Order passed under Secuen 224 of the Companies Otdmam:e 1§
Amount of gain tendered in favour of the C i 05
Amount of gain tendered in favour of the Issuers 02
In process aL
Pending with Lahore High Court, Lahore o
Pending with Sup Court of Pakistan 02

7.7.4.2 Administrative Appeals

In addition to an appeal during the period, Mr. Ghulam Muhammad Malkani Chief Executive Officer of J$ Global
Capital Limited formerly Jahangir Siddiqui Capital Management Markets Limited filed appeal against the order of
Baecutive Director (SMD) before the Appellate Bench of the Commission, Two appeals were accordingly pending
before the Bench of the Commission.

7.75 CreditRating Companies

Wch the emergence of legislations such as Sarbanes-Oxley and Basel-II, the need for having a mandatory

for listed comparies to get their respective creditratings duly assessed by a credit rating agency became
even more vital Caurrently, two credit rating companies - Pakistan Credit Rating Company Limited (PACRA} and
JCRVIS Credit Rating Company Limited are functioning to assign ratings to entities and financial
instruments/preducts.

Dm-mg the year under review, the credit rating companies issued 315 ratings to various companies. To
ission keepsa constant watch over the activities of these companies.

the rating process, the Cs

To further strengthen the role and standard of Credit Rating Companics in Pakistan, a joint committes,
comprising officials of SBP and the C ission has been established during the current financial Year. To
proceed furtherin the matter, the said Committee hasjointly finalized its Terms of Reference (TOR) as:

. Study the proposal of datitng all listed ies to get th tves rated from Credit Rating Companics
and to make recommendations in this tegard.

«  Accreditation of Credit Rating Companics in the context of Bascl II and requiring the rating agencies
operating in Pakistan to get their rating methodologics independently assessed by reputed internatienal
agencies.

. Amendment in the existing rules for Credit Rating Cempanies to make their procedures more effective and
comprehensive.
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. Hiring of an international consultant for advising and assisting in attracting and introducing reputed foreign
creditrating companics in Pakistan.

7.7.6 Investor Awareness
The Commission by virtue of its mandate is required to protect the interests of gencral public investing in securitics

through the stock exchanges of the country. The Commissien strongly belicves that investors arc the backbone of
the securitics market. They not only determine the level of activity in the securitics market but also the level of

activityinthe economy.
Recognizing the i importance of the d ination of i k ledge among the Pakistzni population across
the country, the C i launched a hensive od ign aimed at creating awarcness among.

investors about sccuritics market. With this aim, the Commission has pubhshcd a serics of booklets for imparting
valuable information/knowledge to the general public. All the rules regulations and securitics laws have been placed
on thc official website of the - Commission for access by gencral public. A list of member-brokers and their agents

d with the C i isal ilable on the same website. The exchanges have also been advised to place
list of their members and agents on their websites. Morcover, during the last few years the Commission in
collaboration with CDC has conducted various road shows both local and abroad.  To keep this pace and
momentum, the Commission in collaboration with CDC, stock exchanpes and other stakeholders has also chalked
outa detziled programme for the year 2008 to conduct road shows and to organize seminarsfworkshops in varions
cities of the conntry.

7.8 Developmental Activities

7.81 OffMarket Transactions

In line with the C; issi bjective of achieving ent d and monitering of the Capital Market in
the country, the G issi d to make p y the reporting of all off-market transactions at
the stock exchanges. In this rcgard the stock exchanges were advised to develop automated systems for recording of
off- market transactions. The said system has been implemented by KSE with effect from September 4, 2007.

7.8.2 Automated Process for Handling Corporate Actions in CFS Transactions

The Commission during the year under review initiated work to automate the pracess of handling corporate actions
in order to make the same more effective, transparent and efficient. For this purpose, the Commission in

ltation with the stakeholders agreed on a hanism whereby the current practice of forced release of
securities in CFS transactions in case of bonms and/or right issue in a security has been substituted by a process
whereby the ultimate beneficiary will receive the said benefits directly i m :hci:r name. The Exchanges, CDC and
NCCPL are currently working on the develop of an for ion of the said
methodolegy.

7.8.3 Regulatory Audit of the Stock Exchanges

During the year under review the Commission advised the stock 1o have hensive Regulatory

Audit conducted. The latory andit aims to evaluate the operational and regulatory effi af the exck

in order to ensure i and sati y performance of the exchange as self regulacory

orgamzman (SRO). In order to meet the primary goal of relublhty and rel]ance on such Regulatory Audit, the
proveda dized setof Terms of R forthe audi inted by the Fxct

PP

a1

7.8.4 Restriction on In- House Badla

In-House Badla was prohibited by the Commission with effect from November 20, 2006. This was a
major step aimed at bringing all financing in the Capital Market within the ambit of reported trades, In-
house badla was a non-transparent method of financing weak holders' wherein the scrips financed were
more risky and prone to market manipulation besides having excessive rates of financing.

7.8.5 National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)

In line with the Commission's objective of transfer of the risk managemnent of the exchanges to NCCPL, in line with
international best practices, the Commission twok various steps to further smmgthen the basic infrastructure of
NCCPL. As a first step towards achieving this geal, NCCPLis in the pr f g the risk ofits
Nen Broker Clearing Members {NBCM) in the FI Margining System which is due to go l.lve shortly,

In the second step, with the implementation of CFS Mk II on the NCSS platform, a major portion of the risk
management is to be transferred to NCCPL from the Exchanges, thereby resultingin NCCPL managing bulk of the
settlement risk, Amajor step in the direction of transfer of lete Risk N to NCCPL s the setup of [T
infrastructure within the organization, which was lacking earlier. Furthermore, the Coromission has alse taken steps
to furtherincrease the paid-up capital of NCCPL to Rs. 300 million, as well as the reduction of share holding of stock.
exchanges in NCCPL to 30% of the overall Paid-up Capital,

7.8.6 Corporate Debt Market

The Commission formed a warking group on “Debt Marketand C. il Paper™ o identify impediments ta the
development of the debe capital market and to recommend appropriate steps for promoting issuance and market-
making of money market instruments in the country The working group comprised members from SBE the
Commission, commercial banks acting as primary dealers of povernment securities, issuers of securities, consultants

tovarious corporate debtand commercial paper issues, KSE, CDC and NCCPL.

On the recommendation of the working group, KSE reduced the maximum initial listing fc: for debt instruments
from Ts. 500,000 to Rs. 100,000. The working group has alo ded the following d in the
Stamp Act, 1899:

s Existing rate of 0.15 percent stamp dury be rcduccd to 0.05 percent or Rs. 1,000,000, whichever is lower, on
first issue of det bonds i parti ion term certificates, TFCs or any other instrument of
redeemable capital {other than commercial paper).

»  Existingratc of 0.2 percent stamp duty be redneed to 0.02 percent per anonmi.c. linked to the maturity period
of the commercial paper or Bs. 100,000 whicheverislower.

The Government of Punjab has reduced stamp duty on det and ial papers in dance with the
recommendations of the Working Group. The matter of n:ductmn in stamp duty on debentures and commercial
papersis still inder process with the previncial Gaver d istration of the Islamabad Capital Territory.

Th: Commission also constimted a “Debt Capital Market Committee”, headed by the Chairman of the
ion, for the develop andp ion of debt capital market in Pakistan. The committee comprised of
ives from fal banh banks, mutmal funds, issuers and lawyers. The committee has
ﬁn:;.lmcd fts report which has b:cn placed on the Commlsslonchbsltc for information of all the stakeholders. The
of the ittee with regard to emission of the provision requiring compulsory

listing has been accepted by the Commission and implemented.
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7.8.7 Margin Financing

The Commission is striving to promote Margin Financing parallel with other modes of leverage financing. In this
context, the stock exchanges have been advised 1o review the exdsting Margin Financing Rules and Regulations and
come upwith a proposal for amendments therein in light of the capital market requirements.,

Margin accountsallow investors to buy sharcs with a relatively small amount of cash or margin up front by using the
assets currently held in their accounts as collateral. Margin financing will effectively lead to monitoring of risk at
three levels. Firstly, the cxchanges will monivor the risk at broker level and, sccondly, the broker will carry out due
diligence of his enstomers. Thirdly, banks and DFIs providing margin financing will monitor the risk of providing
margin financing to brokersand/or investors dircctly.

7.8.8 Establishment of TradingFloors in Peshawar and Quetta

Considering the expanding investor base and in ardet to provide a level playing ficld for investors based in NWEP
and Baluchi: the Ci ission has proposed to the stock excl the establisk of trading floors in
Peshawar and Quetta. The Islamabad Stock Exchange and Lahore Stock Exchange have decided to jointly setup a
tradingfloor in Peshawar fer which feasibility studyhas tobe carried out and the work s in progress.

7.8.% IslamicIndex

The C: ission has propesed the introduction of an Islamic Index at the stock exchanges in particular KSE. The
purpose of intreducing this Index is to promote the listing of Sharia-compliant companies en the Pakistani stock
market and encourage intermational and local players to list and trade their Shariah-based shares/instruments on an

Islamic index.

7.810 National C dity Exchange Limited (NCEL)

NCEL is Pakistan's first el futures exch which. d operations on May 11, 2007.

NCEL is a technol dtiven d lized on-line dity futures exch and employs modern risk
hi based on Val -Risle. NCEL plans to provide platform for market participants to trade

firtures and started its op with three month gold futures contracts. Establishmentof the NCEL is
anticipated to pave the way for transparent price discovery of the underlying.

+  NCELRegulations

The day to day operations of the Excl are lated under the General Repulations of the National

Commodity Exchange Limited that were approved by the Commission.

. Membership
NCEL currently has 256 members {251 Universal Members and 5 Gold Specific Members). Soen after

of its operatien the exct with the approval of the C: ission offered new berships and
also introduced two new types of memberships to cater to the needs of different sectors/players. NCEL introduced
different categories of membership to caterto the mark ds of diff which are:
o Universal Membership
° Commedity Specific Membership
o Commodity Specific Institutional Clearing Miembership
o Ci dity Specific Trading bership
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By allowing and offering new and different types of memberships, NCEL is now among those demutualized
exchanpes which do not impose a ceiling on the number of memberships they can grant, and just permit the same
previded they comply with varieus ather requirements and are fitand proper to undertake such business.

+  BrokerRegistration

In order to undertake the busi f dealing in dity futures contracts, bers of the exch are required
to register with the C ission under the dity Exch and Futures Contract Rules, 2005. During the
peried under review, 27 brokershave been registered.

+  FirstGoldFi C {Basic specs of gold contract)

The first 3 month Gold Futures Contract with August maturity began trading on May 11, 2007. Highlights of the
first Gold with August07 manurity contractare as follows:

o "Total number of contracts waded 1109

o "Tota] numnber of contracts off-set prior to maturity 1079

o Openipterest on expiry 30 contracts

o Highesttraded volume on June 1, 2007 of 7200grams (72 contracts)

o Highesttraded value $161336(Rs. $,760,828) onJune 1, 2007

o N apen interest 21 215

° Final settlernent price on August 15th 2007 Rs, 13190

‘The final settl ofthe first donein d; -with the gold contract specifications and resulted in
physical deliveries of 3 Kilogramus of pure gold cast in 1 Kilogram serial numnbered bars each of 0.9999 fineness
preduced by a London Bullion Market Association (LBMA) certified d freshly i dinto Paldstan with
delivery at Karachi,

+  Investor Education

In dance with the: dations ef the Cx NCEL vndertook investor education and awarencss
programs in Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad to develop the knowledge base of market participants and convey the
basics about futures markets and fiutures trading. NCEL also orgarised the 1st Annual Pakistan Derivatives
Conference called *“Demystifying Derivatives.”

7.8.11 Futures Trading Act

In order to bring the Pakistan's capital market at par with international markets in terms of derivative trading, a
comprehensive regulatory infrastructure was framed to ensure the effectiveness and enforceability of futres and
derivative transactions. The Commission prepared a draft Futnres Trading Act with the assistance of external
consultants provided under the FMGP. Inaddition to proeviding a regulatory framework for futures mrading, the Act
would accommedate the issuance of more specific rules, regulations, guidelines, and formats. The draft Futures
Trading Acthas been submitted for approval to the Ministry of Finance and is under process.

7.9Future Plans

SMD plans to carry out the followi ivities during ingyear:
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7.9.1Dx 1} jon of Stock Exck

The Commission is vigorously pursuing the process of demutnalization, which is awell cstablished global rend and
hasbeen adopted by varions jurisdictions around the globe.

During 2006-2007, the dialoguc process with the stakehold inucd and the stkeholders” apprehensions were
resolved. All stock exchanges agreed to suppert the establist of the ds lized stock exct In view of
spcciﬁc f(:acums and unique requi of corporatizati which iated the pr lgation of an
hensive picee oflegislati SECP dunng the pcnod under review continucd the process of

drafmng a special kegislation to cnable cerporati aml ion of stock cxck The
ion adopted a participative and lative process while developing the legislation. The legislation covers

provisions relating to corporatization and cmp the Registrar to issuc amended certificate of incorporationto a
corperatized stock excl The legislation further deals with process of demutualization, censtitution of board

aficr demutualization, clection of directors, divestment of shares w diversify the investor base, restrictions on sale
and purchase of shares by differcnt catcgerics of sharcholders, The Commission shall have the power o alter
sharcholding restrictions and/or to require any category of sharcholder to disinvest their sharcholding in casc the
sharcholder has crosscd the threshold Ievel. The legislation also d.caJs with provisions rclating to trading rights and

lListing of sharcs of stock cack The legislation further cmp: toapprove scheme of integration/
merger submitted by stock excl and cffc transfer of nghts and abligations as if the Scheme was appreved
by the Court.

7.9.2 Formmlation of Rules and Regulations

Preliminary draft of the following Rule: lations bas been d

. Regulations for isstie of shares throngh book building;

- Bankers to an Issue Regulations;

- Debenture Trustee Regulations;

- Balloter and Securities Registrar Rules; mrl

. Rules/Regulations listed C jes (. ial Acquisition of Voting Sk d Tl Regulati
These Rules/Regulations will be notified after necessary review and due deliberation by the C

7.9.3 Codes of Conduct for Analysts, Fund Managers and Brokers

A phased approach for the implementation of the said cedes of conduct has been adopted by the Commission. As a

first step towards implementing these Codes, the C: ission has invited the- of the stakehelders an the

Draft Codes. The Codes will be finalized and lmp].emented a.ﬁ,er taking mtﬂ mnslderanun the feedback of the
keholders. The C ission is alse p of an q fori

P ls/anal lines similar to CEA

7.9.4 Regulatory F I for Risk M

‘With a view to give Regulatory cover to the currently applicable New Risk Management System, changes in
the Regulatory Framework of the Bourses are being carried out on priority basis.
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7.9.5 Trading by Employees of Brokerage Houses and Intra Exchange Trading between
Breokerage Houses

The Karachi Stock Exchange has submiwed proposals for trading Iyy emplayees of Brokerage Houses and intra-
exchange trading between brok houses, The C ission is ing the proposal of the Exchange together
with internaticnal practicesin this area, in order t develop necessary regulations,

7.9.6 New Derivative Products

The Commission is actively pursuing the exchanges to develop new derivative produncts for the capital market in
order to further broaden the scope of trading activity at the bourses. In this regards, draft white papers on the
development of two new derivative products, namely Stock Index Futures and Stock Options is enrrentdy under
review by the stock exchanges.
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Chapter 8
Specialised Companies Division




Specialised Companies Division

OBJECTIVE: To provide a anducive regulatory environment for development and promotion. of a robust N on-Bank
Finendial (N BF} S ector while proteting ineres of the lders; and 1o fuclitate diversifiaion and i jon in prediucts
and serviees of NBF sector

8.1 0 perational Structure
8.1.1Structure

The Specialized Companies Division's primary responsibilities include licensing, monitoring and enforcement of
non-bank finan cial sector participants i.e. Non banking Finance Companies, Mutual Funds, Modarabas, Real Estate
TInvestment Trusts, Pension Funds, Private Equity Fundsand Ven ture C apital Funds.

8.1.2Management Team

SCD isheaded by Commissioner Mr. Salman Ali Shaikh. H eis asenior emerging markets banker havingover thirty-
two years of experience with various leading banks in the country including Citibank. He was also the managing
director of an investment bank and part of the senior management team that led the turnaround of Habib Bank
Limited.

Theoperational management of SCD rests with the Executive Director Mr. Akif Saeed who is assisted by a team of
professionals with diversified backgrounds and experience.

Officers of SCD with ED Mr. A kif Saeed

8.2 Sector Overview

8.2.1NBFCs
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? Venture Capital Investment
? Discounting Services
? H ousin g Finance Ser vices

As 0f30-06-2007, there are 59registered N BFC s having following classification ofmultiple licenses:

Type of Business No of Licences
Investment Finance Services 1
Leasing 16
Investment Advisory and Asset Management Services 34
House Finance Services 9
Discount Services 1
Total 71

An activity-wise over view of assets and deposit of N BF sector as of 30-06-2007 is given below which depicts that
NBFC sector, on the basis of assets size, isdominated by mutual funds and leasin g sectors which constitute 68 % and
14% of entire N BFC sector, respectively:

Sector Total Assets Total Deposits

Mutual Funds 309.474 -
Leasing Companies 65.781 12.856
Investment Banks 49.304 16.354
Modarabas 26.348 3.553
Venture Capital 3.573 -
Discount Houses 1.888 -
Housing Finance 1.196 1.000
Total 457.564 33.763
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Composition of NBFC Sector as of 30-6-2007

B Mutual Funds

B Leasing Companies
O Investment Banks
O Medarabas

M Venture Capital

3 Discount Houses
| Housing Finance

b Funcs, 7645

W Venie Cagiel, 0 78%
B Geoount Hauses, 04175
m asing Finance 0 26%.

8.2.1.1 Mutual Fund

Mutual funds recorded the highest growth in terms of assets and numbers. The number of mutual funds increased
from 44 as of 30-06-06 to 67 as of 30-06-2007 while their net assets increased from Rs. 160 billion to Rs. 295 billion
during this period. depicting a growth of 84 percent. Major growth was observed in the categories of income funds
and equity funds. Detail of assets managed under different categories of mutual funds is provided in Table 16 in
statistical section.

Assets mix of mutual funds aggregating to Rs. 309 billion as of 30" June, 2007

Debi Sec

Equity Sec 5.70%
49.70% crs
7.72%
Banik Bat
Govi. Sec 25.83%

0.85%
Clean Placem ent
Other Assets 5.55%

0.52% Other Rece.

354%  Acclnco
0.58%
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Key statistics of close-end and open-end mutual funds on individu al basis are shown in Tables 17 and |8 in statistical
section.

8.2.1.2 Leasing

Out of 23 licensed leasing companies, only 13 are active in this business. Remaining 10 companies are inoperative
(see Table 21 in statistical section) owing to various regulatory issues such as non-compliance with the licensing
reguirements, financial sickness or winding-u p proceedingsbeing in process.

Main statistics of leasin tor as of 30-06-2007 are given below

Amount (Rs. in billion)
Total Assets 65.781
Total Liabilities 58.309
Total Equity 7.300
Total Deposits 12.856

Asset Allocation of Leasing Sector

O Net Investment

in Leases
B Cash & Bank
Balances
Restof Assets
Investments 1% O Investments

6%
O Rest of Assets

Cash & Bark Balances
1%

Net Investment in Leases
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Money . 8% 5%
— Rest of Liahilities COls o Rest of Ot hvabics Mme;;m -
< 8% Liabilities 7 <
= =
— Accrued Income =
“ 1% Investments =
= 26% =
< Lease Key Money =
26% Borrowings
36% Advances & Leases CFS/ Reverse Repos

32% 20%

Liability Structure of Investment Banks

8.2.1.3 Investment Banks

As of 30-06-2007, out of 14 investment banks, only 10 were active licensed investment banks. The remaining 4
companies were inoperative (see Table 21 in statistical section) owing to various regulatory issues such as non
compliance with the licencingrequirements, financial sickness or being under winding-up proceedin gs.

Key statistics of investment banking sector as of 30-06-2007

Rs. in billion
Assets 49.304
Liabilities 45.450
Equity 3.887
Deposits 16.354 8.2.2Modarabas

Modaraba Com panies and Modaraba (Floatation & Control) Ordinance was promulgated in 1980 to provide the
statutory framework for or ganizing business enterprises accordin gto the injunctions of Islam. Modarabas provide a
Shariah compliant mode of financing and investment, and have played a vital role in the development and growth of
the economy and capital markets sin ce their inception.
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Comparative performance of the sector for last two years is given below:

2007 2006
Modaraba compani 51 51
Modarak 29 29
Maodarabas under winding up 8 7
Modarabas merged 2 0
Muodarabas under floatation 3 6
Total paid-up fund of Modarabas {Rs in million} 7408 8,000
Total Assets of Modarabas (Rs. in million) 26,348 24,328
Modaraba sector funds are allocated among following assets
r 1

Fixed Assets
&%

Cash and Bank
5%

3%

8.2.3Private Pensions
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Pension schemes in Pakistan have remained confined to the salaried section of the population in the form of
occupational pension and savings schemes. Mostindividuals are outside the organized labour sector and the concept
of a'regular monthly pay check' is alien to them . Individuals who are either self-employed or engaged in the informal
sector fallin this category. It is important to extend the concept of pensions to this grou p aswell.

To extend the scope of retirement benefit schemes to the masses, the Government decided to develop a new defined
contribution system for people who do nothave access to aretirement scheme. O n 15 March 2003, the Government
assigned the regulation of private pensions to the Commission. A new Voluntary Pension System (VPS) was
designed under the VPS Rules, 2005 and implemented during the current year,

The VPSisbased on tax incentives for which necessary amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 have been
made. It is flexible in terms of contribution, asset allocation choice, switching from one scheme to other and above
all, portability.

‘With four pension funds kicking off up to June 2007, it is envisioned that VPS would make long-term savings and
pensions available to the masses of the country in a secure and regulated environment, while allowing the
participants the flexibility to choose between variousinvestment options and different fund managers.

Presently, private occupational savings schemes, including pension funds, gratuities and provident funds are not
being regulated by any agency Under private occupational pension and saving schemes recognized by FBR, the
employer, participant, and the invested assets enjoy certain tax advantages. On account of this, FBR may be seen asa
quasi-regulator for these schemes. There is no register of occupational pension and saving schemes, nor are there
collected statistics, published or otherwise, on the number, assets or membership or of any pension demographics,
whether by age, gender or region.

Therefore, the Commission began work on developinga regulatory fram ework for private occupational pension and
saving schemes so that a uniform system of private pensions may be developed in the country where each part
complements the other.

8.3 Performance Review

8.3.INBFCs

During the period, SCD undertook various measures for development and stability of Non- banking financial
sector. Some of the activities are detailed below:

8.3.1.1Issuance of Fresh Lic

es

During the year. seven fresh licenses were issued to leasing: investment banking and asset management companies
(see Table 19 in statistical section). NOCs for establishment of N BFCs intendin g to undertake investment advisory
and asset managem ent ser vices were also issued to eightentities.

8.3.12Renewal of Licenses

During the period under review, licen ses of forty eight N BFCs were renewed, details of which can be seen in Table
20in statistical section of thereport.

8.3.1.30pening of Branches

Duringthe period, approval for openingof twentyeightnew branchesin differentcities of the country was granted.

007

—
(1
O
o
w

{

=

ANNUAL




ol i

2

)R T

C

o
w
(09

N UAL

83.14New fund launched

During the period, twenty three new funds werelaunched in the followingcategories:

Category New Funds launched
Income Funds 07
Equity Funds 05
Capital Protected Fund 03
Islamic Fund 03
Balanced Fund 02
Asset Allocation Fund 01
Money Market Fund 01
Sector Fund 01
Total 23

83.1.5Issuance of N o Objection Certificate (NOC) forchange of management

During the period, NOCs were granted for change of management of Net Work Leasing Corporation Limited to
KASB Capital Limited, International Housing Finance Limited to Mr. N asir Ali Shah Bukhari and Crescent Leasing
Limited's shareholding to Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited. Moreover, Crescent Standard
Investment Bank Limited w as merged with and into Innovative Housing Finance Limited under section 282Lof the
CompaniesO rdinance, 1984.

8.3.2Modarabas

8.3.2.1 Registration of New Modaraba Company

During the year, one Modaraba Management Company (MM C) namely: First Asian Business Corporation Limited
wasregistered under Section 6 of the Modaraba O rdinance, 1980.

8.3.22 Commencement of Bus

ness by Modarabas

During the year, Allied Rental Modaraba commenced its business operations after being listed on the stock
exchange.

8.3.2.3Merger of Modarabas and Modaraba Companies
Modaraba Wing has been encouraging mergers. During the year, NOC wasissued for the scheme of amalgam ation

of M/s. Providence Modaraba Limited with BRR Investment (Pvi.) Limited and Guardian Modaraba into BRR
International Modaraba.
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8.3.24 Approval to Increase Authorized Fund of Modaraba

In terms of Rule 20 of the Modaraba Rules, approval for increase in authorized fund was granted to Standard
Chartered Modaraba.

8.3.2.5 Transfer of Major Shareholding of Modaraba Company

Approval for transfer of major shares of Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited held by Pak LibyaHolding
‘Company (Pvi) Lid to differentindividuals was granted.

8.3.2.6 Development Activities

Modaraba Wing has taken the following initiatives for the development and regulation of the Islamic financial
market:

? For promotion and development of a prudent and transparent Islamic financial services industry, Associate
Membership of Islamic Financial Services Board (IFSB) based in Malaysia was obtained in April, 2007 for
introducinginternational standards consistent with Shariah principles.

? Ten new model financing agreements have been drafied and are being considered by Religious Board for
approval to standardize the le gal docu mentation for Modaraba fin an ce facilities:

1; Tjara Agreement 2% Musawamah Agreement

3. Musharaka Agreement 4. Istisna Agreement

5. Murabaha Agreement 6. Salam Agreement

¥ Syndicate ModarabaFinancing 8. ModarabaFinancing Agreement

9. Syndicate MusharakaFinancing 10. Diminishing Musharaka Agreement

83.3REITsand New Initiative Wing

In line with its mandate, the Commission continuously strives to offer new financial products to the investors which
are tailored to suit the prevailing market conditions. M ajor initiatives in this respect include introduction of Real
Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), Private Equity and VentureCapital Funds (PE&VCF).

8.3.3.1 Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations

In exercise of the powers conferred by section 282B (2) of the Companies Ordinance, as amended, REITs
Regulations 2007 were drafted and placed on the Com mission's website in July 2007 to elicit publicopinion.

8.3.3.2 Private Equity and Venture Capital Fund Regulations

Private Equity and Venture Capital Funds Regulations 2007 were also drafted and placed on the Commission's
wehsite in August 2007 to elicit public opinion. Private equity is a distinet asset class that can play a vital role in
transformation of the economy by providing growth capital to the local corporate sector. Private equity will unlock
the hidden value of the private companies by providing capital and managerial skills for growth and expansion . Tt will
also assist in the turnaround of sick and badly managed companies and would help Pakistan attract foreign direct
investment. PE&VCF will be an unlisted closed-end unit-trust fund open only to high net-worth individuals and
institutions due to its intrinsic nature of being a high-risk asset class. The fund will provide equity for seed/start-up
capital, expansion. and buyout as well as turn around, primarily to private companies. However. it can venture into
privatization deals as well.
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8.3.4 Private Pension
8.3.4.1Registration of Pension Fund Managers
Towards the cnd of the year 2006, focuscd market consultations were followed by expressions of interest by asset

pani for Tegis as Pension Fund M C Iy, four assct
pasti granted ioninJanuary 2007,

8.3.4.2 Guidelines

The following guidelines have been issued tofacilitate pension funds:

- Registration ef Pension Fund Manager

» Authorization of the Pension Fund

. Appointmentof Trustee of the Pension Fund

In addition to the above, the draft gnidelines on record keeping, advertisements and invitations have been placed on
the company website to elicit public opinion and are expected ta be finalized shortly.

8.3.4.3 On-site visit of Pensions Fund Managers

Onsite inspections of all registered pension fund managers was conducted to ascertain the status of implementation
of the Voluntary Pension System and to address any potential issues of the Fund Managers. The objective was to
expedite the authorluuun of Pension Funds Discussions with the Trustee were also held to gather their perspective

d and ynidirectional progress on the part ofall

8.3.4.4 Authotization of the Pension Punds

The registration of the Pension Funds was followed by a series of dialopues, meetings and exchange of views with all
the Pension Fund Managers which resulted in the submission of the trust deeds of the proposed Pension Funds. The
Pensions Wing performed a critical appraisal of the provisions of trust deedsin light of the Voluntary Pension System

Rules, 2005 to ensure compli with all applicable laws and lations. This was in line with the Commission's
objectiveof p inginvestor i gai undue or i
8.3.4.5Develop in relation to Occupational Savings Sck

Presently, private ocenpational savings schemes including pension funds, gratuities and provident funds are not
beingregulated by any agency. The C ission initiated an effort to develop and introduce a regulatory framework
for private occupational saving schetmes so that 2 uniform system of pmme pensions may be devduped in t.l:c
cotititrywk h part: 1 the ather. The C hited the setvices of an i

pension expert to review the existing schetnes in corporate sector and to advice on the regulatory framework. In this

tegard, an interactive wotkshap was also atranged in which leading s from i actitary, corparal:
and asset tahagement sectors participated. All the broad areas for the I k were di d and a
general consensys was achieved dnt hzs 'l:cm made part of the repott of the pmslon expert. To move the matter

further a sampl, vey of « h fall li hasbeen initiated and will be finalized
by December 2007. Based on the report and sample survey, guldmg principles for the regulatory framework would
be evolved and put up for public comments.
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8.4 Monitoring and Enforcement

8.4.1 On-site Inspections

blished an

During the year, in additien to the existing set-up Specialized C jes Division wingat
Karachi o strengthen monitoring of NBF sector largely based in Karachi, During the permd under review
inspections of 23 entities including Investment Banks, Leasing companies, Mutval Funds, Modarabas, Venture
Capital Funds were carried cut. The inspections helped the C ission to analyze their financial health,
management performance, systems & controls and compli with laws & lations. The inspection findings of
these entities may be grouped as fellows:

A) Banks, Leasing C jes & Modarab
Weak Internal Controls

Highly centralized decision making

Minimum board invulvement

Non-ind d L l Audit
Improper books of accannts

Huge in /group
‘Ttansfer of sponsori holding with val
Fund raising agalnsl pledge o{ sponsoringshares
Non-Shariah itiesin case of Modarat

L A

B) AMCs, Invesunent Advisors & Mutual Punds:

'Y Dependenee on highly unstable instinutional investors
Htgh exposure in bank deposits

- Mini ralc of T

- Nouniform policy on sales load

. Weak research capacity

8.4.2 Off-Site Monitoring.

The objective of off-sitc monitoring is to proactively supcrvise and monitor the NBF scctor en the basis of different
periedical returns being submiticd w the Commissien.  Annual andited accounts and other periodic satements
were caamined during the year to ensure compliance with the NBFC Rules, Prudential Regulations, Companics
Ordmance, Moedaraba Ordmance Modaraba Rules and Intemmom.l Accountmg Standards. On the basis of the

appropriate p 1gs were initiated agail -comp

8.4.3 Enforcement Actions

and off-site i the foll actions were

On the basis of on-site i
taken;

+  ShowCause Notices

On the basis of findings of off-site surveillance and on-site mspectmns two show-cause notices were issned to
NBFCs and 20 show-cause notices were issued to Modarab ies (see Table 23}. Action was
taken against 15 Medaraba companies and four mutual funds (Table 22 and 2.4) In addition, detailed investigations
undersection 265 uf ‘the Companies Ordinance, 1984 was ordered in cases of two mutual funds. Registration of eight
Modaraba C was Iled as these failed to float any Modaraba and their names were de-registered from
the Register of Modaraba Cempanies. Moreover, warnings under section 32 of the Modaraba Ordinarice were
issued to two Modarabas.
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- Change of Management of Modaraba

Due to gross violations of the Modaraba Ordi Rules and Prudential Regulations, the registration of one
Modaraba Company was cancelled and in its place, another existing Modaraba Company was appointed to manage
the Modaraba,

+  InspectionOrders

Registrar (Modarabas) ordered inquiries into the affairs of six Modarabas by appointing i under section 21
of the Modaraba Ordinance, 1980. These inquiries were in progress.

8.4.4 Revivals & Mergers
8.4.4.1 Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited

A on site inspection into the affairs of Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited (CSIBL), one of the largest

investment banks, revcaled gross financial irregularities and violations of prevalent regulatory framework,

Ther:fort. Commission supcrseded the Boa.rd of Dircctors of CSIBL in terms of Section 282E and 282F of the
Ordi 1984and appointed an to manage the affairs of CSIBL on 29th August 2006,

The Administrator was assigned the twin respensibilitics of preserving the asscts of the bank and identification of a
genuine invester/biryer for revival of CSIBL for the protection of the interest of stakeholders; cspecially depositors.
The Administrater identified 2 U.K Bascd group as petential buyer for the acquisition 2nd revival of CSIBL through
merger with and inte a newly formed wholly owned NBFC. The prospective buyer committed initial capital
injection of Rs.800 millior and a further injection of Rs.200 million and Rs.500 million in the year 2008 and 2005,
respectively. In order to asscs and verify the credentials of the prospective buyct, its business operations in United
ngdom and UmtchmbEmlratcs e reviewed/i d by the C: i and found to be satisfactory. The

after th ien of the proposcd revival plan and having sausﬁﬁd itsclf granted the approval
for merger proposalmaccordancﬁ with the provisiens of Section 282 L of the Companics Ordinance, 1984. The said
approval for the merger not only helped in paying off the depositers and creditors of an inselvent NBFC but alse
revived a sick institution as a viable financial intermediary.

8.5 Miscellaneous
8.4.5.1Investors' Complaints

During the period under review, 164 complaints were received from investors. These pertained mainly to the
followingissucs:

. Nen-receiptof dividend warrants

+ Non reoe:ptof share certificates

. h Tuption of company
. Nen-receiptof account statcments.

. Charging of excess mark-up on facilities

Immediate and appropriateactions were taken to resolve all complainis received during the year.
8.6 Work in Process

8.6.1 Review of NBFC Rules and Regulations

Inordertomakethe existing latory f to cater to thenew challenges and
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developments and to address the anomalies identified during the inspection process, certain amendments
wete suggested. The amendiments to the rules were initiated in June 2006 and were prblished in the official

Gazette in September 2006. Tl tation with the stakeholders took place and
feedback recetved was considered and incorp d.Thesaid were finalized and nppruvedby
the C ission in Dy iber 2006. The salient features of the proposed dments can b ized a
under:

. Introduction of concept of two separate clusters for NBFC activities i.e. NBFC undertaking investment
advisory or asset management services shall not be eligible for seeking licence for any other activity. Similarly,
NBFC undertaking investment finance services or leasing or housing finance services or discounting services
or any combination thereof shall not be eligible for seeking licence of investment advisory or asset

INANAGEmEnt SEIvices

+ Segregation of brokerage busi d i fi rvices

. Increase in minimum regulatory equity requi 0 lidation and enhance the shock
absorption capacity

. Introduction of Fitand Proper Test in relation to NBF sector to promote corporate governance

«  Revisionofvari P Limits tomitigate di riskfactors

8.6.2 Real Estate Trust Regul.

The REITs Regulations 2007 were drafted and placed on the Commission's website in July 2007 to elicit public
opinion. These draft chu]zuons are the product of two years of concerted effort by the Commission and the
concerned stakehold ives of Federal and Provincial Governments, valuers, real estate
developers, overseas investors, mdustnallsts contractors, designers, and other market entities.

The Commission in order to offer marker participants every opportunity to contribute to the development work
undertaken for the market, held two stakeholder meetings in Karachi and Lahore. A detailed dialogne was held on
the draft regulatory framework to make it conducive for the growth of REIT in Pakistan. The draft REIT
Regulations 2007 are being finalized keeping in view the stakeholders comments received and shall e notified soon.

8.6.3 Voluntary Pension System

While four conventional Pension Funds have already been authorized and are in the process of receiving
contributions from the participants, evaluations of draft wrust deeds of three Islamic Pension Funds are underway for
authorization of the proposed I[slamic Pension Funds in the next year. The Pensions wing has also drafied the
financial reporting formats of the Pension Funds and has invited stakeholder feedback before implementing the
formats, Moreover, guidelines on financial reperting and en valuation of securities are being prepared which are
expected 10 be finalized in the next fiscal year. With the Voluntary Pension Systemn gradually picking raots, substantial
progress is anticipated with continuing efforls w regulate the occupational savings schemes. The Commission will

acceleratens eﬁ'ons toward effective ofi Isavings schemes based on the result af sample survey,

mark

8.6.4 Modarabas
A regulavory framework for companies offering [slamic financial services is under draft. This framework is intended

1o certify and regulate all NBFCs and, more so, any company under the SECP's mandate which seeks to call itselfa
Shariah compliant company,
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8.7 Future Plans

8.7.1NBFCs

. F lation of an ind dent NBFC Law to the regulatery and enforcement issues being faced
under the present set up where the requirements applicable to NBFCs are divided between the Cempanies
Ordinance and the NBFC Rules.

. Amendments to the NBFC Rules drafted in Itation with the stakeholders and in light of ional
best will d and impl, i

. hening of Code of C. Governanc

+ Rationalizing of NBECs tetiirts in light of | i Rules, 1 and Ord

. Shifting of Off-Site Monitoring of NBF sector from their periodical return: P t d MIS reports.

Thy i ef returns and devel of software for jon of MIS reports will be initiated. These

MIS reports would encompass analysis of submitted information to assess the financial health, risk measurements
and regulatory compliance.

. Qu-site inspections of entities, especially deposit raising insti tad ine their true financial health
aad their compliance level with specific reference to NBFCs rules and n:gul.'mcrls will be conducted.

+ Enh of Risk A 1o target dulent, illegal or questi practices that pose greater risk
to investors and the market.

8.7.2 Pensions

. Appropriate amendments in the SECP Act, 1997 shall be proposed te include accupational savings
schemes in the Commission's mandate.
. Work an development of regulatery framework for private occupatienal saving schemes would be accelerated
in light of the malket feed.back and the information gathered through market surveys. Acod.e of mnducr for
wouldbe developed followed by initial legislation for va ionof

all occupational p s
. The disharmony of tax treatment in different variants of eccupational savings arrangements at contribution
stage, income stage and withdrawal stage shall be reviewed.
+ To develop a system whereby pension funds will be under continuous surveillance and moritoring to cater
for and resolve any potential issues that may be faced as a result of uncertain market conditions/regulatory
issues.
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Insurance Division
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Insurance Division
OBJECTIVE: To ptotect the i nsttatice policyfolders and d develop i industry.

9.1 Operational Structure
9.1.1 Structure

Insurmcc D1v1smn (ID) is rcsponsll:lc for the supervision and monitoring of insurance industry (including
caleafial and intermediarics) for ensuring compliance with relevant legal and

regulatory framewotk.

For ¢ffective supervision of Pakistan's insurance indnstry, World Bank, IMF and ADB had been emphasizing the
need on cither moving the entire ID from Tslamabad in the proximity of the majority of its regulatees i.¢. in Karachi
or expand its prescnce there. Recognising the need and importanee of being in the proximity of its regulatees, the
Commission, during the period under review; restructured D by ereating Sonthern Office in Karachi (to regulate
companies in southern region) and Northern Office in Islamabad {to regulate the companies in northern region).
Regional offices have been divided into following wings:

A, Southern Office, Karachi

. Life Insurance {all life insurers and family rakaful companies}

s Nen-Life Insurance (South based non-life insurers and all general rakafiil companies)
. Research and Development

B. Northern Office, Islamabad

. Nen-Life Insurance (North based non-life msun:rs)

. Registration (Licensing of i ‘takaful comp i brokers, i surveyors and
authorized snrveying officers)

9.1.2 Management Team

During the year under review, Mr. Shafaat Ahmad, Executive Director, retived from service and Dr Mumtaz Ahmed

Hashmi, Advisor Insurance, was entrusted with the responsibility to supervise I Division in addition to his

existingrole as advisor.

Officers of 1D in a meeting with Advisor Insurance Dir. Mumtaz Hashmi
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9.2 Sector Overview

The insyranceindustry of Pakistan, in tetms of insyrance density and penetration, is significantly smaller than other
cotintriesin the region.

Insurance Density: Pakistan USD 5.65 {in 2006) against India USD 22.70, Iran USD 36.10 & Sri Lanka USD
1630 (in2003).

Insurance Penetration; Pakistan 0.73% (in 2006) against India 3.14%, Fran 1.23% 8¢ Sti Lanka 1.46% (in 2005).

Major reasons for this situation are lack of awarcncss, low htcmy rate; lack of impertance the lndlvldm.ls give te
and the belicf: ik ive pertionof the pop thati is

Though insurance indwstry in Pakistan is underdeveloped relative to its potential, it has shown a promising growth
of well over 20% during the last couple of years (2006: 21.4% and 2005: 25.9%).

As on June 30, 2007, there were 50 insurance companies including {46 non-life, 4 life} and 2 general takaful
companies aperating in the private sector. State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC), the public sector
entity transacting life insurance business, has been gradually losing its life insurance market share to private sector
life insurers. For instance, SLIC held over 70% share in the life market in 2006 as against 75% in 2005 and 76% in
2004. National Insurance Company Limited (incorporated in 1976) is the state-cwned entity having exclusive right
to insure all public property and interests. Breakup of insurance sector in Pakistan and details of gross written
premium are provided intable 25 and 26 respectively.

9.3 Performance Review

During the year, ID examined level of compliance by the registered insurers with requirements of reinsurance and

minimum solvency margins, ID carried out the responsibilities of of the C ies Ordi as
Ticable to i 1 calcaful B

ID's astothe ion of new keafiil brokers, surveyors

and authorized surveying officers was as under:

9.3.1L {Takaful C.

Prior to p i for registration to act as an i or takaful the essential pre-
Tequisite, aﬁ‘.:robmmng the ID's consent, is incerporation of a company under the Companies Ordinance. By June
30,2007, out of ¢ permuxsmns gnmtad to th: mterested apphcants including four non-life, ene general takaful and
four family takafil, two ap for me general takaful and one family takafil were in the

final stage for issuance of the Licences. In addition, one licence to write non-life insurance business and one licence
totransact general takaful business were also granted by the ID.

9.3.2Insurance Brokers

Two fresh Licences were issued to insurance brokers, Total number of registered insurance brokers was four, as on
June 30,2007,

9.3.3 Surveyors & Aunth d Surveying Officers

During the peried, 26 firms werc issucd licences to act as insurance surveyors and 23 natural persons were registered
toactas authorized surveying officers.
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9.4 Achievements/Initiatives

ID has been taldng initistives and workdng on a ninber of reforms to ensire the protection of the intefests of
insurance policyholders and to Beiliate and promote sound development of the insutance industry.  Key
achievemnents and initiatives in-progress during FY-2007 are sutninarized below:

9.4.1 Minimum Paid-up Capital Raised

Protection of policyholders' interest and sound development of the insurance industry are directly linked with the
financial strength of the insurance companies. Keepmg this in view, minimum capital requirements have been
n-used to Rs500 million for life i takafi jes and Rs300 million for non-life

1 takafal ies. Existing life family takaful are required to meet these
higher lev::ls by 2010 and non-| life msurancefgeneml takaful by 2011.

9.4.2 Amendments made in the Ingurance Ordinance 2000

Important atendments were made in the Insurance Ordinance, 2(]00 through the Finance Act, 2007, which has
empowered the Commission to conduct on-site i ion of an i ftakafial and if so needed to
entet the company’s premises for search and take possession of such records and d ete. that it mayreqs
evidence and to remove a person holding the office of chaitman, chief executive, director, manager or principal
officer.

9.4.3 100% Foreign Equity Allowed

The Gevernment has allowed operation of fully foreign owned insurance cornpanics in the country. However,
forcign companics are required to arrange minimum foreign exchange of US$ 4 million {of which at least US$ 2
million must be brought frem abroad). Fer mecting the minimum paid-up capital requirements vnder the

bt Ordi ‘balance required and above the required forcign equity can be raised locally.

9.4.4 Review of Mini Sal Reqn

AC itree formed by the C ission to review the mini solvency requi fori

(including allocation efinwi criteria for issibility of assets and reporting on solvency by insurers, as part
of the r:gulamry ing retarns, has submitted its dari Before drafting and inroducing the
Tevised lations, the Ci ittee's report has been shared with the relevant sukchold.ﬁs for nhm.mmg
their The C ission is seriving, timely frami d notification af the regul thatnew

returnsare filed by the insurers on the revised basis.
9.4.5 Finalization of Draft of Actuarial Valuation Regulations

In consiliztion with the Pakistan Socicty of Actuaties and Life Insurers, the Commission has finglized Actuatial
Valuation Regulations, which will be forming part of the revised accotinting tegulations,

9.4.6 Conversion of Pakistan Insurance Institate

1D has made significant contnbunan to makea case: for ion of Pakistan [ Institute into a self-reliant
degree ding center of acad andp l excellence in takafuil and related topics to effectively
‘meet the currentand future HR needs of the i industry. This prop has already been approved by the

Prime Minister during the Insurance Sector Policy Reviewin April 2007,
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9.4.7 Crop Insurance

As a member of SBP's C ittee on Crop the C: ission ha ibuted towards devel and

intreduction of crep insurance products.

9.4.8 Elimination of Bogus Motor Third Party Insurance Certificates

To climinate the issuance of bogus metor third party compulsory insurance certificates by unanthorized
psmns/mnucs and to ensure that the uninsured vehicles on the country’s mads have preper m,surancc coverissued

the Division in I with the I iation of

Palmun (IAP} hasdevelopeda comprehcnsw: proposal which will be implemented shortly.

Salient featares of the proposal are:

. Excise & Taxation Departmernt will ensure that all ﬂ-urd | party insurance certificates submitted at the time of
takaful i

payment of motar vehicle tax are msued by v' Interior Ministry has
agreed to trict compliance of the p
. The Commission shall provide a list of regi di ‘takaful ‘who are authorized to issue

the certificates. Exciseand Taxation Departmentshall only accept certificates issned by these entities;

. AP has agreed to lssue third party insurance cemﬁcates which provide for admission of liability “on anofault
‘basis”. Comp made under this policy d will be as per the schedule of benefits of Workmen's

Compensation Act 1923 (prevalent capital benefits are Rs.200,000 per life), subject to an overall aggregate
limit any one aceid Rs.10m and hall be payable to the third party without going to courts.

In view of the scheme being beneficial ta the road vietims, concerted efforts are expected from all stakeholders te
encourage pecple towards purchasmg genuine motor third party covers thereby also contributing towards
ofthei takaful) industry of Pakistan.

9.4.9 Review of Takaful Rules 2005

Recognizing the need for an Islamic alternate to insurance, a regulatory framework ie the form of the Takaful Rules
was notified in September 2005, To improve insurance penetration level, the Prime Minister, recognizing the
wemendous potential and to take full advantage of the available indusury's infrastructure, agreed during a
presentation on insurance sector policy review in April 2007, to allew conventional insurers to transact takaful
‘business via “window” aperation. Further, there kave been a number of pncucal issues, which were inadequately

addressed in the existing takaful rules, and have been highlighted by pr Is, takaful and Shariah
scholars from time to time, In this regard, to review the Tal:aﬁ]lRules and develop cmena/guldehnes for transaction
of takaful business by cunvenﬂuml insurers via windew the are working with a
commities formed by the Ci The ] pected to be finalized soon.

9.4.10 Insurance Ombudsman's Office

The C issi ded full assi in establishing the Insurance Ombudsman's Office in Karachi in: 2006,
which since then, has been functional and attending to the cases of alleged mal-administration on the part of any
insurers in dealing with their respective policyholders.

9.4.11 Mortality Table Being Updated

The mortality table that has been followed since early 1960s by the life insurers is being updated according to the
current needs.
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9.4.12 Membership of Islamic Financial Services Board

During the year under review, the Commission joitted the Ishamic Financial Services Board as its member. The
Cotnmission is alteady a2 member of International Association of Insyrance Supetvisors & International
Organization of Pension Supetvisors.

M=
(=
(=}
o~
joR
o
O
o
w
(i
=1
<
3
z
=
<

108




Chapter 10
Legal Department




M=
(=]
(=]
]
i
o
O
o
(i1}
o
=
<
=i
z
=
<

Legal Department

OBJECTIVE: 'Ts manage the legal afisirs of the Commission, provide prompt legal advice to operational divisions ard efficiently
Ltigation by and ageinst the Commissi

10.1 Operational Structure

10.1.1 Structure

Legal D (D) jons as an ind Jent d. and operated under direct guidance of the
Chairman tll the appointment of Mr. $. Tariq Asaf Husain (CommissionerLaw). It operates with a mandate to
independently manage the legal affairs of the Commission and to provide impartial legal advice to each operational
department.

The LD has beer divided into the following three wings:

. Advisory and Adjudication
. Litigation
. Legislation and Special Tasks

10.1.1.1 Advisory and Adjudication Wing

Advisory and Adjudicztion Wing of LD advises the operational divisions and departments on a number of wide-
ranging and importantissnes. Moreover, the Federal Ministries and Departments often refer work of advisorynature
to the Commission where they seek the Commission's expertise en issues pertaining to the corporate sector and
securities market. The wing is also responsible for vetting and drafting, where requested to do so, of notifications,
circularsand notices on behalfof the Commission.

10.1.1.2 Litigation Wing

All litigation matters of the Commission are handled by the Litigation Wing with the necessary support of the
aperational departments. The wing provides legal advice to external counsel on all potential legal issues inchuding
analysis, evaluation and defense. The wing at times represents the Commission before the Courts. For the sake of
greater efficiency; the lawyers in Litigation Wing have been assigned work by reference to the operational
departments.

10.1.1.3 Legislation Wing

The Commission conshmly socls to update its regulatory framework and fill any gaps or loopholes. Legislation
Wing facilitates the op department leading the reform process with the formulation of legislation.
10.1.1.4 Legal Wing {South)

During the year, LTY set up a Legal Wing in Karachi that manapes all the legal affairs of the Commission for the
Southern Region. Thishas greatly facilitated the legal work in sonthem region.

10.1.2 Management Team

Ms. Amber Dar, Executive Director, who was head of Legal Department, left the Commission in March 2007 and
overall supervision of the department was entrusted to Mr. Muhammad Asbraf Tiwana, Director (Law).
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Mr. Tiwana is a foreign qualified lawyer and kas been werking for the Commission for more than five years. He has
emensive xperience ofthe s administered by the Commision s well ts rgultery ramerwork. The srength of
the Legal Department liesin the diversity of p jonalexperi ions ofits 1:

Subsequent to the close of the year, Mir. S. Tariq Asaf Husain joined the Commission as Commissioner (Law). A
lawyer by profession, he brings with him over 35 years of experience. Mr. Husain practiced in the High Courts
and Supreme Court of Pakistan and alsa lectured at the Sindh Muslim Law College, Karachi. Additionally, he
worked abroad as a senier cormsel with major corporations, mznaging their legal risks.

Officers of LT with Directar Mr. Asheaf Trwana

10.2 Performance Review

Duyring the year, Legal Department in collak with the. ional d drafted a number of Laws and
rules, ‘The Legal Department played 3 major tale in speatheading and drafiing amendments in various laws
administered by the Commission, Most of these amendmcms wcle propesed as a tesult of numerous issues
identified by the Legal Departmentwhile advising t 3

The Legal Departiment also played a significant rele in devel and 1 the Stock Bxcl
(CorpumLsauon Demutiialization and Integration) law and was mwllsely involved in the stakeholder dialogue
by the C ission with the stockexch

During theyear underreview the Legal Departmentassisted in the drafting of the following laws and rules:

. Draft Real Estate Investment Trust (REITS) R:gu]ztmns 2007

. Draft Steck Exchanges (Corporati: and b ion) Ordi 2007

. Amend in Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordi in Itation with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP}

& Amend in the Companies Ordi 1984

. A d in the Securitics and Exch di 1969

. A d in the Securities and Exch ission.of Pakistan Act, 1997

. Amendments in the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

Atthe same: time the Legal Department remzained actively involved in the exerclse o cumpletelyrevamp the existing
X d by the C: ission. The new lawswhich are in the pi are the draft Financial
Services Commission Act, the new Securities Act, the draft Futures Act: and the drnft Cnmpames Act.
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In additien to the above kgislative work, the Legal Departinent previded numerous opinions to the operational
deplmncrm on some very comphcnn:d mucs It also pmvlded legal support during investigations and inquiries
d inglepal proceedings and court cases.

10.3 Cerperate Laws Review Commission

The Cotporate Laws Review Cotmnission continted to work under the leadership of former Chief Justice of
chsnn Mr. Justice (Retd.} Ajmal Mian. The work on drafting a new Companies law has been outsourced by the

onthe Jation of CLRC to an external cottnsel. The new Law is being developed in the light
of the Concept Paper approved by CLRC in May 2006.

After the departure of Ms. Amber Dar from the C dssion, Mr. Tahir Mek d tve Director
(Enforcement Departinent) has been nornittated as the Secretary to the CLRC. The Legal Department continties to
provide assistance to CLRC and its Seeretary on legal issties.

10.4 Trainings and Workshops

In order to maintain and enhance the quality of legal services that they offer, lawyers need to npdate and develop

specialist areas of knowledpe and improve their skills. Funhermore in the face of i mcrezsmg competition m the

market for legal services, lawyers must have sufficient flexibili the changi: dsofthep

The liwyers of the Lepal Department have attended trainings on varions subjects relevant to the needs of the
ionally and internationally. These trainings included:

Corporate Governance
Corporate Finance

Mergers and Acquisitions
Takaful (Islamic Insurance)
Islamic Banking and Finance
Takeovers and Mergers

“ e e

10.5 Puture Plans

TheLegal Depar plans to undertake the following activities over the comingyear:

. Improve management of litigation by making the Court Case Database mere inter-active and nser-friendly.

+ Develop auser-friendly data-base for all legal opinions provided by the Legal Department

. Improve and manage advisory work and to improve the rate of turn-over.

. Formulate and improve internal worlnngproocsscs

. Devel dardized di iplates for use by the of d departments.

+ Improve the working of the Legal Department and its functions in supporting the aperational departments
through use of IT solutions.

«  Tssuean online quarterly Newsletter for the benefit of the op 1dep: coveringlegalissties facing
the Commission.

13




M=
(=
(=}
o~
joR
o
O
o
w
(i
=1
<
3
z
=
<

In additien to the above kgislative work, the Legal Departinent previded numerous opinions to the operational
deplmncrm on some very comphcnn:d mucs It also pmvlded legal support during investigations and inquiries
d inglepal proceedings and court cases.

10.3 Cerperate Laws Review Commission

The Cotporate Laws Review Cotmnission continted to work under the leadership of former Chief Justice of
chsnn Mr. Justice (Retd.} Ajmal Mian. The work on drafting a new Companies law has been outsourced by the

onthe Jation of CLRC to an external cottnsel. The new Law is being developed in the light
of the Concept Paper approved by CLRC in May 2006.

After the departure of Ms. Amber Dar from the C dssion, Mr. Tahir Mek d tve Director
(Enforcement Departinent) has been nornittated as the Secretary to the CLRC. The Legal Department continties to
provide assistance to CLRC and its Seeretary on legal issties.

10.4 Trainings and Workshops

In order to maintain and enhance the quality of legal services that they offer, lawyers need to npdate and develop

specialist areas of knowledpe and improve their skills. Funhermore in the face of i mcrezsmg competition m the

market for legal services, lawyers must have sufficient flexibili the changi: dsofthep

The liwyers of the Lepal Department have attended trainings on varions subjects relevant to the needs of the
ionally and internationally. These trainings included:

Corporate Governance
Corporate Finance

Mergers and Acquisitions
Takaful (Islamic Insurance)
Islamic Banking and Finance
Takeovers and Mergers

“ e e

10.5 Puture Plans

TheLegal Depar plans to undertake the following activities over the comingyear:

. Improve management of litigation by making the Court Case Database mere inter-active and nser-friendly.

+ Develop auser-friendly data-base for all legal opinions provided by the Legal Department

. Improve and manage advisory work and to improve the rate of turn-over.

. Formulate and improve internal worlnngproocsscs

. Devel dardized di iplates for use by the of d departments.

+ Improve the working of the Legal Department and its functions in supporting the aperational departments
through use of IT solutions.

«  Tssuean online quarterly Newsletter for the benefit of the op 1dep: coveringlegalissties facing
the Commission.
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Support Services Division

OBJECTIVE: T, fmlmm d\:/:hargz nf:tnmmry ¢ festections by other Divisions of the Cosnenission by providing the suppert in the
areas of humat resourees,

11.1 Operational Structure

11.1.1 Seructure

The Support Services Division (SSD) is responsible for facilitating the onal divisions of the C.
and ensuring their smooth functioning, Tthas b dinto the following thres departments:

- Human Rescurces and Training
- Finance and Administration

- jon Systems and Teck

11.1.2 Management Team

SSD works under the direct supervision of the Chairman. Mr. Javed K Siddiqui, Executive Director, heads the
Finance and Administration Department, Mr. Arshad Javed Minhas, Execntive Director, heads the Information
Systems and Technology Department and Mr. Mansur Ahsan, Executive Director heads the Human Resonree and
Training Department.

11.2 Human Resources & Training Department-(HR & TRG}

‘The D i ible for facilitating the overall devel of the hiiman atthe C:
T]:eHR&TRGDep;runmussﬂ’ucttlredmtothefu]lovnngwnmngs

- Human Resources Wing
- Training Wing

Officets of HR & TRG in a mecting with ED Mr. Mansar Ahsan.

The Ymr 2007 h:s been a chzllengmg ymr fnr HR & 'TRG Department. Keeping in view the Commission's
t and ives were taken during the year:

l pl P ng:

16

11.2.1 Introdh of Market/P Based New Terms & Conditions for Empl
(NTC)
The Commission had been facing problems in retaining its valued empl due to high turhover and failure te

attract suitable professionals from the matket due to non—competitive and market-alienated cormpensation system,
T address this problem, market-based compensation systermn and tertms of employtment were introduced with the
salient features as below:

p
Market-based Salary Structure
Performance-based annual salary reviews
Botius (Both Guaranteed & Performancs)
Car Policy (providing cars from employees Grade C and above)
Eligibility for Provident Fund & Gratuity

position t inue till the age of 60 years

LR R A

Officers were given the option either to eptfor NTC or retain the old terms and conditions for employment.

11.2.2 Introduction of New Perfor M, System

Dunngtheyear,ancwl’ Systern was impl d in the C ission, The System is
based on Objectives (MBO} hi.e. Goal Settingand developing Key Restlt Areas (KRAs).
The Bxercise on developing KRAs /Goal Settingwas carried outwith the help of d 1

i.e. M/s Sidat Hyder Morshed Associates (SHMA). The main objective behind this exercise was to develop the KRAs
on which the employees can work during the year and subsequently their performance can effectively be judged on
theachievements againsttheir KRAs,

11.2.3Performance and Guaranteed Bonuses

Bonus is anc of the salicnt featres of NTC. The officers will be allowed one gross salary as a guaranteed bonus and
in addition to this, performanee bonus with the approval of the Policy Board will alse be allowed subject to the
officers performance; this bonus may vary from 0 1o 2 gross salaries.

During the year, for the first time in the Commission, the officers rated excellent, very good and good were given 3
grosssalaries, 2.5 pross salaries and 1.5 gross salaries respectively, including guaranteed & performance bonuses.

11.2.4M: Devel Pr {MDPs)

P Er

Continueus capacity building of employees has been a regular feature at the Commission. Apart from routine cycle
of technical trainings, this year, Training Department fecused on d.evclopmg m:mag:nal cc:mpetencl:s nf empluyees
Therefore, to equip all officers with hardcore P Like 1 skills,

conflict resolution, decision making and creative thinking etc. a series of MDPs were initiated by engaging the
renowned management trainers from M/s Nivatus & M/s Gulfstone Training,

In this regard, first MDP was conducted in Islamabad from March 26 to March 30, 2007. This will be followed by a
seriesof MIDPs untilall officers have undergone this training. Apart from this, the employees have been sent on open
enrellment trainings in various external institutes (local as well as foreign). In this regard, 38 officers were sent on
forcign trainings whereas 111 officers were sent on local trainings.
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11.2.5Group Life Insurance (GLI)

Previously, no insyrance cowerwas available to the employees of the Commission against yntimely death. Realizing
this, the process was initiated for installing 4 suitable GLT schemne in collaboration with Insurance Division of the
Cotnmission. For this purpnse, M/s New]uhnlcc Insurance (NJT} hzs been selected for providing insurance cover to

he etripl . The heme inclyde the foll

. All erepl of the C ission, including Chairman & C would be covered under the
scheme;

. In case of normal death, 12 grass salaries will be paid to thel iary of the d d employee, whereas sum
assured will be donbled i.e. 24 gross salaries in case of accidental death. The mini and limnits

are Rs. 0.2 million and Rs. 3 million respectively.
11.2.6 Health Care Initiatives

Toensure gno:l h:alth ofthe cmplayces anannual medlcal checkup was arranged during the year. Apart from annual
checkup, th p. given Hepatitis-B

11.2.7Promotions of Officers

During the yeara promotion policy was introduced and impl din the C: ‘whereby 145 officers were
shortlisted for promotien interviews on the basis of their relevant & additional qualifications, seniority and
performance appraisals of past three years. These officers were further interviewed by the Commission and 51
officers were promated.

11.2.8Promotions of Support Staff’

A pramotion policy for the support staff was also introdnced and implemented duting the year. Towl number of
regular cmplnyocs inCPS2 m 4 was 162, out of which 150 were cligible for consideration for promotions as per

the C ission. Out of this, 140 employecs were found suitsble and promoted
tothcncxtlcvclwc f]’uly 01,2007,

11.2.9 Designing & Implementation of Online CV Submission S; /R Tracki
System (RTS)
Recruitment process was also refined by designing & impl ing Online CV Submission System & RTS.

Previously, the resumes against the advertised posts were invited in hard copies. Therefore, initial screening of
resumes was also done manually which was 2 time consuming and cumbersome process. In order to
minimize/reduce the hiring time, a systemn was designed and developed in collaboration with 1S &T Department.

Onlm: CV Subinission System is. w:ulnhlc to the Applicants to create their individual CVs & to apply for/against the
tised. Once a candid Joped the Resume’, hc/shc can login to update histher profile from time to

time. The system is user-friendly and minimizes queries and sul time.

RTS is to facilitate the Recruitment Wing in hiring throngh the datsbank of CVs. Through this system the HR and

the concerned departments obtain “at-a-plance” info through applicant detail sheets. This system can generate

v:u-mus reports and facﬂu::c in short- listing, scheduling interviews, maintaining score sheets (after interviews} and
e anpli

corresp with PP
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11210 ing Hi R Inf ion System (EIRIS) & Data Centre

HRIS has also been revamped and improved. One of the major achi of the HR Dy is the creation
ofa Data Center i.e. a dedicated unitwithin HR Departmentto continuonusly manage 8cupdate HRIS.

11.2.11 Family Gala/Cricket Match

In order to provide an opportunity of secial get-together of employecs & their familics, a family extravaganza/get
together was arranged in April 2067. The cvent was aimed at bringing fun and entertainment te the employees &
their familics.

Apart from participation in various activitics organized for the overall family entertainment, the cvent alse provided
the participants with an opportunity te interact with one another in a casual and friendly covirenment. The cvent
also inclnded a a@icket maich played between “SECP Greems” & “SECP Blues” representing all the
divisions/departments of SECE:

Singing compecition in progress at SECF Family Gala

Aview of the ¢ricket masch between SECP-Blyes and SECP-Greens
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11.2.12 New Joinings

From July 2006 to June 2007 Forty Seven officers joined the Commission. Details in this respect are provided in
tables 27, 28 and 29 in statistical section.

Educational Profile of Officers Inducted During the Year

Qualification legend of officers Inducted In FY 06-07

ocA

m CA {Part quallfied}
OACMAJACCA

O MS Acluarial Sciences/AC-II
B MIT/M. Sc/MCSIM.COM

OMBA
ELLM
oLa

11.3 Finance and Administration Department (F & A}

11.3.1 Finance Department

‘The Finance Department is responsible fm directing and Uling the areas of financial

treasury and bud M oftware is being uscd for the maintenance of books of
accounts and a saund accounting systetm &s in plice, It works within 3 transparent and effective mlcrnal control
tetm, Morcovet, policies and ) are well d 1, regularly d and imp d upen, and
cunslstcndy adhered to, It follaws Lhe relevant requirements of the SECP Act in processing payments, recording
and and ining books of accounts, It bas two wings which perform the following

functlons,

. Finance Wing

dt

‘This wing is responsible for ing payment p for authorized jons while ensuring to
the established policies and procedures. It also manages profi uhle & secure investment of surplus funds in
accordance with approved policies and liaises with banks t ar

. Accounts Wing

The Accounts Wing is responsible for the prEparatiun of budget and obtaining appreval from the Policy
Board. It also i actual diture against bud, d limits. The wing is also responsible for
maintaining proper hooks of accounts for the Commission, Thisincludes recording of all transactions for
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receipts and payments, fixed assets, other assets and liabilities while ensuring that internal controls are
propetly adhered to.

The wing ensures that financial statement are prepared, in accordance with international accounting
standards, audited and approved for submission to the Federal Government in a preper and timely manner.
It also prepares and distributes monthly management information reports within the Commissicn and
liaises with the external auditors,

Officers of S5 in a meeting with BD Mr. Javed K. Siddgqui

11.3.2 Administration Wing

The Administration Wing provides a wide range of support scrvices to manage the Commission's facilitics and asscts
including, transport, equipment, office supplics, furniture and fixmre, hiring and maintenance of office premiscs,
maintenance of assets, mail receipts and deliveries, pnnﬂng of rcports procurement of poods and services and other
allied matters. Ithas been extensively engaged in di for divisions atthe head office
of the Commission and for CROs to efficiently dischargc chclrduucs

11.4 Information Systems And Technology Department (IS & T)

IS&T Departiment provides 3 range of information lﬂ;}mology suppott setvices to build the Commissions
information infrastrictiire and create an within the Commission, The
setvices extended by [S&T Departinent range from variots management support fanciions, specialized and MIS
apphcatlons a.nd managed worksuuons Major arcas of opmuons include software systems and database

..m LAN/WAN ivity and central
setvices; mamgcclw Lkstation setvices; hard services and training in IT products and services,
Mgjotity of the Cﬂmmlsslons ptOJDCtS that are either tnder implementation ot forthcoming inclyding the ¢-
Services, D hiving, Disaster Recovery Centre, BRF, Insurance Industry Reguilatory
Systetn, Market Manitoting and S'.lrvclll;mcc System and Data Warchausing are driven by the initiative taken by the
IS8T Department.

11.4.1 Structure

The department has been informally divided into Systems, Network and Security, Disaster Recovery, Software and
Databases and Data Warcheusing wings.
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Officers of IS & TD it 4 mecting with ED Mt. Atshad Javed Minhas

11.4.2 Performance Review

IS8T Department has cvolved from p of simple workstation fiunction to one of facilitation for
all core functmns of th: Cornxmsslon While werking with the lelSlOm of the Commission IS&T Department

cnsnres devel ion of tail de systems g to the IS&T hasipitiated
various initiativesin-house and with outsih pport, forging long~term par hips in the process.
During the year, IS&T Dep: successfully gistered for the ISO9001:2000 certification. The ISO

certifying body awarded the IS & T Department with a three year certificate, with only one Surveillance Audit
required annually.

114.3IT Projects and Initiatives

Some of the major projects being carried outby IS&T department areas follows:

K eServices Project:

Funded by B-Government Directorate, eServices projectis one of the major projects which will enable all regulated
companies to electronically submit statutory documents online using a pre-defined format through a software
application provided by the Commission. The system on implantztion will reduce undue paper work and improve

businessprocesses.

eServices has pleted the i ion, elaboration, and impk phases, and is currently in the final stages of

the deploymentphase. eServices will soon be avulableformoorporanonof ‘companies and filing of returns.

. Market Surveillance System (MSS)

Rapid increase in stock market capitalization, daily transactions volume and turnover necessitates the antomation of
the market surveillance function undertaken by the Commission. The Commission has planned to procure 2n off
the shelf Market Surveillance Solution for reliable market data and online alert generation to monitor market activity
and ensure efficiency and transparency.

I5&T Department in collaboration with the Market Surveillance Wing of the SMD has carried out extensive
research on the varions MSS available in the intermnational marker. The Commission selected a solution. Aproofof
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concept (POC) was successfully carried out by the IS&T, MSW and the vendor. Based on the result of the POC the
Commission hasawarded the contract for the MSS.

. Scanning and Archiving Project

The Commission intends to scan and archive all documents located at its head office in Islamabad and all the CROs.
The scanned documents along with metadata will be archived in a repository of a content management system. The
documents will be archived in such a way that they can be accessed by the authorized employee, department, and/ or
divisionbased on the metadata The prajectis currently underimplementation at the Islamabad and Karachi CROs.

. Data Warehouse Project
The C i has errvi: d designing a data for analysis and strategic decision making that will

emhle dy'namlc repcms genermon for effective regulations, The data warehouse will enable use of data to support
i of information to the stakeholders.

For the purpose of procuring data warehouse solution, the PC1 prepared by the Department is under review for
approvalwith EGD.

. Database Clustering and Storage Consolidation Project

Database Clusteting and Storage project simplifying and optimizing existing end-to-end infrastricties (inchidi
setvers, storage, datab licati ks and systemns has been
implemented, The project ais to redtice rectirting costs and complexdties and provide a more rational, stable
foundation for grewth and new solution deployment,

m

. Physical Access Control System

Physical Access Controls Systems Pegasus'has Iy been deployed atthe C 'shead office this year.
These proximity card readers in bis with daor. loc]u provide phynal access to only authorized person(s). Tt
isalso nsed for d afth ployees of the and stopp ized entries to the offices.

+  Video Conferencing System (VCS)

IS&T Department has successfully deployed and tested a VCS between Karachi, Lahore and Head Office to be used
for anline meetings and discussions.

. Disaster Recovery Center (DRC)

Esmb].lshmcnt of DRC is still under process of evaluation. Fwo opti under ideration. Optien one, to have
the C ion's own DRC was delib d with the logical departments and international surveys were
studied to predict the expected disasters. The second option, te partially outsource the DRC where network side
infrastructure and locatmn wﬂl be pmvlded hy the outsouroer and the server side hardware and application will be
previded by the C i e dte reach a final decision.

11.4.4 Development Activities

During the year, lots of activities have been carried out by IS&T. Various applications were developed in-honse and a
few were cutsourced. Number of software packages have been developed and implemented, while a host of such
solutions are being supported by and maintained by 1S&T: Brief profiles of th provided below:
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+ SECTeday

SECTodayis a knowledge sharing tool for all the employees of the Commission in the form of an Intranet web portal
which enable the internal stakeholders interact with the various I'T applications and also acts as an information
platform having day to day news and updates.

+ Resutne Submission System (RSS)

This system is used for receiving online resumes and provides nutomat:d shert-listing procedure. A tetal of 70 jobs
wereadvertised on the andap 1y 8000 T and ions werereceived through the RSS.

*  Legal Opinion Management System

This system maintains record of legal opinions; and replics to legal queries sentby all divisions to cutside partics. This
helps in tracking opinions given by the ion on different ions and in cnsuring i of opinions
oranissue.

. Brokers and Agents Registration system

‘This systemn keeps track of th licati by thebrokers and th fthe brokers.

. Purchase Management System

The systern is used by the P d Admi ion Dy fortt ‘hase function.

. Inventory Management Systetn

Liisene of the key f ERP and add. the difficulty previous! din lly handling dataand
maintenance of inventory records,

. Transport Management System

The system is used by tl'lc Administration depanfnem to keep track of the Commission vehicles insurance,
fuel andall and de-allocati the vehicles to Commission employees.

- Court Case Database

This database keeps track of all cascs filed by or against the Commission in various courts of law and maintains an up-
to-date status of cach of these.

- Human Resonrce Information System
Thisisan initiative toshare information relating to human resource matters with the employees of the Commission.
. Intranct for Legal Department

An intranet portal for Legal Department bas also been developed which is information rich and integrated with the
applications developed Legal Department.
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Enf ER.Y Py

) En ing System

The enfarcement and monitoring system provides for initial review of accounts, decision support feature,
subrmission of returns and detailed examination ofacconnts ete.

. Beneficial Ownership Management System (BOMS)

The BOMS is used to record details of Shareholders based on returns received dxrough Form A and u/s 222, It alse
matches data received through the ypes of returns rrectness and

+  Compatry Registration and Compliance System (CRCS)

CRCS is 2 comprehensive database of regi d
liance with the Companies Ordi

The database is used by the Commission to ensure the

*  Website Management

Inline with the C: isgi hasis on di
updated on adaily basis by IS&T.

of information to facilitate the general public, the website is

11.4.5 Infrastructure Enhancement

IS&T Department continuously work to enhance the exdsting inflastructure te ensure accommodation for all
existingand fittiire processing eeds, Pollowdig activitics have been cartied eutfor this purpose;

. Server C. lidation, Optimization and Enh

Server consolidation has been carried out to ensure, centralization, data umegmy, application integration and
reduced infrastructure costs. RAM memory hasbeen i d beside oth forthe purpose.

. Network & Systetn Management

‘Te moniter the servers and network equipmentand to get quick alarms against any malfunction or unavailability of
the itored device, CA, a d network & systermn management suite of applications Uni Center, Report
Manager & Spectrum has recently been deployed.

El C ication link enh

To facilitate communication between CROS, bead ofﬁce and othcr outside sources, the communication link
‘between varions sites has been P P d -without delay.

. Network Security Enhancements
An elaborate Intrusion Detection and Prevention Systemn has been commissioned to ensure protection of data.
. Comprehensive Tape Library Solution

To enstire data seenrity and disaster recovery, comprehensive tape library solution has been implemented ta ensure
proper backnps with least taxing on the network system.
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. Uninterrupted Power Supply

UPS (Uninterrupted Power Supply) have been provided to ensure scalability and power erisis management.

Foridth Enk

- Disaster R y Center B

Increased bandwidth ensures 24 X 7 connectivity with disaster recovery center and provides quick respense to any
data requests.

. Help Desk

Help desk for complaintreceipt, management and tracking system ensures minimum response time to allrequests.
11.4.6 Future Plans

18&T Departmenthas developed an IT Swrategic plan that covers the future IS& T Departnent's activities and lists all
the merits of develapment / procurement of such systems, Some ef the projects planned for next fiscal year are
outlined as mentioned below:

. ERP

It has been proposed to obtain a comtneteial off the shelf ERP solytion for Finance, HR and Payroll that will be
ized before implh i

. Capacity Building & Training Needs

I8&T Department regularly carries out various trainings according to the training need analysis of the staff at the
Commission. This includes but is notlimited to training of IT staff at CROs, end user trainings, capacity buildingat
IS&T and ion of training s and 1 Dsfor the purpose.

. Establishment of Data Center

Adata Center will be established to provide efficient services for IS&T operations.

. Disaster Recavery Center Update

The Disaster Recovery Ceuter is being evaluated for the two options presented to the management. The
G issien has ddeingt kon 23" option which stases 'Opt for a completely outsourced model of

the DR Center'. All services and resources will be acquired from a cempany having its own established Data Center
1 : <l standard
to

11.4.7 Infr ucture Enh

. Network Expansion

With the growing number of headceunts in different departments and the CROs; there is an urgent need to expand
the network infrastructure to cope up with the needs of the organization and its differcnt segments., IS&T have
already planned and budgeted LAN expansion; wotking paper has already beer prepated and approval is awaited to
proczed further.
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. Security certi Hon 'ISO 27001 at IS &'T

I8&T Department has planned to get Information Security standards “ISO 270017 certification during the coming
year. This will enable itto provide secure and always available services internally as well as ta its customers. One of
the local consultants will be approached to proceed ahead towards this certification.

- Network Vulnerability Assessment Tools

For this purpose, IS&T intends to acquire network vulnerability assessment toels to ensure security management,
network fanle management and wroubleshooting infrastructure. It will help analyzing utilization information and
willalse helpin ascermining the future requirements,

. Information Security Andit

Based upon the requirements of both external auditors and IS&XT Department, information security audit will be

carried out to ascertain the current security scenario and identify any requirements for adding onto the same. This
willalso helpin ining the fittre

. Scaling-up of SRO/CRO Infrastructure

Scaling-up of servers and network deployment is in progress to fulfil current and future requirements of the
CROs/SROs in terms of growing number of employees, running applications, traffic among CROs and head office.
Network expansion is also in progress to provide better network services.

. Scaling-up of Head Office Infrastructure

‘With the current renovation iz progress, and to cepe-up with current and future requirements, there is 2 need te

scale-up servers and network infrastructure at the headoffice. New servers and core network devices have already
‘been planned to be purchased for this purpose.
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Table 1: Disposal of Complaints, Petitions and Appeals (1 July 2006 — 30 June 2007)

Receipis Brought Forward Received | Total | Disposed Off | Ouistanding
Complaints 189 1232 1421 1262 159
Ministry references a 120 130 130 Q

_Enquiries 0 468 | 468 468 0
Table 2: Detail of Complaints Handled
Nature of Complaints Brought Received | Total | Disposed | Outstanding
Forward OFf
Non-transfer/receipt and issue of % 455 521 507| 14
duplicate shares
1 7 8 3 o
Wrong deduction of Zakat
Short-payment, non-receipt of 13 143 | 156 150 &
dividend
1 24 %5 5 0
Non-receipt of annual and half
yearly acceunts
Complaints against company ¢ 34 34 31 3
management
L o 24 24 18 -]
Disptites in share holdings
e 130 111 241 130 1
Complaints against brokers
Miscellaneous 18 04 | 412 393 19
Total 189 1232 | 141 1262| 159

Table 3: Number and 'Type of Companies

Type of Companies Total companies as | Totzl companies as
on 30.06.2006 on 30.06.2007

C des limited by shares

Public listed {only those which are registered under the 613 612

Companies Ordinance, 1984)

Public unlisted 2,178 2211

Private 45,928 46,548

SMCs 436 610

Total companies limited by shares 49,155 49,981

C jes limited by u/ad3 62 68

Not-for-profit iations 1u/s 42 341 356

Trade O; izati 181 202

Foreign comparnies 653 710

Unlimited companies 5 5

Companies under section 503 of the Companies

Ordi 1984 4 5

Total Companies 5.4 oL
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: Table 4: Province-Wise Distributien of Total Companies ‘Table 6: Sectoral Distribution (Limited by Shares) :
od Province / Territory Number of Percentage Share o
o companies (%) Sectors Total C o
= Punjab 23,174 46 =

Sindh 17,362 34 Auto & Allied 408
& NWEP 3275 6 Broadcasting and Telecastiny 42 =
v luchi 702 1 Cable & Electrical Goods T} e
- lamabad Capital Tetritory 6814 13 Carpets and Rugs 2 =
< Total & i 51,327 0 Cement 7 <
=) Chetnical 1,113 =
= Pharmaceuticals 737 =
= Table 5: Capitalization Breakdown [ icati 2,165 =
< Paid up Capital (F5) Tored Unlsted | Private | SMCs | Toml | %uge g:;;:::?“ el Farening 1';;; <

companies | public companies PR 03

comgame: . S

Up to 106,000 1 48 20,607 373 | 21429 4287 Buginoatng 1615

100,001 to 500,000 1 343 7,037 100 7481 1497 Finance and Banking, GiE)

500,001t0 1,000,000 o 105 4,566 59 4730 .46 Food and Beverages 1536

1,000,001 o 10,000,000 34 343 10,804 48 | 11,29 2247 Footware 24

10,000,001 to 100,000,000 26 662 3,168 28| 4,084 8.17 Fuel and Energy 882

100,000,601 o 500,000,000 236 242 319 2 799 1.60 Ginning 219

500,000,601 1 1,000,000,000 45 32 29 0 106 021 Glass and Ceramics 287

1,000,006,001 to above & 3 13 0 12 025 Hedlthcar: 72

Information Technalogy 1,794

Insurance 112

Jute 17

Leather and Tanaerics 386

Lodging 170

Mining and Quarrying 142

Paper and Board 496

Power Generati 361

Real estate Development 96

Scrvices 3,776

Sport Goods 53

Steel and Allied 19

Sugar and Allied 155

Synthetic and Rayon 114

Textile 4,221

Tobacco 118

Tourism 2,403

Trading 2,320

Transport 698

‘Vanaspati and Allied 369

Wood and Wood Products 93

Other Sectors 18,319

Total 39,981
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Table 7: Associations Not For Profit

Object No of Associations
Commeree 217
Are 3
Science 11
Religion 18
Sports 23
Social Services 151
Chariry 59
Others 76
Total 5358
‘Table 8: Foreign Companies
Country Number of Companies
USA 133
UK 102
France 23
Germany 24
China 21
Japan 34
Australia 12
Middle East Countries 48
Far Eastern Countries 72
Other Countries 122
Other Asian Countries 55
Other Countries 64
Total 710
Table 9: Newly Registered Companies

Type of Companies FY 2005-06 FY 2006-07
[¢! jes limited by shares:

Public unlisted i 93 9

Private 5,768 4,318

SMCs 198 178
Total ies limited by shares 6,059 4,595
Associations not-for-profit w/'s 42 56 41
C ies limited by ws 43 6 [
Trade Organizati 4 3
Foreign 61 o4
Total Newly Registered Companies 6,186 4,703

Table 10 List of Cases Approved Under The Companies Ordinance and Rules
Regulations Made Therennder

Sr. | Relevant Section of the | Nature of Approval/Permission Sought Cases
# Ordinance. Disposed
(No.)
1 Scetion 21 A d in dum and articles of associatior 174
2 Section 24(3} Exdension in time for filing the documents or: confirmation 1
of al
3 Scction 37 ilability of name 12,236
4 Section 39 Change of mame 100
5 Section 42 Grant of license to as: 45
6 Section 44 [of ion of public into private 16
7 Section 8§6 Further issue of capital 2
) Sections 121,129,132 Repit i dification and sati ion of charge 6,296
2 Section 131 Condenation of delay in submission of particulars of charge 20
10 Section 146 G of business certificate 42
1 Sections 158 Extension in period for helding of AGM s by non-listed 63
public and private i
12 Section 159(7) Holding of an EOGM at a sherter natice 2
13 Section170 Calling of overdue i 9
14 Section 195 Grant of loans to dircctors of pon-listed public 3
15 Section 233 Preparation of first accounts exceeding 12 months 5
16 Section 237 ion for Ci lidation of A 5
17 Section 252 App of Anditors 4
18 Section 258 Approval of appoi of cost anditor 51
19 Scction 43%(9) R ion of name of company te the register of 12
20 Section 466(5) Issue of certified copies ef documents 28,319
21 Rule 8 read with Rule 10 | Grant of Relaxation from issuanee of shares for consideration 1
of th & Companies {Issue | other than cash
of Capital) Rules,1996
22 Rule 5 of the Companics 3
Share Capital (Variation.
in Rights and Privileges)
Raules, 2000
23 Regulation 18 of the Inspection of records maintained with CROs 13,508
Companies (Reg istration
Offices) Regulations
2003.
24 Miscellaneous (miner activities, providing information to 32,030
different agencies and shareholders, etc)
Total 93,947
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b= S |2 |é|w| Z Table15: Complaints Received and Disposed Of at Each Stock Exchange(1 July 2006 -3¢ ks
4 == = June 2007) &
o §|5(8|8 § (& e}
o TlEE|E| & |8 o
w - g |4 KSE LSE ISE Total w
e = Ne. of complaints brought forward from previous year 9 35 46 130 i
- EIE|8I5| ¢ o
< & |5 |8 |R| = New complainty/claims received 65 32 14 11 <
= = = =
- g |E|2/8| B |& Total complaints deale with by ICW 114 67 60 41 =
§le|d(8| 8|8 z
=z 2|2 & 9| F £o .
P g4 & 5 Break up of total comp dealt with by ICW =
=
= — Complaints disposed off {1 July 2006 — 30 June 2007 35 21 54 130
zZ|Z|Z| 2
Complaints under examination with the ICW and under process at 59 46 6 1
Stock Exct as on 1 July 2007
Z|E|2|E| 2|8
3 Table 16: Assets Managed Under Different Categories of Mutual Funds
] {Assets in Million Rs.)
: Closed End Funds End Fund Grand Total
8 -3 ; S.No | Nature of Mutial Punds o Orpeil . el
§ a8 g Ne. Total Assets No. | Total Assets | No. | Total Assets
i % |8 5 E = E: 1 | Asset Allocation Funds 1 4,252.93 4 4,085.87 5 8,338.80
25 | 23 E '§ 3 2 | Balanced Funds 3 3,870.33 3 657041 6 10,440.74
E g g g Bslal 2 3 | Capital Protected Funds 1 113.40 2 2,661.28 3 2,774.68
3 ._.E HE g 8 4 | Equity Funds 10 39,775.92 7 11402764 | 17 153,803.56
5 | Fund of Funds 1 666.99 1 145.52 2 812.51
5 |s|s(5] % 6 | Income Funds E - s 92,725.18 | 16 92,725.18
2lalz g5 7 | Index Funds 1 107407 | 3 204158 | 4 3,115.66
8 |€|L|A| & 8 | Islamic Funds 2 392097 6 106291 8 1454288
9 | Money Market Funds - - 4 20,748.26 4 20,748.26
- 10 | Sector Funds 2 21714 - - 2 217144
6‘ = -] | % TOTAL 21 55,855.05 46 253,618.65 67 30%,473.69
ERETEIEE
T ;
ERIERTE D
[
ELEEEIEE
8 & (e g
139 140




4002 LHdO0OJd3YH TVNNNV

002 LHOd3d TYNNNY

™
=
%CDT a%0E OEBITT 96907 T 557 86+l 65T 1V 355 PO 3PN [0 URISOTRd | 08
% %8G OEPZZ POl | BZEELO0L | ST 1S SrEY 8ET9 Ambg STHL (M) RISURSIANT [FUeREN] | 62
%9 T VIN 95LTT Ea SEL BLYL s Zambg PRI oIS VIVN | 82
%Il VIN PETHT L 188¥ET 0671 BCEL 68721 PpaouETEd PUOLT 2255y B VAVN | £2 |
%501 %6 T [ WCYSCRl | L0TE 611 T Swmoduy PURTTRED VAVN | 92
%85 %TT9 9TE6L SEI6L LEF sk 1687 S FUB A0G THISTed el 0T | 6T
%Y = 9CSLLE 6C6LE LTS EPES 0228 eS| PUR] SWOSU] JE[S] BEZRAN | JT
I%TI9C A%5E TYREL'E L5TETE TsL L 6FSL g P IR WEZOW | 67
%5 %0 | - STSOF'T 10856 S6TEL YESET | S6IEE Zmbg PUn Jpoig AWPLAT GOW | T2
%RCT = 090616 L6 SEmL $EE0T | BTEOF STau] PUOd U0 WA 40N | 1T
a%FLE - IE91F SETIP 9565 6019 P68 pul PURL PR POIS 5V | 02
A%TLOL %86 %2669 251688 L6011 6011 | TTL IR SO P PRBFT AWV | 61
H%HPEL - 6ELELT EILST 10701 0701 | 10700 o] PO 09N 191 | 81
a%8kT = €980 1T¥e0s ©LT0L £LT01 | BYCOL S g 303050 THH | 41
%51 = ¥ 15'5R0T [ERS LT0T_ | 65I0L Fmoan] PUng SWeST] QIGPH I | 9K |
%5T T = S8THTL BLTETT TTTet 10900 | BEWOF f s B 11 DU (a3 STTATS (55451 | ST
a%sLTL a%s'g 0EE95T TEEIET 9511 LT | €BELL swoan| PO 0l g FmOouT [oAR] | pE
%81 %5 89LLI'T SBPTT L60ZL 1€l | BrITE paoUey PR o) paoue(eq [FsA%] | g1
A%SE 0L a%sH LVS9TE YI6ELE SLH0L S | SEHE ey £ouoiy PUT AP ASUOIN pooaEd | 71
A%SE A%ST S5618'1 FEEET or'est SEI9T | L5691 Lnby pung uades dgsory | 7 |
G%0T %50 9ELIST L0728 T PegEs 9L60L | SBE69 Zambg PO N P05 FRY | 0F
%% - [ Wes WIS 167S | LIS IHE[S] P TS SRV | 6
a%a1 qRSTT 2TO9R's fT1Es'e 19945 057458 [ Iwmooug PUTM PRI FERY | B
%90'TT %0SF TIESH'8 G4y LTI T | 110 amoan] PN SO BeY | £
%9 %EL_ | - 05989 TE059 PSETL STLZl_ | €5 €Tl Ambg PO IS SO ZNY | 9
H%9TL %L 607F59'S THE0rY 60 TIL BFTIT FIETL Jwmoouy puth] stuoduy shid ZWV | §
%01 %07 VLT SSLETT 09 9TH 6879 HEHESS]TY 945 PR SEA JTI0 TV | ¥
= = 156007 FLESET 6105 6105 105 ST PO IO W03 JHID TRV | €
%EE'TT = S50 S SLT9 LY 029 I\ i pang Armanddo @oiv | ¢
a%61C 3 TLHT6T SEBRET 8LTS 05Ts 9L1S amoauy POn,g JWodu] (OTV | 1
00T 00T 231 23t
poepIIa PP HasTy [RQT, | 5355y 39N i c.ﬂa“ﬁaﬁ .ﬂ&.-.nm- AVN PLEI0 SIRTE N PR #S
(uoypruz g sy) spury [enyngy pus-usd(y jo sonsness £33 g [qRL
S0'SS8'sS ELBHE'ZS TB30L
%501 - 76'65C 8872C 06002 066 L peomrEg PUmLL POOURTOR A | 12
RELEE %SE STy S8HE6'E 0S'S6TE [E] 1570 Fynby pon [deD ST AN | 0T
%0C %EE £908% BII6'S SOOBLC 00+ [3%:19 i Pun Ay AL | 61
HROT 2 SLBFLT €96ELT DSHFS [Ltr4 SL0T PYT PUnd TP femages | g1
RO LE %08 9759’9 69°5LLY STTYEE sear s07C PURT 10AMSATT DO | L1
HST %05 G%OT %OL | CCEGLHT STTOY'EL | 00EEST 0g'EE s5LY PuRI A DIOId | 9F
HOSL - SSTELT L9’ 00°000'T 05L LEor Pun A2PuE OO | 51
%sT %sT £625CY s6080Y oo’ 0501 09'sr pufig uontolry AN TR | L
H%EL%EE | %ok SIOLET SEOI6T 959Lr'L 00°ST el G e G c A
BEIT - 06980 Sroen’s 00°000°) ko1 9201 pung Sdeurapy LG A | E
%01 - [ a LT9ETT 00000 L6 9ETI PR POl QOWVN | TL
%91 BT 9resyT 05865 0000 szot 51 PR pedte(ey] Wzas | oL
H%01 “%ST | UNSLW0E SERFET TLHET [ 0cR 0l PRI POIS SOLTY TP | 6
%0T A%ST %0 VZ6L SEVLL SIORE [ vEer PUT PO pOCAKI NI | §
%0T WHO0L 0T 1002F 08 0000E oror 8971 Aambey PYT pund PN e W |
%T %0C TY9LET SLEHTT SLSBUL 06Z1 £l peomeg pmgpaompeg glsa [ 9
PR
= c ovell 00T 06001 06 6L0T rde) | 1pumd peeerng PAPURIVING | 8
%9T ST £6999 ZL6v9 06525 06 9£ZL P J0. P PURd jo piie] SPRy 14
%5 e 50496 i W5 oy 0TOL Aawby PIpmIspas TSy | ¢
A%E1HET | %0E 159427 6581TT 009611 TSt s5°21 sy PR Pran WY | T |
%9 %S LOFLOT FRIS0L OG0S7 OLE] (4 AT Pung LRIEL, XS] (THV 13
LN e 1deny
PUAPRIC UG e st i S MH pred h....__;u: v e il .
{wor[rm uy 'Sy} spun [EHNY Pus-PIso|) Jo SINSIEIS LY 1] S[qEL
=




4002 LHdO0OJd3YH TVNNNV

002 LHOd3d TYNNNY

=
=
2 E
8 : ]
e 3 Z |EE E 3 g
H 11|83 | E 7 E|E
m. - a3 Bz Ea m = | 3 £ rm. a B
] : ) E | :
S| Faal 2 L g 7lan| B 5
S| 18RI |5 5 35z Ba | 3
| EEAS [3F (RlSEMIES | | E | SEE GReE |
g HEE: R = FE g4 Slg
flE LI IEE hesiss fiisn |i
@ g z|3|5|8|2|a|2|5|¢ HEEEE R £I5|E 8 |2|B
o gl=lal; k) E IR AR:AR 2 & | (B8
e HHE ..m.m.mMmm N m.mu‘MMm £18% HEIE
el R HEE R EE R R SRR T E
REEE D SRR R AR I
- dl s K ] 4|54/ 2 = = 8 K i}
nozmamm £l 2lelnlEEd Q525 IEE Slmlg 88| §IES 215|8
c1EREQ £ m|E ﬁ.m@Mp sIE| = P mM HEEEIEEL
g wwmmmmmmwMN N_mmmmmmﬁmmmanmpmnmoﬁm&m
P 2 & - mllal
e
= m g g
]
5 N31234m123 123456789mnuummMW12345%12
= |
= H 3 - H
& 4 ] ] =
2wy dmjsnoy PNUNT Sl HeRsY | £
aoururg Smsmopy PRI JUEY JURTNSIANT ISTL], 9
2oueur] Fmsnoy PRI 220TnL] FWSNOL] 2anTACTT] 4
Fupqureg yuomnsoay ponmy e govy | 4
Buppreg yusnnsasy PaNUITT SNLMISS QIEH IV | £
eatdery s P uawadeue]y ANbE ATALL] UEISTYE] z
ASUIDFY SITNAIIG JUILS; ]
v 1T K1051Apy; pamuny Aedioyy jusunRdenry 1355y UBIUO-Ted 1
FDIAN MIN 01 PaNss| saSUIOTT 4] S[qEL
SYBISER | THRILTN [
A%ELET A%SLE SEYRG 91% QITL WL | L0FEL Erad PUT TS L1 | 9
%9901 %12 S0'€99°'L PEHTL BLEPS 1958 79'8EY Fe] PURg AWMU AL | SF
H%T'ST %R 55k BEHFL CL'8S T665 F¥L8S SpUn jo punj spungjo pung LN | b
%20 = TC6ES T €TE0ST | 0% TLT0T | Teo0r | peoanigmudes TT P pRsstond ey 410 | eF
a%ET = EEA 6LT0IT | €66 T80T | P01 | peomoag reuded pemg paroatorg eides 410 | ev
a%TLIT %S L6668 EETEL 76 WL | 2e69 TaREse[y 1956Y IWvdln | T
ST %50 9789¢ BEUKE 19 [ 615 xapuy PE HEV A1 | OF
H9L0C - HLSE'T 000 £L'6CT LGCET EL'6ET Xapu] Pang UTAPY YIS PIOLL | 6E
%3001 TR SLLHFE SET0FE | CL60L T | ¥ZOIT 3N Aeusy Pung e 200 punl | g€
%LETE a%5T6 8SE0LTL | LG0T | S5TTH T | HT ooy PR SOOI ¥ WIS PRETL | £
SHECAL 2 T a5 9555 R CCin | e8FlL FmaETs] Puti SwrEjsy swsodwiory parl | 9§
A%TOF a%er 6L6TLF SLTOF | LLBRES 0I5 | LLBBES ] U] 30 WAIL N | 6E
T%E5S = STOETT ELTITT | 8Ees 6745 | 854S oS UG oS WSy | 4
A%99°6C %09 66'06T € LE99Z°C o1'601 9611 BO'60T Ambg P R JH0IE TASTES | €f
%EEBL = 8T ISHOLT | 0688 a9 8485 OMIEE] | pung QY] 05U PO VB | ZE
%81 %L TE6RL'E 898ELG | evss 6195 | WSS uzes] PUn SMI0SH] TESTE] | TE =
=




M=
(=]
(=]
]
i
o
O
o
(i1}
o
=
<
=i
z
=
<

Table 21: List of NBFCs not having valid license (as on June 30, 2007)

Leasing

1 Sigma Leasing Corporation Limited

2 Askari Leasing Limited

3 Natover Lease Limited

4 Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited

5 Grays Leasing Limited

3 Crescent Leasing Corperation Limited
7 Union Leasing Limited

8 Otix Leasing Pakistan Litmited

9 SME Leasing Limited
Leasing/Investment Finance Services

1 | 1GI Investment Bank Limited

2 | Innovative Housing Finance Limited
Leasing/Discount Services

1 | NBP Capital Discount Limited

2 | Trust Investment Bank
Leasing/Housing Finance Services

1 | Security Leasing Corporation Limited
2 | Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited
Leasing/ Housing Finance/Investment Finance

1 | First Dawood Investment Bank Limited
2 | Bscorts Investment Bank Limited
Venture Capital Investment

1 [ TMT Venture Limited

145

8.No [ Name of NBFC [ Last available i
T Banks
1 Asset Investment Bank Ltd. | The Honourable Lahore High Court has ordered for its merger with
Tnvest Cap in 2007. The pany is in process of compli: with the
legal formalities.
2 Islamnic Investment Bank Lid. | TIBL is under winding up at PHC since June 10, 2005
3 Prudential Investment Bank | SECP filed a petition for winding up of PIBL in the Lahore High Court
Rawalpindi Bench in June 2003. The winding up proccedings were
underway when FIBL filed a reviv al plan in the court in May 2005. The
henorable court vides its order dated September 15, 2005 dismissed the
winding up proceedings and accepted the said revival plan. The
Commission filed intra-court appeal against the dismissal of winding up.
the proceedings of which are in progress.
4 Franklin Investment Bank Under winding up since 2000.
Leasing C:
1 CALCORP Merger case with International Multi Leasing is pending at Supreme Coury
of Pakistan.
2 English Leasing Co. Ltd. Licence Cancelled in 2001 duc to deficicnt equity. Winding up petition is
‘being filed with the court.
3 InterAsia Leasing Co. Ltd. | Licence lled in December 2005, Veluntary Winding up
4 International Multi Leasing | Merger case with CALCORP is pending at Supretne Court of Pakistan
5 Lease Pak Limited De Listed Un Licensed
& National Asset Leasing Corp, Licence Cancelled in April 4, 2002, In the process of filing winding -up
pr
7 Universal Leasing Co. Ltd. | NOC for merger with Crescent Leasing has been granted by the
Commission in July 2007
8 Asian Leasing Corp. Lid, ‘Winding up is pending adjudication before the Hen'ble Lahore High
Court, Lahore since 2005
9 PICL Leasing licence issued in March 2006 has not been renewed due to various|
iolations of law including deficient equity
10 Dadabhay Leasing Company| Official liquidator has been appointed by the SHC since November 17,
1999
Discount Houses
01 | Prodential Discount & GH | Under winding up since 2003
02 peedway Fond 1 | Under winding up (309/305) since March 14, 2002
Honsing Finance Companies
01 Citibank Housing Fin. Ltd. | Under Voluntary winding up Since 2004.
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Table 22: Orders Issued to NBFCS After Show-Cause Notices

*  Order in the matter of Show cause notice under section 265 of the Companie s Ordinance, 1984 in respect of
M/s Investec Mutual Fund Limited was issued on October 18,2006

»  Order in the matter of Show cause notice under sectien 265 of the Companies Ordinance,1984 in respect of
M/s Dominion Stocks Fund Limited was issued on October 18,2006

*  Order in the matter of Show cause notice under the praviso to sub-section (1) of section 282M of the
Companies Ordinance,1984 read with sub-section (1) of Section 282] thercof along with its proviso in
respect of Safeway Fund Limited and its directors for violation of Rule 7(2}( <) of the NBPC Rules was
issued on October 19,2006

®  Order in the matter of Show cause netice under Rule 63 of the NBFC Rules for vielation of Rule 49(3) and
Rulc 49(4) of thc NBFC Rulcs in respect of Asian Stocks Fund Limited was issucd on Scptember 29, 2006

+  Order in the matter of Show cause notice under the proviso to sub-section (1) of section 282M of the
Companies Ordinance,1984 read with sub-section (1) of Section 282] thereof along with its provisa in
respect of Asian Capital Management Limited and its directors for vialation of Rule 7{2){ ¢ of the NBFC
Rules was issued an October 19,2006

+  Show Cause Notice No: SC/NBFC/R/CSIBL/2006, dated Avgust 29, 2006 issued to Mr. Anjum M.
Saleem, CEQ of Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited under section 282 E of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 for his remaval as CEO.

« Show Cansc Notice No: SC/NBFC/R/CSIBL/2006, dated August 29, 2006 issucd to the CEQ Anjum
Saleemn and the Board of Directors of Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited including
Mr, Manzur-ul-Haq, Mr. Ifiikhar Soomroo, Mr. Shahid Anwar, Mr. Razzak Ratpe, Mr. Makhmoor-e-
Abmed Goheer and Mr. Khurram Mazhar Karim under section 282 F read with sub-section (1) of the
proviso to sub-scction {2) of scction 282 E of the C ics Ordi 1984 FOR sup ion of BODs

«  Order in the matter of Show cause netice under Rule 63 of the NBFC Rules for violation of Rule 49(3} and
Rule 49{4) of the NBFC Rules in respect of Safeway Mutual Fund Limited was issued on September 29,
2006
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Table 23: Show Cause Notices Issued by Modaraba Wing

+ Show Cause notice under section 19,20, and 32 of the Modaraba C

and Modaraba (Floatation aned

were issued to the following Modaraba Companies

Control) Ordi 1980 {the Modaraba Ordi
15 First Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
2 Clip Modarab: ent (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
3 Guardian Modaraba M {Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
4, Equity International (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
5. Enpro M: Services (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
6. D.G. Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
7 ‘Vanguard Capital Management (Pyt.} Limited 26.07.2006
8 United Bank Financial Setvices (Pvt.) Limited 26.07.2006
9 Premier Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited 28.08.2006
10 Crescent Standard Business M: (Pvt.) Limited 27.09.2006
11. Trust Management Services (Pvt.) Limited 10.10.2006 ,
19.10.2006 &
27.04.2007
12. IBL Medaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited 24.11.2006
13. Global Econo Trade (Pvt.) Lim ited 08.03.2007
14. Royal M. Services (Pvt.) Limited 10.05.2007
15. Prudential Capital M Limited 02.05.2007
16. ARKS Modaraba M Cornpany (Pvt.) Limited 21.06.2007
17, Masood Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Limited 25.06.2007
18. Excel Services (Pvt.} Limited 25.06.2007
19. Muslim Commereial Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited 25.06.2007
20. Dewan Mushtaq Business & Financial Management {Pvt.) Limited 26.06.2007

‘Table 24: Orders [ssued by Modaraba Wing

. Orders for de-registration of Modaraba Cs under section 19 and 32 of the Modaraba Companics and
Modaraba (Fl and Control} Ordi 1980 {the Modaraba Ordi werc ded dto the
following Modaraba Companics:

1 Constellation Management Gompany (Pyt.) Limited 04.07.2006
2. Engro M Services (Pvt.) Lid, 31,08.2006
3 DG Modaraba M {Pvt.) Lid. 31.08.2006
4 NIT Services (Private) Limited 11.09.2006
5. Premier Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited 10.10.2006
6. Equity International (Pvt.} Ltd. 03.11.2006
7. Guardian Modarab: (Pvt.) Ltd. 21.11.2009
8, Clip Modaraba M Pyt Led. 22.11.2006
9. Trust M. Services (Pvt.) Limited 22.11.2006
10 IBL Modaraba M: (Pvt.) Limited 11.01.2007
11. Financial Link Limited 15.01.2007
12, Greaves Modaraba Services (Pvt.) Limited 25.06.2007
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The registration of Financial Link Limited was cancelled on 19.01.2007 and in its place Providence
Modaraba Limited was appointed to manage Crescent Standard Modaraba.

Warning jssued:
1. [ Providence Modaraba Limited [ 28.08.2006
2. | TtustM Services (Pvt.) Limited | 21.02.2007
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Table 25; Break up of Insurance Sector in Pakistan

Description Number of Companies
30-Jun-06 30-Jun-07
Life
Public 1 1l
Private 4 4
Sub Total 5 s
Non-Life
Public 1 1
Private 45 46
Sub Total a6 47
General Takaful
Public - -
Private 1 2
Sub Total 1 2
Grand Total 52 54
Reinsurance
Public 1 1%

Table 26: Gross Written Premium (Rs. In million)

Description 2005 2006 Y%
Growth
Life
Public 13,899 16,077 157
Private 4,653 6,497 3%.6
Sub Total 18,552 22,574 21.7
Non-Life
Public 4,249 4,453 48
Private 23,478 29,033 27
SRR 727 33486 | 208
General Takafull
Public - - -
Private 5 129 | 24800
Sub Total 5 129 | 24800
Grand Total 46,284 56,189 214

Table 27: Month-wise joinings of Officersin 2006-07

Month/Category of Emp. Officers
July 2006 01
August 2006 o1
September 2006 02
October 2006 01
Iy 2006 05
December 2006 03
January 2607 a5
February 2007 08
March 2007 01
April 2007 02
May 2007 08
June 2007 10
Total 47
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Table 28: Age Profile of Officers inducted in 2006-07

AGE RANGE {in Yrs.} Number of Employees
25-27 10
28-30 17
31-33 11
3436 7
3747 2
Total 47

Table 29: Educational Profile of Officers Inducted in 2006-07

Qualifications Number of officers
(0. 04
CA (Part Qualified) 0z
ACMA/ACCA 13
JE[AS Actuarial Sciences/AC- ©
MIT/M.S/MCS/M.CCM o7
MBA 12
LLM 05
LLB 02
‘Total 47
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= _g — Laws Administered by the C issi o
o T S# Statutes (15
w = & i
4 'g 2002 @
a & ,  LiswedG ies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Takeavers) o
< é Ordinance, 2002 =
= g
= = E §aZ 2 2000 =
2 g é g § i g é 1 Insurance Ordinance, 2000 =
z 5 & Edac] i
< || 1997 <
i 1 Securities and Exct Comimission of Pakistan Act, 1997

2 Central Depositories Act, 1997

1984
1 Companies Ordinance, 1984

Policy Board

1 Securitics and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

@
< g g 0
3 g Ed 1 taraba Camparies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
=] % | E || _3§ 1974
qu _E 1z 1 Companies (Appoi of Legal Advisors) Act 1974
siEl M B i -
g3
<3

S# Rles/Regulations/Guidelines

2005
1 Takaful Rules, 2005

SMD - Notth
Multan
Sukkur

Clearing Honses (Regulation and Registration) Rules, 2005
Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005
| ‘ 4 Cotmmodity Exchange and Futitres Contracts Rules, 2005

SMD - South
[

I
Securities Market Division

2004
1 Prudential Regnlations for NBECs, 2004

Prudential Regulations for Modaraba, 2004
3 Margin Trading Rules, 2004

Secretary/Advisor to the
Comivdssion
S

Company Law Division

CROs

2 Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (Appellate Bench Procedure)
Rules, 2003,

——— [Islamabad
Karachi
Lahore
Qiretta

2003
‘ 1 Single Member (Private Limited Companies) Rules, 2003
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Nen-Banking Finance C li lish and Regulation) Rules, 2003
Companics {Registration Offices) Regulations, 2003

Ip

2002

Federal Government Insurance Rules, 2002

Securities and Exchange Commission (Insurance) Rules, 2002
Guidelines for Issue of TFCs, 2002

Guidelines for Issue of Commercial Papers, 2002

Guidelines for Preparation of Prospectus, 2002
Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, 2002

2001

Balloters, Transfer Agents and Underwriters Rules, 2001

Brokers and Agents Registration Rules, 2001

Public Companies {Employees Stock Option Scheme} Rules, 2001

Stack Exchange Members (Inspection of Books and Record) Rules, 2001
Members' Agents and Traders (Eligibility Standards) Rules, 2001

Venture Capital Companies and Venture Capital Funds Rules, 2001

2000

Companies' Share Capital (Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 2000

1999

Companies (Asset-Backed Securitization) Rules, 1999
Companies (Buy-Back of Shares) Rules, 1999

Companies (Rehabilitation of Sick Industrial Units) Rules, 1999

1998

The Companies (Audit of Cost Accounts) Rules, 1998

1996

Central Depository Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 1996

Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996
Employees’ Provident Fund (Investment In Listed Securities) Rules, 1996

1995

Credit Rating Companies Rules, 1995

1987

Comparies (Invitation and Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1987
1985

Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Rules, 1985
1981

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981

1975

Companies (Appointment of Legal Advisors) Rules, 1975
1971

Securities and Exchange Rules, 1571

Annexure C

List of MOUs Signed by the Commission with Other Bodies for Mutual Cooperation

1. MoU between SECP and Australian Securities and Investments Commission
2; MoUt South Asian ities Regul towhich SECPis asignatory
3. MoU between SECP and IFC on launching corporate governance project

4, MoU't SECP and Maldives M y Authority

5. MoU between SECP and Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka
6. MoU between SECP and Royal Monetary Authority of Bhutan

7 MoU between SECP and State Bank of Pakistan
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AnnexureD

Listof Publications

1. Company Mertgages and Charges

2 Company Name Availability Guide

3, Conversion of Status of Companies

4. Directors and Secretaries Guide

5. Foreign Companies Guide

[ Guide on A and A ing Dates
7 Guidebock on Further Issue of Shares otherwise than Rights
B. Guidebock on Issue of Preference Shares

9. Insurance Guide

10. Trvestigation into the affairs of a compatry

11 Investors Guide (Vol.-I)

12, Investors Guide (Vol.-ITy

13, Trvestor's Guide for Lodging Complaints

14. Licencing & Registration of Association Not-For-Profit
15. Madaraba Promoters’ Guide

16. Promoters' Guide

17. Promoters' Guide {in Arabic)

18. Promoters' Guide {in Chinese}

19. Promoters' Guide {in Urdu}

20. Shareholders' Rights

21, Single Member Company Guide (in Urdu)

2. Winding up and Dissolytion of Cottpanies

Annexure E

List of Model Memoranda of Association for Different Sectors

Auto and Allied

Banking Company

Chemical and Pharmaceutical

Communication and IT Related

Construction

Engineering

Exchange Company-A

Exchange Company-B

Fuel and Energy

Insurance

Leather

Leasing

Textile
(m1) Textile Composite
(m2) Textile Spinning
(m3) Textile Allied and Others

Transportation

Association/ Foundation

Miscellaneous

Security Services

Power Generation

Synthetics and Rayon

Jute

Fighing

Live Stock

Poultry & Breeding

Venture Capital Business

Single Page Memorandum and Articles of Association

Memorandum of Asseciation
Articles of Association

Articles of Association of a Private Limited Company

Articles of Association
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i Annexure F

v Management Directory, Head Office Islamnabad

o© Name Designation Email Addres Telephone

o Razi-ur-Rahman Khan  Chairman chairman@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9204841

L Salman Ali Shaikh Commissioner (5CD) salman shaikh@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9206513

v Rashid L. Malik Commissioner (CLD & SMD) rashid.malik@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9222771
S. Tariq A. Husain Commissioner (Law} tatiq husain@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9224670

= Abdul Rehiman Qureshi Advisot/Sectetaty to the Commission tehiman qureshi@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9202692

< Dr, Mumtaz A. Hashmi Advisor {Insurance) murmtaz hasmidisecp gov.pk +92-51-9209985

=i Arshad Javed Minhas  Executive Director (IS&T) arshad. minhas@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9212103

= Akif Saeed Executive Director (SCD) akif saeed@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9212084

- Javed K. Siddiqui Executive Director (FéA) javed.siddiqui@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9206003
Mansur Ahsan Executive Director (HR & Training}  mansur.ahsan@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9206014

= Nazir A. Shaheen Executive Director (RD) nazir.shaheen@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9206306
Tahir Mahmood Executive Director (EMD) tahir.mahmood@secp. gov-pk +92-51-9207598
Abid Hussain Director (EMD) abid hussain@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9205921
Akbar Shah Additional Registrar (RD} akbar.shah@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9230208
Ali Azeem Tkram Director (EMD) ali.azeem@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9205588
Ashraf Tiwana Registrar (Appellate Bench) ashraf tiwana@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9220848
Asif Jalal Bhatti Director (M&I - NBFC) asif jalal@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9218597
Bilal Resul Registrax Modaraba bilalxasul@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9212070
Bushra Aslam Director (Fund) bushra.aslam@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9221513
Hammad Yunus Director (Internal Audit) hammad yunus@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9204811
Hizbullah Siddiqui Director (ICW/ Brokers i i i il i gov.pk +92-51-9206317

and Inspection)
Hasnat Ahmad Director (Pension) hasnat.ahmad@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9206011
Ibtesam Moatisim Director (MI5) ibtesam.montisim@secp.gov.pk  +92-51-9206515
Imran Ghaznavi Director (Internal & Bxternal
Communications) imran.ghaznavi@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9214005
Imran [nayat Butt Director (M5W) imran buti@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9295224
Muhammad Afzal  Director (NBFC-T) muhammad.afzal@secpgov.pk  +92-51-9212050
Muhanmad Naveed Ch.Director (CLD} muhammad.naveed@secp.gov.pk  +92-51-9230066
Muhammad Siddique Additional Registrar (RD) muhammad.siddique@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9230207
Rashid 5. Paracha Director (CEW) rashid piracha@secp.gov.pk +52-51-0214006
Syed Fayyaz Mahmud  Director (CS) fayyazmahmud@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9207648
Tariq Bakhtawar Director (EMD & FIL) taviq bakhtawar@secp.gov.pk +92-51-920% A7
Umer Hayat Khan Director (NBFC-I} omar.hayat@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9210211
Ubsidullah S. Ansari  Ditector (Training) ubaididlsh ansari@secp. gov.pk +92-51-9205721
Waseern [tshad Director (Adminis i waseen.i gov.pk +92-51-9205713
Regional Offices/Comp Regh don Offices
Dr. Mumtaz A. Hashmi Advisor {Insurance) mumtaz hasmi@secp.gov.pk +92-21-9213273
Iinran Iqbal Panjwani  Ditector (SMD - Karachi) imran iqbal@secp.gov.pk +92-21-9217598
Shahid Nasim Director (NBFC - Karachi) shahid nasim@secp.gov.pk +92-21-2416032
Ahmad Muzammil Additional Registrar ((RO - Lahore)  amuzammil@secp,gov.pk +92-42-9200274
Javed Hussain Additional Registrar (CRO - Karachi) javed hussain@secp.gov.pk +92-21-9213272
M. Musharraf Khan ~ Additional Registrar (CRO - Islamabad)musharraf khan@secp.gov.pk +92-51-9208740
Liagat Ali Dola Joint Registrar (CRO - Multan} liaqat.dola@secp.gov.pk +92-61-9200920
Mudassar Rahim Joint Registrar (CRO - Peshavrar) mudassar rahim@secp.gov.pk +92-91-9713178
Zaheor Ahmed Joint Registrar (CR O - Faisalabad)  zahur.ahmad@secp.gov.pk +92-41-9220284
Iftikhar Naqvi Deputy Registrar (CRO - Sukkur) iftikhar.hasan@secp.gov.pk +92-71-5633757
Kashif Mehmood Deputy Registrar (CRO - Quetta) kashif mahmood@secp.gov.pk +92-81-2844136
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Abbreviations And Acronyms
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Abbreviations and Acronyms

ADB: Asian Developtnent Bank

AGM: Annual General Mecting

AML: Anti-moncy Laundering

APG: Asia/Pacific Group on Money Lanndering
CA: Chartered Accountant

CDC: Central Depository Cotnpany of Pakistan Limited
CDS: Central Depositary System

CEO: ChiefExcentive Officer

CEW: Commadity Fxchange Wing

CFS: Continuous Funding System

CIS: Colleetive Investment Scheme

CTW: Capital Issues Wing

CLA: Cotporate Law Authority

CLD: Compaty Law Division

CMA: Costand Management Accountant
COD: Certificate of Deposit

COI: Certificate of Investment

C ies Ordi 2 C i di 1984 0r C.0. 1984
CNIC: Computerized Natienal Identity Card
COT Carry-over Trading

CRO: Company Registration Office

C8: Chairman's Secretariat

DFI: Development Finance Institution

EGD: Electronic Government Directorate

EMD): Enforcement and Monitoring Department

FBR: Federal Board of Revenue

FIU: Frand Investigation Unit

FMGP: Financial {non-bank) Markets and Governance Program
FRU: Foreign Relations Unit

FY: Financial Year

HRIS: Human Resources Information System

TATS: International Association of Insurance Supervisors
TAP: Insurance Association of Pakistan

IAS: International Accounting Standard

ICAP: Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
ICMAP: Insti f Costand M: A f Pakistan
ICW: Investor's Complaints Wing

ID: Insurance Division

IDF: Instiutional Development Fund

IFRS: International Financial Reporting Standards

I di I Ordi 2000

IOPS: International Organization of Pension Supervisors
IOSCO: International Organization of Securities C issi
IPO: Initial Public Offering

IS&T: Information Systems and Technology

ISE: [slamabad Stock Exchange

IT: Information Technology

KSE: Karachi Stock Exchange

KSE-30Index: Karachi Stock Exchange 30 Shares Index
KSE-1001Index: Karachi Stock Bxchange 100 Shares Index
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LD: Legal Department

LSE: Lahore Stock Exchange

MIS: Management Information System

M&I: Monitoring and Inspection:

MMC: Modaraba Management Company
ba C:

Modaraba Ordi - Mod.

and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control Ordinance), 1980

Modaraba Rules: Modaraba Companies and Modaraba enles, 1581
MoU: Memorandum of Understanding

MSW: Monitoring and Surveillance Wing

NAV: Net Asset Value

NBFC: Non-banking Finance Company

NBFCD: Non-banking Finance Companies Department
NBFC Rules: Non-banking Finance C: ies (Establisk
Regulation) Rules, 2003

NBFI: Non-bank Financial Institution

NCCPL: National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
NCEL: National Commodity Exchange Limited

NICOP: Naticnal Identity Card for Overseas Pakistanis
NIT: National Investment Trust

NTCs: New Terms & Conditions (of employment)

OTC: Over-the-commter

PE & VCF: Private Equity and Venrure Capital Fund
Policy Board: Securities and Exchange Policy Board
PRCL: Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited

PSPD: Professionzl Services and Policy Division

RD: Registration Deparment

REIT: Real Estate Investment Trust

RTS: Resume Tracking System

SAFA: Sonth Asian Federation of Acconntants

SBP: State Bank of Pakistan

SCD: Specialized Companics Division

SECP Act: Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997
SMC: Single Member Company

SMLD): Securitics Market Division

SME: Smalland Medium Enterprise

SMEDA: Small and Medium Erterprises Development Authority

SOE: State-owned Enterprise

SRO: Self-regulatory Organization

SSD: Support Services Division

TA: Technical Assistance

Takeaver Ordi: Listed C jes (Sub jal Acquisition of Voting
Sharesand Takeovers) Ordinance, 2002

TFC: Term Finance Certificate

The Commission: The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
UK: United Kingdom

VaR: Value at Risk

VPS: Voluntary Pension System

VPS Rules: Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005
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